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Our Annual Report and Accounts 1s all about our Partners And we'd like

your feedback on it www.johnlewispartnership.co.uk/meta/contact-us.html
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This is a somewhat different Annual Report
and Accounts from those of a standard plc.
That's because our shareholders are our 91,000
Partners for whom the Partnership is owned

in trust. This report focusses on them.

In this year's Annual Report and Accounts,

we've sought to show how we've performed and
how the Partnership works. Our ownership is the
basis of our business model — and fundamental
to our customer offer. It also determines how
we are governed.

Whether you are a long-serving Partner or are
new to our business, | hope you enjoy learning
more about our Partnership.

Yours sincerely,
Sir Charlie Mayfield, Chairman,
John Lewis Partnership

STRATEGIC REPORT
Pages | to 49 compnise the Group Strategic Report
The Strategic Report was approved by the Board of Dwectors on 10 Apnl 2014

Sir Charlie Mayfield, Chairman, John Lews Partnership, 10 Apnl 2014
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THE JOHN LEWIS PARTNERSHIP AT A GLANCE

The John Lewis Partnership is unique: it's the UK's
largest example of co-ownership and its activities
are governed by a principles-based Constitution.

We operate 305 Waitrose shops and 40 John Lewis shops,
johnlewis com, waitrose com and have business-to-business
customers in the UK and abroad

The two trading divisions of Waitrose and John Lewis are
supported by Partnership Services (a shared service division)

PARTNERSHIPF BONUS

15% of pay

2013 17%

PROFIT BEFORE PARTNERSHIP
BONUS AND TAX

and Corporate (the Group head office function).

Our Partners co-own the Partnership

GROSS SALES (INCLUDING VAT)

£329.Im
-4.1%

Partnership Waitrose
. . (o]
.2bn £6.1bn +6.0%
o 2013 £58bn
+6 ' 6/) John Lewis Graph removed
2013 £95bn £4 Ibn +7 5%
2013 £38bn
REVENUE
Parcnership Waitrose
£90bn £5.7bn +6.2%
o) 2013 £54bn
+6 . 6/0 John Lewis Graph removed
2013 £8 5bn £3 3bn _|_74%
2013 £3Ibn
OFERATING PROFIT
Operating profit Waitrose
£423.6m £310.1m +6.1%
o 2013 £292 3m Graph removed
_6.6/0 John Lewis
2013 £453 4m £226 Im +4 3%
Operating profit before exceptional item 2013 £216 7m .

£470.9m
+3.9%

2013 £4534m

Partnership Services and Corporate

(£65.3m) -174%

2013 (£55 6my)

For ¢ more detalled insight imto our Group and
dvisional performance in the year please turn
to ‘Our Performance in 2013/14’ on page 22
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COye EMISSIONS INTENSITY

£1.4bn

Annual online sales were £} 4bn
with johnlews com up 192% and
wartrose com grocery sales up 41 4%

Image removed

-5.0%

An ermissions increase of | 3% against a revenue increase of 6 6%,
equating to a 5 0% decrease n emissions intensity We are working to
reduce absolute operational CO, equivalent (CO,e) emisstons by 15%
by 2020/2| against our 2010/1) baseline

About Waitrose

Waitrose has 305 shops in the UK and Channel
Islands and has consistently achieved sales growth
ahead of the market Its strong performance has
been dniven by the service from loyal and dedicated
Partners, a long-term commrtment to sourcing the
UK’s finest local and regional foods, the success of
the essential Wartrose range, Brand Price Match, the
success of the myWaitrose card and free delivery for
online shopping

Waitrose combines the convenience of a
supermarket with the expertise and service of a
specialist shop — it 1s dedicated to offering quality
food that has been responsibly sourced, combined
with high standards of customer service

BEST SELLING PRODUCT

Our essential Waitrose range offers
keenly priced everyday items with
no compromise on quahty Our best
selling product from the range was
essential strawbernes

Image removed

NEW PRODUCTS ONLINE GROCERY
LAUNCHED SALES GROWTH
4,000+ +41.4%
2013 AWARDS

— Good Housekeeping Favounte Supermarket

— Favourite Food and Grocery Retaler (Verdict's Customer
Satisfaction Awards)

- Top performer in National Consumer Satisfaction Index

About John Lewis

John Lews has 40 shops in the UK 30 department
stores, 10 John Lewis at home and jchnlewis com

Led by our committed and focussed Partners, we sell
the best of fashion, beauty, home and giftware and
electrical items John Lews typically stocks more than
350,000 separate Iines in the department stores

The website offers over 250,000 products including
online exclusives johnlews com 1s consistently ranked
one of the top online shopping destinations in the
UK

John Lewss Insurance offers a comprehensive range of
insurance products — home, car, wedding and event,
travel and pet insurance and life cover — delivering
the usual values of expertise, trust and customer
service expected from the john Lewss brand

BEST SELLING PRODUCT

We're a market leader in the

electronics and home technology
sector so it's fitting that 2013/14's
best selling products were tablets

Image removed

ONLINE
SALES GROWTH

+19.2%

ONLINE SHARE OF
JOHN LEWIS SALES

28.1%

2013 AWARDS

- Retaller of the year (Orade Retal Week Awards)
— The Nation's Best Retaller (Merdict's Customer Satisfaction Awards)
— Best Retailer 2013 (Which? awards)
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OUR STORY

n the hands
of our Partners

Since our early days, we've done things
differently. Our Partnership model makes us
unique, and it’s still key to our success today.

The combination of a trusted legacy and
continuous innovation keeps us at the forefront
of retal. We have a competitive and commercial
mindset. And, most important of all, our
Partners keep us one step ahead with new
iIdeas and personal commitment.

We will continue to invest in our business,
listen to our Partners, and do things differently
— in shops, service, and ways to shop. And that
will ensure our doors stay open to a bright,
sustainable future.

During the year, the Partnership created 6,300
net new jobs.

FIRST MOBILE CHRISTMAS
At Christmas the shift to mobile
devices for onling shopping was
confirmed but the in-store sale 15
well and truly thriving

NEW BRANCHES

We have an active pipehine of
new stores across Wartrose and
John Lewrs including a John Lews
n Heathrow s Terminal 2

WAITROSE GARDEN
Launched 6 000 gardening
products devoted to helping our
customers grow their own flowers
frutt and veg

WAITROSE CHIPPING
SODBURY

Opened in October 2013 and
1s more than 40% more carbon
elficent than the equrvalent
exisng shop




Image removed
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INVESTING IN QUR ESTATE
Work has begun on Magna
Park 2 John Lewis new
multi-milhion pound National
Distribution Centre
INVESTING ONLINE
Scheduled for Autumn 2014
the opening of the second dotcom
fulfilment centre will Increase the
online capacity of Waitrose
CLICK & COLLECT
57% of john Lews Chick &
collect orders picked up at
Waitrose branches
CONVENIENCE STORES
Five little Waitrose stores opened
dunng thus year and we have 23
planned for 2014/15
GOOGLE OXFORD STREET
Used Google to map the nside of
John Lewis Oxford Street
WAITROSE ON
THE EUROSTAR
Since April 2013 Wartrose has
JOHN LEWIS ASHFORD supplied food and drink to alt
Opened our tenth at home shop In Eurostar buffet cars

November 2013 creating 125 jobs
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OUR PARTNERSHIP MODEL

Uniting our Partners through a shared vision and values,
our Constitution is the cornerstone of our Partnership.

Our founder; John Spedan Lewis, envisioned a great
commercial enterprise whose success would be measured
by the people working in it. His vision was enshrined in a
written Constitution in (929 This Constitution s still at the
heart of our Partnership today The Constitution’s

Principle | sums up what our Partnership stands for:

“The Partnership’s ulumate purpose is the happiness of
all its members, through their worthwhile and satisfying
employment in a successful business. Because the
Partnership is owned In trust for its members, they
share the responsibilities of ownership as well as its
rewards — profit, knowledge and power.”

91,000
Partners

Knowledge

DID YOU KNOW?

Today, the John Lewis Partnership s the
fargest employee-owned business in the

UK QOur Partnership model 1s admired
across both the private and public sectors
Co-ownership gives us a distinctive culture -
and a competitive advantage

PARTNERS ARE CONNECTED BY
OUR SHARED VISION AND VALUES

Profit

Cur success relies on the collaboration
and contribution of our Partners, who
receive a share of profits in the form of
Partnership Bonus

Knowledge

We prowide our Partners with the knowledge
they need to carry out their responsibiliies
effectively as co-owners of the Partnership

Power

Our Partners are able to influence their
business at all levels of the Partnership
through the democratic structure and the
representative bodies wiich are defined in
our Constitution

See page 3! for more details
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Our Partnership model gives us our distinctive culture.
This, combined with the efforts of our Partners, gives
us our competitive advantage.

Governance of the
Partnership model

Algning Partner interests

Our Partnership model ¢reates a commeraial
competitive advantage through our 91,000
Partners And because we're an open,

fair and transparent democracy, there 1s a
true sense of belonging to the john Lews
Partnership This 1s dlear in the way we do
business Partner engagement and investment
for the long-term are at the heart of our
commercal strategy

Communicaung Partner interests

Our Partnership model sets out clear
channels of communication, from branch
level right up to Partnership Counal
These allow and, more importantly,
encourage our Partners to make their
opinions heard — and see them acted upon
— whether that's through letters sent to the
weekly Partnershyp magazine, the Gazette,
or valuable representation at the deciston-
making table

Represenung Partner interests

Partners are formally represented i two

of the three governing authonties the
Partnership Board and the Partnership
Counal This means all Partners can

share therr thoughts about our strengths,
weaknesses, accomplishments and plans with
everyone in the organisation — from the shop
floor to the Board

Partnership
Counail

Key
«— Representation and communication

O Our Partners O Our Constitution

@ Our Governing authorities

PRINCIPLE 2

Power in the Partnership 15 shared between
three governing authonties the Partnership
Councll, the Partnershup Board and

the Chatrman

GIVING OUR PARTNERS
A VOICE THROUGH A
DEMOCRATIC STRUCTURE

Read more about the Partnershup Council
on page 54

Image removed

15%

John Lewis Stratford Partners celebrate
following the announcement in March
2014 that Partnership Bonus would equat
15% of pay
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OUR PARTNERSHIP MODEL IN ACTION

As a Partnership we are open, fair and transparent.
There's a true sense of pride in belonging to a successful,

well-respected business.

“| really enjoy discussing the business plans at
Partnership Council — to see what Charlie
Mayfield, Andy Street, Mark Price and Patrick
Lewis have in the pipeline always makes me
feel inspired as a Partner.”

Rebecca Lacey, Partnership Councillor for John Lewis Victoria

Image removed

Rebecca 1s one of the 66
Partners who have been elected
onto the Partnership Council
She 15 an Assistant Buyer,
Cookshop in John Lews Victoria

“During the Pension Review
we will be looking to gather
Partners’ thoughts and feelings
on all the options proposed —
Partners can be confident we
will ensure any changes are fair
and reasonable ”

Image removed

REPRESENTING PARTNERS

The Partnership Council 1s elected for a
three year term and includes 66 Partners
Any Partner can stand for election

The 15 members of the Partnership Board
are members of Counal Additionally, the
Chairman appoints three members to
Counal Members of the Partnership Board
and the three members appointed by the
Chairman have no vote in Council

Many Partnership Counait sessions are
transmitted hve to all branches via the
Partner Intranet
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Elections take place for Partners to represent their colleagues
at Partnership Councill and on the Partnership Board.

“The Executive Directors have a good
understanding of Partner opinion: what we
have to do is cement it. Everyone’s focussed
on doing what’s right for the business and for
Partners and there are no other agendas.”

Steve Gardiner, Elected Director on the Partnership Board

Image removed

Steve 1s one of five Partners
elected to represent Partners
on the Partnership Board He is
the Branch Manager of Waitrose
Cirencester and joined the
Partnership Board in May 2012

“| take the role of Elected
Director very seriously The
responsibility motivates me
to be the best that | can be”

OPENNESS

The Partnership Counal holds the Chairman
to account for running the business It may
ask the Chairman or Partnership Board

any question The Partnership Board or
Chairman must respond to the Partnership
Council unless it would 1n therr opirion,
damage the Partnership’s interests

lmage removed
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HOW WE CREATE VALUE

We create value through understanding and delivering
on our customers’ needs across the value chain resulting
in a strong financial performance.

A retall value chain sits at the heart of our business.
John Lewis and Waitrose tailor their approach to creating
value based on a deep understanding of customer needs

Efficient selection
and sourcing

Connecting
products to
markets

PRINCIPLE 5

The Partnership aims to deal honestly with
1s customers and secure their loyalty and
trust by prowiding outstanding choice, value
and service

Image removed

Excellent customer
experience

Efficient selection
and sourcing

-

— Selecting and scurcing the best
products to meet our customers’
needs

— Providing value for customers by
driving efficiency cthroughout the
supply chain

— Purchasing local, ethical and
sustainably-sourced products

Connecting products
to markets

— Meeting our customers’ needs for
flexible ways to research, shop and
receive their products

— Operating a smart distribution
network and investing in
new technology to meet
customer demands

— Reducing CO;e emissions from
transport and distribution

-

Excellent customer
experience

— Prowviding the best customer
service — wherever and however
they shop with us
— Creating strong customer loyalty
by providing services which enhance
the products themselves
— informing customers about the ‘
sustainability and story of the
products they buy

Image removed

Image removed

Image removed

With the opening of a new frozen beef
production site i Yorkshire, Waitrose
now has one of the shortest supply chains
for beef of any UK supermarket

Waitrose began a pilot for Chick & collect
temperature controlied lockers in July

John Lewis became the first UK electrical
retaller to faunch a minimum two year
guarantee on all its electrical products at
no extra cost
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Our business activities have a significant economic impact

on our Partners and stakeholders beyond Thus year, for the
first time, we've aggregated our economic Impacts in a value-
added statement to show how and where we created value
in 2013/14 for our Partners and other key stakeholders

Payments and benefits to Partners

Pension charge
Wages and salaries Bonus incl NI excluding excepuional item

£1.3bn £203m £168m

Other

£118m

Long Residenual Leisure, Council, Dining room Journahsm Partners’
leave clubs assoclated costs substdies discount
£8m £6m £12m £25m £4m £63m

PN

Income and expenditure

Commitment
Revenue Cost of sales Excepuonal item

(holiday pay}
£9.0bn £6.0bn £47m

Operaung expenses

£2.6bn

.

QOther payments

(financing, tax etc)

£120m

Capital Services Licence

Payments to stakeholders

Financing Governments Communities
Interest Taxaven and social security Investment

£95m £144m | £14m

Key

To the
Parwnership

From the

* Parmershlf

FONYHYOIYI ¥NO dIHSHINLYV SIMITNHOTIHL

FONYNEIADD

SINIWILVIS TVIDNYNY




John Lews Partnership pic
| 2 Annual Report and Accounts 2014

OUR PARTNERSHIP STRATEGY

The Partnership strategy is underpinned by three Aims,

which support Principle |.

As the Partnership expands and the retail marketplace
evolves, it remains important that our strategy focusses on
our ultimate goal balancing the happiness of our Partners
with the success of the business as a whole, as outlined in
Principle | of our Constitution

Principle | sits at the heart of our overall business strategy.
The Partnership Board sets the strategy after considering
our areas of strength, opportunities and changes in the
marketplace and in the world around us

Our strategy i1s underpinned by three Aims They are
designed to make us bolder, clearer, and more confident that
our Partnership approach 1s a better way of doing business
Delivering on our Aims ensures that, as our business grows,
we respond better to new demands and continue to make
the most of our co-ownership model Underneath all our
activities are the Partnership’s ethical principles and our
commitment to do business in a fa, sustainable way

Realise
market
potential

Increase
advantage of
Partners

Grow
efficiently

Principle |
“The Partnership s ultimate purpose
15 the happiness of all its members
through therr worthwhile and satisfying
employment in a successiu! business
Because the Partnership is owned in
trust for its members they share the
responsibiittes of ownership as well as its
rewards — profit, knowledge and power

OUR PARTNERSHIP AIMS

Increase advantage of Partners

When our Partners achieve their very best
at work, it creates a competitive advantage
for the whole Partnership — happiness makes
us all more motivated and effective We am
for Partners to gan personal satisfaction by
being members of a co-owned enterprise

in which they have worthwhile and fulfilling
employment, as well as a genuine sense

of community

Realise market potental

We aim to attract new customers, and retain
and deepen the relationships with those we
already have We do this through better
understanding and quickly responding to
their changing needs, whether that means
more competitive priang, flexible shopping
opportunities, or peace of mind about our
product sourcing Enhancing our sustainability
programme will support our market position

Grow effictently

The business has grown significantly over
the last ten years, and growth will continue
to be mportant But growth increases
business complexity and impacts our costs
Focussing on efficency 1s becoming more
important and to achieve a balanced and
profitable growth, whilst delivering enough
profit to distnbute to our Partners we need
to carefully prioritise our investrnents and
further instil cost control discipline
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Our strategy reflects fundamental changes in customer
attrtudes towards value, service and trust.

Value for money

Customers are demanding better value
for money with no compronuse

on quality and Innovation

Image removed

Our customers’ needs are changing

Service and convenience
Technological innovation 1s driving demand
for flexible shopping according to
customer Iifestyles

Image removed

For more information about the changing attitudes of our custormers please see page 42

Trust

Customers are increasingly demanding
that companies operate ethrcally and keep
their prormises

Image removed

How we are investing to respond to changing customer demands

- essential Waitrose

— John Lewss Value ranges

— Never Knowngly Underscld

— Brand Price Match

— Developing better value products of
excellent quality through product innovation

— Omni~channel services online and
on the move
— New retaill formats and service offerings
— Enhanced network of Chck &
collect iocations
— Improved m-store experence
— Greater online distrbution capaaty
—~ Investment in supply chain and T

— Never Knowingly Undersold

— Guaranteed Guarantees

— Improving supply chain practices

— Increasing the product range from certified
sustainable sources

— Supporting UK supply

469 new essential Waitrose
products were launched in 2013/14

Our Click & collect service
1s now available in every John Lewis
and 229 Waitrose stores

100% of the palm oil in our own brand
ingredients are cerufied sustainable (CSPO)

Image removed

Image removed

Image removed
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OUR PARTNERS

The retall environment is becoming increasingly
competitive. But thanks to the dedication and drive
of our 91,000 Partners, we continue to thrive.

Our success has created new challenges We need to ensure
that the way we work and the services we provide are right
for our growing business We also need to keep our Partners
engaged in what it means to be a co-owner during a peniod
of significant transformation

Launched in November 2012, the Partner Plan is built
around four key themes. It addresses the 1ssues that our
Partners have told us are most important to them and
changes in our business model

Market-beating contribution Inclusive and vibrant
and PI’OPOSItIOI"I communities

Image removed

Meaningful work Modern ways
and careers of working

PRINCIPLE 4

The Partnership aims to employ and

retain as its members people of ability and
integrity who are committed to working
together and to supporting its Prninciples
Refationships are based on mutual respect
and courtesy, with as much equality
between its members as differences of
responsibility permit The Partnership ams
to recognise their ndmdual contnbutions
and reward them fairly

Increasing the advantage

of Partners 1s at the heart

of our strategy. Our Partner
Plan 15 helping us achieve this.

87%

OF PARTNERS

“Recommend the Partnership
as a great place to work.”
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Market-beating
contribution and

proposition

Every Partner shares in the benefits of a
co-owned business Our ownership structure
enables us to offer a comprehensive
reward package including pay, Partner
discounts, subsidised dining and leisure
facilities, career development and a non-
contributory final salary pension scheme
Partners also have a direct say in how the
business 1s run The Partnership 1s currently
engaged in discussions with the Partnership
Councl on the level and form of future
provision of pension benefits to Partners
More information on the review of pension
benefits can be found on page 3|

In return, we ask Partners to show responsibility
for the Partnership’s ongoing success by
giving us their very best performance — from
adaptive, mnovative thinking and excellent
customer service to a significant contribution
1o continuous iImprovement

In focus

To help increase the Partner advantage, we
have introduced a Partnership-wide apprasal
system calted My Performance lIts core
purpose s to show Partners how they are
performing against consistent, business-

wide criteria In early 2014 we introduced

a Partnership-wide Pay for Performance
approach to dearly demonstrate how greater
contrbution can be rewarded

Pay for Performance s our new Partnership
pay framework implemented in March 2014
Aligning with My Performance it aims to

Ink performance and pay more closely and
consistently for Partners — no matter where
they work. It does this by measunng a Partner's
annual performance rating against ther posiion
In the pay range to determine their percentage
pay increase for the year

Meaningful work

and careers

As the employment landscape changes and
work practices shift, we need to develop the
capabilitres required to keep our competrtive
edge We already have Partners from across
four generations, and 59% of Partners

have less than five years’ service With the
percentage of younger Partners expected to
grow, we need to offer training that allows
Partners of all ages and abibties to stay up

to date with technological advances and
new ways of doing business By providing
opportunities, we're encouraging Partners to
learn new skills — whatever stage they're at in
their working lives

In focus

This year, Waitrose introduced a new
product specalst role in Fruit, Vegetables

& Flowers, with an accredited Level 3
quahfication from City & Guilds 500 Partners
completed the learning for the new

specialist role John Lewis offered Level 2
(the equivalent of a GCSE) Functional Skills
qualfications in Maths English and ICT for
those Partners who wanted to brush up on
hteracy numeracy and IT skills To date, more
than 300 Partners have taken advantage of
this programme

Across the business, more than 2,000
Partners completed vocational qualfications
ranging from accountancy to procurement
We offered 95 apprenticeships and

nearly 900 Partners took part in IPAR
(Inspiring Performance, Achieving Resutts),
our Partnership ine management

training programme

74%

OF PARTNERS SAY
“My job satisfies me.”

Image removed

“Pay for Performance looks great in
theory, and my managers have grasped
it quickly but the test will be in
calibration There will be parucular
challenges in areas where there are
currently a lot of existing pay models™

says Nikki Donaldson
Partnership Counallor

Image removed

Chris Coburn, Partnership Counaltor
and Chair of the Partner Group, explains,

“Pay for Performance Is fairer because
it rewards consistent performance
It 1s better than previous approaches
because the annual Partner
performance discussion will now
just be about performance ™
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OUR PARTNERS CONTINUED

Inclusive and vibrant

communities

We strive to be a welcoming and diverse
business that recognises and values
difference This goes to the heart of our
ulttmate goal of being a successful co-owned
enterprise that benefits all of our Partners

This aim 15 supported by our Diversity and
Inclusion Policy The policy 1s there to help us
create a vibrant Partner community with a
varied range of skills, talents, expenences and
backgrounds, within a far environment free
of discrimination and harassment

Qur ethruic mix of Partners has not changed
significantly over the last decade Our white
Partner demographic continues to reflect
the UK population as a whole at 84% of

our population, but at senior management
levels, white Partners account for 92% of the
population As a Partnership, we want to do
more to foster a culture of inclusion at all
levels, and we ook clear steps to do this in
2013/14

In focus

In September 2013, a number of our senior
leaders, mcluding Heads of Branch at John
Lewts and Heads of Retal Operations at
Waitrose, attended a seminar on uncenscious
bias This helped understand how our
unconscious personal preferences affect

our behaviour

Tony Wheeler, Managing Director
at Peter Jones, says,

“The unconscious bias semmar was
very enlightening It deepened my
understanding of the ever-changing
face of society and our marketplace
and demonstrated how leaders
need to be more agle and
adaprable | am certainly a more
commercial leader as a result”

In November, we also launched a dedicated
intranet page for our LGBT (Lesbian, Gay,
Bisexual and Transgender) networking group,
Pride in the Partnership

In 2014, we will continue to drive this

cutture of inclusiity We will be rolling

out online e-learning diversity training to

all 91 000 Partners, emphasising the value

of understanding and embracing cuttural
differences We will also be settingup a
mentoring network for those managers from
under-represented ethnic minornities and
providing funding and support for Partner-
generated diversity groups and networks

Image removed

/3%

OF PARTNERS SAY

“We build relationships
powered by our principles.

In terms of gender breakdown, the position
at the end of the financial year for the
following populations 1s

Abby Chicken Charr of the LGBT
networking group and Food Hall Manager
at John Lewss Oxford Street, says

“It’s fantastic to finally have an
official paint of contact for LGBT
Partners across all divisions We
hope to be a real resource for
Partners and managers to access
if they are looking for guidance
or support on LGBT issues ™

Thanks to our Diversity and Indlusion
scorecard, we are able to moniter and
measure the impact and effectiveness of our
activities to improve performance in this
area This scorecard will be presented to the
Partnership Board each year

GENDER DIVERSITY

Male Female

Directors and Management Board members

67%  33%

Senior managers®
43%

57%
57%

Adl other Partners™
* Other than Directers and Management Board members

** Other than Dhrectors Management Board members and

SeNior managers

PARTNER ETHNICITY

AsianfAsian British
Black/Black Briush &%

5%
Chinese/Other \
Ethmuc group
1%

Mixed Onigin
2%

Not grven
b A
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Modern ways

of working

In order to adapt to a fast-paced business
environment with ongoing technological
change, Partners are increasingly working
together across both roles and divisions
Although the majonity of Partners feel
empowered at work, we stili have more to
do as a business to fully realise and release
therr potentral

In focus

2013/14 has been the year that continuous
impravement has begun to take hold wathin
the Partnership, thanks to cress-divisional
shaning of knowledge and skills Many areas
of the Partnership have been involved in this
initiateve, from our contact centres to our
branches, distribution faclities head offices
and shared service centre Two examples of
the power of Partner engagement in 2013/14
come from wark conducted at our Hamilton
Contact Centre in Glasgow and a number of
locations within Waitrose

Qur Hamilton team has developed a method
of contmuous improvement they call IMPACT
(Improving My Partnership and Changing
Together) It follows a structured approach
to rapidly improve performance, with ideas
coming from Partners who are at the heart
of the operation

Sue Troughton, Customer Service
Adwvisor, says,

1 undertook IMPACT traning at
Hamilton and it has significantly
changed my view of the role | have
within John Lewis It has enabled me
to understand that every Partner
has the ability to effect change
within the business, and we are
all in control of driving not only
our own success, but the success
of the business as a whole ™

At Wartrose, Andi Macauley, Branch
Manager at Caversham, has been sharing the
knowledge he gained while undertaking his
Master's Degree at Warwick Business School
He s collaborating with his PartnerVoice
(the local forum for Partner opinion)
representatives to identify opportunities

for improving their day-to-day working
environment The group has implemented

a number of ideas Including iImproving

the organisation of consumables around
checkouts and ordering packaging matenals
in smaller quantities to reduce the amount of
stock held in branch

Twna Bates Partner at Waitrose
Caversham, says,

“Personally, | feel my ability to
influence what's happening outside
of the branch is imited, but through
the good suggestion scheme
and talking with my managers, |
really feel | can add value in my
immediate working environment”

/6%

OF PARTINERS SAY

“We create real influence
over our working lives.”

tmage removed

68%

OF PARTNERS 5AY

“We take responsibility for
our business success.”
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OUR SUSTAINABILITY HIGHLIGHTS

We're proud of our achievements over the past 12 months.
They're testament to our Partners’ dedication — inside and

outside the business.

The Partnership Constitution provides a set of guidelines
about how we do business — about the relationships we
hold with our customers, our suppliers, our communities
and Partners The work we are doing to protect our
environment Is testament to our values.

2013/14 has been another year of collaborative effort in
successfully addressing sustainability across the Partnership

There 1s still more to do as the scale of global challenges
we face becomes more evident. For 2014/15, we are
introducing a sustainability materiality assessment across the
Partnership that will help us to identify and prioritise the
issues our business 1s facing. Then we can better set out
our priorities and plan and invest accordingly

Our suppliers

Image removed

What do we mean?

— Responsibly sourcing raw matenals
and goods

— Improving supply chain working
practices

~ Nurturing supplier and Partner
development to support responsible
sourcing practices

— Ensuring food quality and safety
— Sourcing locally

Key achievements

— john Lews joined the Better
Cotton Initiative

— Waitrose was highly praised by WWF
inits ‘Palm Oil Buyers Scorecard'

— John Lewis nitiated a pilot to bring financial
Iteracy traning and access to bank savings
accounts to factory workers in Delhi

Image removed

AWARDS

Best Supermarket — Soil Association Organic
Food Awards

BITC Big Tick — Award Ensuring a Sustanable
Price for Pig Farmers

Image
removed

Image
removed
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Our customers

image removed

QOur environment

Image removed

Our communities

Image removed

~ Helping our customers to make
informed choices

— Providing clear and better advice

— Encouraging sustainable behaviour

— Encouraging better nutrition and
healthy lifestyles

— Conserving natural rescurces

— Managing our estate with mimmal
environmental impact

— Recognising good environmental
practice in our supply chain

— Acung locally to respond to
community needs

— Buwilding trust in the local community

— Developing our Partners through
community involvement

- Contributing to social and economic
growth where we operate

- Through our dedicated programmes
- 'the Waitrose way and John Lewis’
‘Bringing Quahty to Life’ — we are
encouraging our customers to lead
more sustainable lives

— Waitrose teamed up with Start — a
charitable imitiative set up by HRH The
Prince of Wales to inspire and encourage
people to live more sustainably

— John Lews 1s trialling an Energy Efficency
Service to help customers save energy
at home

Image removed

Image removed

COse EMISSIONS AGAINST REVENUE

VOLUNTEER HOURS GIVEN

-5.0%

WASTE DIVERTED FROM LANDFILL

136,000

PRE-TAX PROFITS TO CHARITABLE
AND COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES

96.1%

DISTRIBUTION MILEAGE

4.3%

AMOUNT DONATED TO GOOD CAUSES
THROUGH COMMUNITY MATTERS

-5.3%

AWARDS

£4m+

NET NEW JOBS CREATED

Waitrose and John Lews Ipswich won
Retall Project of the Year at the 2013
Lux Lighting Awards

Image removed

6,300
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THE BIGGER PICTURE

Our business was founded on strong principles.
These still guide how we do business today.

In today’s uncertain world it's increasingly important that
we not only stay true to these principles, but also ensure
they evolve with the changing landscape Sustainability was
integral to John Spedan Lews' vision and 1s central to the
Partnership's plans for the future

image removed

The Constitution

and sustainability

We are one aof the few companies in the
UK to be governed by a principles-based
constitution [t 1s very clear about our
responsibibties regarding the wellbeing of the
communities In which we operate, as well
as how we deal with supplers and the way
we impact the environment Throughout its
history, the Partnership has recognised

the value of corporate atizenship Indeed,
our founder, John Spedan Lews, was a
noted enviranmentalist of his time, with

a deep interest in the natural world, so
good stewardship has always been part of
our culture

That said, there 1s no doubt that issues

of environmental sustanability and socal
stability are becoming ever more important
to our sales and profit, whether we are
facing increasingly volatile commodity prices
or ensunng we continue to recruit the best
Partners These are 1ssues that will affect our
long-term ability to generate profit How we
respond couldn’t be more vital

The biggest challenges

Clearly, the challenges in our supply chain
are extremely important to us We supply

a vast range of goods and services to our
customers We have almost 400,000
separate product lines listed across John
Lewis and Waitrose — and each one has
some form of environmental or socal impact
To meet our customers’ expectations in the
future, we know we have to Increase our
purchase of sustainably and ethically sourced
products including those certified and
accredited as such

In addition to this emerging challenge,

chrate change and managing our operational
footprint has long been a priority We've had
a robust carbon plan in place for a number of
years and we are seeing tangible returns from
the investment we have put in However,
there are other hurdles ahead as, in recent
years, the growth of our business has far
exceeded all our expectations This means
we will have to look very carefully at how we
meet the ambitious carbon targets we have
in place

Tracey Killen,
Director of Personnel

“We've had a robust carbon

plan in place for a number
of years and we are seeing
tangible returns from the
investment we have putin’

Image removed

L]

GOVERNED BY A CONSTITUTION

Our Constitution 1s very clear on our
responsibilities regarding our communities,
our suppliers and the environment

PRINCIPLE 7

The Partnership ams to obey the spint
as well as the letter of the law and

to contribute to the wellbeing of the
communities where it operates
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The contmuing increase in the number of
muddle-class consumers in India and China 1s
of huge significance There will be many more
companies around the world competing for
the same products and that could have a
profound effect on what we are able to offer
consumers Naturally, this growth in demand
presents many commercal opportunities, but
we will need to continue to Innovate and act
quickly with our supply chains if we are to
capture them Greater connectwty between
the consumer, business and beyond 1s
fundamentally changing the way peopte shop

Planning to ensure

an approprlate responsc

Of course, like any business, we have to
prioritise Crucally we need to know where
we can pioneer and lead the rest of the
retal sector We need to concentrate on
the areas that are of greatest threat to our
business and on those that offer the most
commercial cpportunity

We already prioritise a number of areas — for
example, for many years, Wartrose has been
sustainably sourcing British produce, while
John Lews has been putting considerable
effort into helping customers to choose
more sustanable products and to live

more sustainably — but we can always be
more ambitious

For 2014/15 we are introducing a
sustanability materality assessment process
to update our views of the sustamability
1ssues that are most materal to our business,
5o that we can better set our priorities

and then plan and invest accordingly

This materality review will involve interviews
with senior management across the
Partnership, as well as our key stakeholders,
to understand what matters most to them,
1o the business and to wider sccety

Given the importance of these 1ssues, we
have also brought our Annual Report and
Accounts into closer alignment with our
Sustanability Review This year, we are
publishing them at the same time, with more
shared content than ever before, to promote
“integrated thinking” within the Partnership
Next year, to advance this, we will combine
the two documents After that, our ambition
is to produce a fully integrated report

— to demonstrate that the Partnership’s
performance story and our sustainablity
story are the same This will provide
everyone interested in the Partnership’s
future — Partners, suppliers, customers,
non-governmental organisations, financiers,
communities and the media — with an
engaging report that will show how we are
meeting the goals set out by John Spedan
Lewis all those years ago

PRINCIPLE 6

The Partnership ams to conduct all its
business relationships with integrity and
courtesy and scrupulously to honour every
business agreement

image removed

FACING GREAT CHALLENGES

The business landscape looks very different
today to the time when John Spedan Lewis
wrote the Constrtution It will be as different
again in the future

“For 2014/15, we are
introducing a sustainability
materiality assessment
across the Partnership that
will help us to identify and
prioritise the 1ssues our
business and our customers
are facing”’
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OUR PERFORMANCE IN 2013/14

In the Performance section,
you'll find:

— An overview of the performance during the year

— Our key performance indicators, showing the
measures we use to assess our performance

— Detalled commentaries on Waitrose, John Lewis
and Partnership Services and Corporate

— Factors that might affect our future performance

— The key risks in our business and how we
mirtigate them

CONTENTS

Charrman’s statement 23
Highlights and challenges 25
Key performance indicators 26
Group performance 30
Waitrose performance 32
john Lewis performance 36
Partnership Services and Corporate performance 40
Factors affecting future performance 4l
Principal risks and uncertainties 46
Key Partnership risks and mitigations 48
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In a good year, Partners have played a key role
in our results. Profit before exceptionals has grown
by almost 10% and, for the first time, we have
achieved gross sales of over £10 billion.

| 23

Financial and operational highlights
— Gross sales exceed £10bn for the Partnership, £6bn for Waitrose, and £4bn

for john Lewis

— Revenue exceeds £9bn for the Partnership with Wartrose £5 8bn and

John Lewts £3 3bn

— Profit before Partnership Bonus, tax and exceptional item up almost 10%,

down by 4% after the exceptional item

— Partnership Bonus of £202 5m 5% of salary (equal to nearly 8 weeks’ pay)
— Net debt of £485 8m. up £1139m (30 6%), pension defict of £1 Obn, up £181 3m (22 19%)

Image removed

Overview

This has been another good year for the
Partnership Both Wastrose and John

Lewis increased market share for the fifth
consecutive year, profit before exceptionals
has grown by almost 10% and, for the

first time, we have achieved sales of over
£10 billkon As a result of cur performance |
am delighted that 91,000 Partners received a
Bonus of 15%, equivalent to nearly 8 weeks'
pay The Bonus reflects the balance of a
strong trading year, but also the increased
costs of pension provision The exceptional
cost of £47m relating to holiday pay
premiums (announced in August 2013), did
net affect the bonus percentage

Embracing the need

for change

Our ownership by Partners has played

a key role in these results There are
fundamental changes taking place in retall,
especially In customer attitudes towards
value convenience and personalisation

For several years we have been adapting our
business to take advantage of these changes
That has required high levels of investment
orgarusational change and new capabilihes
The level of change has at times been
challenging, but Partners have understood
and embraced the need for their business to
contnue to develop

Targeted investment

As a result we have been able to make
important progress in several areas
Innovation in product and service continues
to be wital in today's market and there have
been great examples of that in Waitrose and
John Lewis We have improved our omni-
channel offer significantly with new online
platforms for both brands and expansion

of the hugely popular Chck & collect

service We have also introduced greater
personalisation to the relatitonship with
customers particularly with myWaitrose

To dehver all of this we continue to make
mprovements to branch structures and are
giving greater emphasis to the importance of
our leadership teams creating opportunities
for indmdual Partners

Sir Charhie Mayfield,
Chairman,
John Lewss Partnership

£202.5m

Partnership Bonus

Image removed

SHARING BENEFITS

The total amount of profit shared
amongst our Partners

Image removed

INNOVATION AND INVESTMENT

Innovation and mvestment drive strong
sales and profit performance
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT CONTINUED

Sustainability update

This year has seen us continue to lower the

environmental impact across our estate,

n our products and in our supply chains

We have also invested Partner time in

communrty activities and (n encouraging

customers to live more sustainable lives

— Our new Waitrose store in Chipping
Sodbury 1s 40% more carbon efficient than
the equivalent existing shop

— John Lews launched a trial Energy
Efficiency Service — selling heating systems
and insulatson, solar panels and home
energy control devices —~ and we are
participating in a trial with the Department
for Energy and Chimate Change (DECC)
to give customers information on the
Iifetime electricity running costs of
laundry products

— We were highly praised by WWF in its
‘Palm Ol Buyers Scorecard” for our leading
efforts in sourcing segregated sustainable
palm ol

- At John Lewis we are developing a
sustainable fibre guide to help buying
Partners make more sustainable
purchasing decisions

— Partners continued to mvest their tme
and skills in the local community through
the continued work of the Golden
Jubilee Trust, and through the launch of
ded:cated programmes at Waitrose and
John Lews that support local schools in
the curnculum

~ Through the "Waitrose way' commitments
Waitrose continued to encourage
customers to make small changes in the
way they shop and live

We recogrise that managing sustainability
Issues across our complex and growing
business is only going to become more
challenging and so, for 2014/15, we are
adopting a pan-Partnership process to
update our views of the 1ssues that are
most material to our business, allowing
us to prioritise and then plan and

invest accordingly

2014/15 Outlook

There are more encouraging signs for the
economy as a whole and, although this has
not yet come through as a significant increase
n consumer spending, | am cautiousty
optimistic that we will see improvements this
year | am confident that however quickly the
UK economy emerges from this prolonged
pericd of slow growth, the Partnership 15
well positioned to continue to strengthen

its competitive position and to grow market
share in both Waitrose and John Lewis

Sir Charlie Mayfield
Chairman,
John Lewis Partnership

In 1864, John Lews opened a draper’s shop
on the same site that our flagship occupies on
Oxford Street We'll be marking our 150th
anniversary wrth celebrations throughout the
summer, bringing to life the onginal vision of
John Spedan Lewis through activities n our
shops, reviving and renterpreting designs
from our 150 year history, and creating new
collaborations with some of the brands we
work with today

““You don't achieve the
progress we have in a straight
line* there will be bumps
along the way. it’s how you
respond to those bumps
that defines a successful
organisation and we have
been agile and responsive.”

Sir Charlie Mayfield
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HIGHLIGHTS AND CHALLENGES

Innovation and investment have driven strong
sales and profit performance.

GROSS SALES REVENUE PARTNERSHIP BONUS

£10.2bn £9.0bn £203m
+£630m (6.6%) +£562m (6.6%) 157 of salary

2013 £241m (17%)

PROFIT BEFORE PARTNERSHIP BONUS, EXCEPTIONAL ITEM PROFIT BEFORE PARTNERSHIP
TAX AND EXCEPTIONAL ITEM BONUS AND TAX

£376m £47m £329m
+£33m (969%) e ]4m ((41%)

INVESTED IN BENEFTS FINAL SALARY PENSION DERICIT

TO OUR PARTNERS PENSION SCHEME

£584m £263m £1.0bn

including Partnership Bonus pensions cash total cash contributions to final salary @)
contributions, Partner discount, catering pension scheme +£| 8 | m (22. | /))

subsidy, long service leave, leisure spending
and the running of our five holiday centres,
up 6 0%

NEW JOBS CREATED NET DEBT SUSTAINABILITY KEY FIGURES

6,300 £486m -5.0%
net new jobs created + ﬁl | 4m (30 6%) COe emissions intensity
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (KPIs)

We use a range of key performance indicators (KPIs)
to measure and monitor our progress.

Across the Partnership, we focus on a number of KPIs to identify

trends in the trading performance of both Waitrose and John Lewis.

These KPls are designed to help us measure and understand our
operational performance.

GROSS SALES GROWTH (%)

Definition

GROSS SALES GROWTH
Percentage increase In gross
sales during the reporting
period Gross sales s defined
on page 89

LIKE-FOR-LIKE SALES
Like-for-Itke sales 1s a measure

of the year-on-year branch and
ontine sales growth, excluding
VAT as well as removing the
impact of branch openings and
closures This measure indicates
the underiying sales performance
on a consistent basis

OPERATING MARGIN (%)

Why we use this measure
Sates growth Is a key retall
measure, and we use it to
establish how the John Lewis
Partnership s performing
against the overall market

It also measures our aim

to achieve long-term
sustainable growth

Commentary

Both Waitrose and John
Lewis grew sales well ahead
of their respective markets,
increasing their market share
Waitrose outperformed

the Kantar Grocery Market
by 5 8% and John Lews
outperformed the BRC Retall
Index by 4 3%

How we performed
GROSS SALES GROWTH (%)

6.5% 106% 64% 93%

2010 2011 2012 2013

66%

2014

LIKE-FOR-LIKE (%)

Waitrose' +5.19%

John Lewis +6.4%

* Excludes petrod sales

Definition

Operating profit before
exceptional item expressed
as a percentage of revenue

Why we use this measure
Operating margin 1s an
indicator of profitabiity
evaluating the Partnership’s
pricing strategy and
operating efficency

Commentary

Operating margin before
the exceptional item has
decreased, principally due to
the year-on-year increase in
pension operating costs and
specific restructuring costs
in John Lewrs After including
the exceptional item, margin
reduced to 47%

How we performed
()

58% 59% 51% 54%

2010 2011 2012 2013

52%

2014

* Restated for the implernentauon of 1AS |9 revised
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NEW STORES

During the year, 13 new
Waitrose stores were opened
and one John Lew:s at home

Image removed

Image removed

PROFIT BEFORE PARTNERSHIP BONUS, TAX AND EXCEPTIONAL ITEM (£m)

Defimtion

Profit before Partnership
Bonus tax and
exceptional item

Why we use this measure
Measures how much profit
15 left after deducting all
costs and expenses, before
Partnership Bonus, tax
and exceptional item have
been deducted

PARTNERSHIP PROFIT MARGIN (%)

Commentary

Profit before Partnership
Bonus, tax and exceptional
item 15 1n hne with stronger
trading partally offset by
increased pension costs
Including the exceptional item
profit before Partnership
Bonus and tax fell 4 1% to
£329 Im, reflecting the mpact
of the exceptional item

How we performed

£376.4m
+9.6%

Defimtion

Profit before Partnership
Bonus, tax and exceptional
tem expressed as a
percentage of revenue

Why we use this measure
Measures whether profitabilsty
1s changing at a higher or lower
rate relative to revenue

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (PBT) PER AVERAGE FTE

Commentary

Partnership profit margmn has
increased from 4 |% After
including the exceptional item
the margin decreased to 3 6%

How we performed

PRE EXCEPTIONALITEM

4.2%
+0.1%

POST EXCEPTIONAL IFEM

3.6%
-0.5%

Defirition

Profit before Partnership
Bonus, tax and excepticnal
item divided by the average
number of Partners

Why we use this measure
Measures whether the profit
generated per average FTE s
increasing or decreasing This s
useful to assess whether we
are growng efficently

Commentary

PBT per average FTE increased
due to the strong trading
performance and lower net
finance costs

How we performed

£6,700
+£200
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (KPIs) CONTINUED

CASH FLOW FROM CPERATIONS (£rm)

Defimtion

Why we use this measure

Commentary

How we performed

Measure of how much tdentifies whether the Cash inflow generated from (Em)
cash has been generated Partnership 1s generating operations fell by 2| 0% 648 745 759 979 773
by the Partnership's sufficient positive cash flow principally due to higher
business operations to maintain and nvest n normal pension contributrons
our operations, or whether and lower improvemenits in
external financing may waorking capital
be required
2000 | z01I 2012 | 203 | 2014
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE {(£m)
Definition Why we use this measure Commentary How we performed
Expenditure relating to Measures how funds are Capital expenditure increased (Em)
the acquisition or upgrade being reinvested into the by 41 4%, principally on our 445 493 518 376 533
of physical assets, such as Partnershup, particularly in store base, as well as in
buildings or machinery and the form of new shops and distribution and IT
intangible assets, such as refurbishments, or to enhance
computer software the agiiity and robustness of
systems and infrastructure n
distrbution and IT 000 { 20100 | 02 | 2013 | 2014
RETURN ON INVESTED CAPITAL (ROIC) (%)
Defininon Why we use this measure Commentary How we performed
Post tax profit, adjusted for Measures how efficientlythe  ROIC has increased principally o6
ncn-operating and exceptional  Partnership uses the capital due to the strong profit 77% 79% 7 2% 82% 85%
items, as a proportion of invested In our cperations growth in the year
average operating net assets,  ROIC s a useful metric to
adjusted to reflect a deemed  assess the leng-term value
caprtal value for property creation by our business
lease rentals
2010 | 201 2012 1 w0 | 2014
GROSS SALES PER AVERAGE FTE (£000)
Definition Why we use this measure Commentary How we performed
Gross sales divided by the Gross sales per FTE 15 an Gross sales per FTE increased {£000)
average number of Partners indicator of productivity due to the strong like-for-like 1617 1692 1707 1792 1820
within the Partnership sales growth in both Waitrose
This is particularly useful and John Lewas
when compared against other
retalers — a higher result
denotes higher productivity
2010 200 212 2013 014
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NUMBER OF PARTNERS

Definiuon
Number of Partners as at
year-end date

NUMBER OF STORES

Why we use this measure
Measures growth in the
number of Pariners and the
net new jobs created by
the Partnership

Commentary
MNet 6,300 new jobs were
created in the year

How we performed

91,000
+74%

Definition
The number of stores trading
as at the year-end date

SELLING SPACE (M SQ FT)

Why we use this measure
Demonstrates the change n
our retall space in our business
year on year — a key driver

of growth

Commentary

Waitrose opened 13 new
branches during the year

of which five were Iittle
Waitrose, John Lewis at Home
in Ashford opened and there is
an active pipeline of new sites

How we performed

345
+14 stores

Waitrose 305
John Lewis 40

Definition

Selling space including all
customer-faaing areas but
excluding offices, warehouse
space and Partner faciities

Why we use this measure
Demonstrates the change in
our retall space in our business
year on year — a key driver

of growth

GROSS SALES PER SELLING SQ FT (£}

Commentary

Selling space increased

to 10 millon square feet
reflecting store expansion
and refurbishment

How we performed

10.0m sq ft

+0.3m sq ft

Definluon

Gross sales generated
for every square foot of
selling space

Why we use this measure
Measures sales density which
15 an indicator of performance

Commentary

Gross sales per selling square
foot have increased principally
due to the strong lke-for-like
sales growth in both Waitrose
and John Lewis

How we performed
®

210 960 963 982

2010 2011 2012 2013

1024

2014
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GROUP PERFORMANCE

Our results reflect the collective hard work of our Partners.

Group performance

In 2013/14, the Partnership traded well,
delwvering good growth in sales and profit
before exceptionals Both Waitrose

and John Lews grew sales well ahead of
their respective markets, increasing their
market shares

Partnership gross sales (inc VAT) were
£10 2bn an increase of £630 2m, or 6 6%,
on last year Revenue, which is adjusted for
sale or return sales and excludes VAT, was
£9 0bn, up by £362 3m or 6 6%

Operating profit and

exceptional tem

Partnership operating profit was £423 6m,
down £29 8m, or 6 6% on last year

This n¢cludes an exceptional cost of £47 3m
following a review of the Partnership’s hohday
pay policy during the year Excluding the
exceptional item, operating profit was
£4709m, an increase of £175m or 39%

The exceptional item comprises costs
of £39 3m for payments to Partners and
associated expenses, and £8 Om for an
increase in future pension habilities

Profit before Partnership

Bonus and tax

Profit before Partnership Bonus and tax was
£329 Im down by £14 2m, or 4 1% on last
year with the decline wholly attributable to
the exceptrional item Excluding this it was
£3764m, up by £33 Im or 96%

Partnership Bonus

These results reflect the collective hard
waork of our Partners who, as co-owners,
each received the same percentage of annual
pay as Partnership Bonus Partners shared
£202 5m in profit, which represents 15% of
pay or the equivalent of nearly 8 weeks' pay

Investment in the future
Capital nvestment in 2013/14 was £533 Im,
an increase of £156 2m (41 4%) on the
previous year This includes £55 8m on
freehold properties

The majority of our spend continues to be

In our store base, either on new stores or
the refurbishment of existing ones However,
to enhance the agility and robustness of our
systems and infrastructure, we have also
significantly increased our capital iInvestment
in distnbution and IT n the year

Investment in Waitrose was £316 ém, up
£118 4m (597%) on the previous year, and
in John Lews investment was £174 8m, up
£305m (2] 1%}

We expect the higher level of capital
investment to continue in 2014/15, as our
employee-owned madel allows us to invest
for the long term

Capital mvestment by category
(*)

Image removed

New Branches
25%

Refurbishment and
other branch spend
30%

Dustribution
12%

Helen Weir,
Finance Director

INVESTMENT

We are investing in our store base as well
as our IT and distrbution infrastructure to
address our customers changing needs

PENSION BENEFIT REVIEW

The Partnership 1s currently engaged in
discussions with the Partnership Council on
the level and form of the future provision of
pension benefits to Partners
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Pensions

The Partnership has adopted ‘IAS 19 revised’
in the year, which changes the way in which
pension costs are recognised in the income
statement Consequently the comparative
income statement for 2012/13 has been
restated with an increase in operating profit
of £1 Om and an increase in finance costs

of £67 3m Profit before tax therefore has
decreased by £66 3m

tn 2013/14 the pension operating cost before
exceptional item was £1677m, an increase of
£307m or 22 4% on the prior year, reflecting
changes to financial assumpttons and growth
in scheme membership Pension finance costs
were £353m an increase of £6 2m or 21 3%
on the restated prior year pension finance
costs, reflecting a higher accounting pension
deficit at the beginning of the year than at the
beginning of the previous year As a result,
total pension costs before exceptional item
were £203 Om, an ncrease of £36 9m or

22 2% The exceptional item includes £8 Om
for an mncrease in future pension liabilities,
resufting in total pension costs of £211 0m

The total accounting pension deficit at

25 January 2014 was £1,003 4m, an increase
of £181 3m (22 1%) Net of deferred tax,
the defiot was £820 3m The accounting
valuation of pension fund habiliies increased
by £422 2m (11 1%) to £4,218 2m while
pension fund assets increased by £240 9m
(8 1%) to £3.214 8m, including an £85m
one-off cash contribution made by the
Partnership in January 2014

The trienrial actuarial valuation of our
non-contrbutory defined benefit final salary
scheme as at 31 March 2013 has concluded
with a defiat of £8400m We have agreed
to increase the ongoing contribution rate

to 16 4% of members' gross taxable pay,

up from 12 2% and put in place a plan to
eliminate the defiat over a 10 year perod
through the one-off contnbution made in
fanuary 2014 and annual defiat reduction
contributions of £44 3m The balance of the
defiat 15 expected to be met by investment
returns on the scheme’s assets

The pension is one of the most iImportant
benefits offered to Partners, but also
accounts for the greatest single investment

made each year by the Partnership We are
undertaking a review of the pension scheme
to ensure that it can remain far to Partners
and sustamnable from a business perspective
A draft proposal was published earlier this
year to move to a defined benefit/defined
contribution hybrid scheme, where future
pension riskis shared between Partners
and the Partnership Partners remain at
the centre of the review as co-owners of
the business and have the opportunity to
share their views The proposal will be
further developed over the course of 2014,
with a decision expected to be agreed by
Partnership Counal and the Partnership
Board towards the end of the year

Financing

Net finance costs on borrowings and
investments decreased by £1 2m (2 0%)

to £58 8m After including the financing
elements of pensions and long service leave
and non-cash farr value adjustments, net
finance costs decreased by £15 ém (14 2%)
to £94 5m

At 25 January 2014, net debt was £485 8m,
an increase of £1139m (30 6%) |n January
2014 we repad a £100m bond from available
cash and agreed a new £150m short term
bilateral borrowing facility, which was
undrawn at year end

Fult informaticn in relation to our hiquidity
and funding position is 1n note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements

Taxation

The effective tax rate in the year was 198%
whuch is fower than 23 8% recorded in

the prior year Thus principally reflects the
impact on deferred tax of the change in
future corporation tax rates, along with the
decrease in the underlying statutory rate of
corporation tax

Helen Weir,
finance Director

PRINCIPLE 3

The Partnership aims to make sufficent
profit from its trading operations to
sustain its commeraal vitality to finance
its continued development, to distribute
a share of those profits each year to its
members, and to enable it to undertake
other activities consistent with its
ultimate purpose

Image removed

PARTNERSHIP BONUS

Ouwr Partners shared £202 5m,
which represents 5% of pay

Image removed
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WAITROSE PERFORMANCE
The shaping of the modern Waitrose continued
apace throughout the year. We are growing our
online business and also creating additional reasons
for customers to visit our branches.

Financial and operational highlights
— Gross sales £6 Ibn, revenue £5 8bn and operating profit £310m
— |3 new branches (including five Iittle Wartrose)
— Total online services gross sales of £262m

— Wartrose com grocery gross sales up 41 4%

~ More than 5 6m customer visits each week

— myWaitrose cardholders now account for 68% of sales
— 56 months of market ocutperformance

Image removed

Performance against divisional KPls

Gross Sales Growth (%)

Like-for-like Sales Growth %)

6.0% B

67%

60%

5.1%

36%

34%

51%

Mark Price,
Managing Drrector, Wartrose and Deputy
Chairman of the John Lewas Partnership

2012 2013 2014 2012 2013 2014
Operating margin (%) Gross sales per average FTE (000)
54% 51% 54% 5 4% I 972 1942 1982 1972
2012 2013 2014 2012 2013 2014
Selling Space {m sq ft) Gross sales per selling sq ft (©)
5 5 49 53 55 I |26 1160 1 1126 NUMBER OF PARTMNERS
. »
59,300
+[0.196
2012 2013 2014 2012 2013 2014 . O
Cash from operatons Capital expenditure
£4774m £316.6m
2013 £5650m 2013 £i98 2m

KPls are defined on pages 26 ta 29
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Sales and profit performance
The shaping of the modern Waitrose
continued apace throughout the year

Gross sales {excluding petrol) for the year
were up 6 0% to £6 Ibn and hke-for-like
sales (excluding petrol) grew by 5 1% with a
large proportion of this uphft attrbutable to
volume growth Operating profit was up by
61% 1o £310 1m

“Alongside Brand Price Match,
essential Waitrose and
promotions, myVVaitrose gives
us a real advantage, and we’ll
use It to help us build deeper,
stronger relationships with
our customers "

Growing our market share
The myWaitrose card is allowing us to
deepen relationships with our customers,
we are growing our online business and
through more services and hospitality, we
are creating additional reasons to visit our

branches Qur customer service, high quality

products, breadth of range and value offer
continue to resonate with customers and

Waitrose has now outperformed the market

for 56 months in a row As aresult our
market share increased from 49% to 5 1%
over the year

Increasing customer

transactions

Customer transactions grew by 9 6% and
there are now more than 5 ém customer
visits each week More than 4 Im customers
now have a myWaritrose card and 68% of
sales are to cardholders As well as the
benefits that customers already recewve,
myWaitrose became even more appeaiing
in October when we increased the number
of price promotions on branded products
In addition to Brand Price Match (where
we match Tesco prices on branded goods
exciuding promotions), myWartrose
customers now receive an extra 0%
discount on hundreds of lines

image removed

CHRISTMAS SUPPORT

Waitrose supported Christmas lunch
events for nearly 40,000 etderly, homeless
and vulnerable people across the UK as
part of its Christmas lsolation campaign
to tackle loneliness

Image removed

SEASON'S GREETINGS

The Heston from Waitrose range proved
poputar at Christmas — an impressive
150,000 boxes of chocolates flew off

the shelves Areas like horticulture also
saw strong results, with the demand

for Christmas flowers up 50% And gift
certificates for the Waitrose Cookery
School also went up 23%
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WAITROSE PERFORMANCE CONTINUED

Image removed

6,000 GARDENING PRCDUCTS

Available from the Wartrose flower garden
range and Waitrosegarden com

Image removed

Continued investment

In wartrose com

Waitrose com performed strongly with
grocery gross sales up 41 4% We continued
10 nvest 1 our online business, improving the
shopping expenence with a new look for the
site making it more tablet-frendly, and easier
to register, navigate and search for products
In the year we nearly doubled the capacity of
our branches to fulfil enline orders We will
have the capacity to realise further potential
for our online business in the London area
when our second dark store opens In
Coulsdon later this year

ONLINE SUCCESSES

Wartrose announced plans to increase rts
online capaaty in the capital by opening a
second dotcom fulfilment centre (DFC) in
Coulsdon, South London The depot, due to
be completed in Autumn 2014, will feature an
80,000 square foot picking space This is twice
the size of Acton (the existing DFC) meaning
more items can be picked per hour and mare
customer deliveries per van can be made
each week.

NUMBER OF STORES

305

We opened |3 new branches
(including five little Waitrose shops)

image removed

Click & collect developments
Customers increasingly expect to be able

to move smoothly between channels and
during the year 57% of all John Lewss Click &
collect orders were picked up from Wartrose
stores, amounting to 2 5m collections

We are exploring more ways to integrate
our channels and are trialing drive-through
collections in five shops We began a pilot for
collection lockers in July 2013

New branches and

refurbishments

We opened |3 new branches and relocated
two others in the year, which brought the
total number of shops at the end of the year
to 305 We now have 42 little Waitrose
shops in total, five of which were opened
last year
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We carmed out major refurbishments of

|1 branches and now have concierge-style
welcome desks in 112 shops These give a
focal point for our existing services as well
as the opportunity to try out new offerings
in the future We continue to develop

our hospitality offer with cafes in more
than 100 of our branches and are trialing
concepts, such as new-fook bakery and
wine departments and grazing areas in our
Kingston and Cambridge branches

In the year ahead we plan to open 38
new branches, including 23 little Waitrose
shops, as well as relocating two branches

We closed our Dartford branch at the end of

its lease in February

“As online grows, our branches
are taking on a renewed
significance, offering services
and experiences that customers
can’t get on the website ”

Innovation-led products
Innovation, superb quality and high standards
of provenance are at the heart of our
products, from essential Waitrose to Duchy
from Waitrose We launched over 4,000
products during the year and expect to
sustain this pace in 2314 In addition, April
2013 saw the debut of the Waitrose flower
garden range and Wartrosegarden com,
offenng 6,000 gardening products in total

Mark Price

Managing Director, Wartrose
and Deputy Charman of the
John Lewis Partnership

Image removed

image removed

CONTINUOQUS IMPROVEMENT

In Waitrose Distribution, a “continuous
improvement” itauve was introduced
during 2013/14 The principles were
based on D M AL C (Define/Measure/
Analyse/lmprove/Control) and offered a
step by step approach to problem solving
— something that worked well with the
existing ‘7 Waste Walk™ process

“The imuative has made a real difference to
my job, showing me useful techmques to
help support the operational management
of the warehouse It means we are
able to gather information, measure
its impact, think about selutiens and
control the process going forward,
resulung in us saving money and
strengthening procedure ™

Cambell Keen, VWarehouse Partner,
Waitrose Distribution

FIVE YEAR ANNIVERSARY CF

ESSENTIAL WAITROSE

— Annual sales of more than £lbn

— |8% of total sales come from
essential Waitrose

— 2100 products across 22 categories

~ Exported to 47 countries mcluding Chile,
Bahamas and the Philippines

~ 46% new products launched in 2013/14,
including new beauty praducts

A RECORD CHRISTMAS

Our record Christmas results have
been a real hughlight sales on Monday
23 December were £51m — the
highest ever taken by the business in
a single day with an average of 22,000
nems going through checkouts every
minute Christras Eve also proved to
be particularly busy but thanks to the
preparation and hard work of all the
Partners, these periods were dealt
with well
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JOHN LEWIS PERFORMANCE

Our sales passed the £4bn mark for the first time,
with strong growth seen in our shops and online.

Financial and operational highlights
— Gross sales £4 |bn, revenue £3 3bn and operating profit £226m

— Jjohnlews com gross sales of £1 Ibn, up £184m (192%)

— Chek & collect grown by 57%

— Significant market share gains across Home, Fashion and EHT

— New at home store at Ashford and strong store pipeline
— £97m 'Magna 2’ distribution centre on track

Image removed

Performance against divisional KPls

Gross Sales Growth ¢x)

Like-for-hke Sales Growth )

Andy Street,
Maraging Director, john Lewis

O,

7-5/) 30% 135% 75% 64% b 3% 10:5% 64%

=/l =Ll
2012 2013 2014 2002 203 2014

Operaung margin (%) Gross sales per average FTE (1000)

o, % 1503 1653 1750

6.9% e 175.0

2012 2013 2014 2012 2013 2014

Selling Space (m sq i) Gross sales per selling sq ft ()

45 4 " 902 oI | 85 | %02 NUMBER OF PARTNERS
29,800
+0.3%

L] O
2012 2013 2014 2012 2013 2014

Cash from operauons Capital expenditure

£3714m £174.8m

2013 #4403 Im 2013 £1443m

KPis are defined on pages 26 to 29
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Sales and profit performance
John Lews gross sales grew strongly
throughout the year, Increasing by 7 5% in
total and passing the £4bn mark for the first
time Total lke-for-like sales grew by 6 4%
Operating profit before restructuring costs
was up |1 0% to £240 5Sm Restructuning costs
were £144m for streamlining our department
store management structures and the future
closure of our Park Royal distnbution centre,
as part of our programme to upgrade our
distrbution infrastructure Both of these will
improve long-term efficency Operating profit
including these costs was up 4 3% to £226 Im

“This year, Electrical and Home
Technology has led the way
with our Fashion and Home
categories accelerating”

Sales growth was shared across

the categories

— Home (+2 3%} We made significant
progress 1n our ambrtion to be the
UK's largest home retaler through new
inttratives such as Any Shape Any Fabric
and the maturation of our HOUSE range

— Fashion (5 0%) We expanded our Kin
fashion lifestyle brand with new accessones
and babywear collections as well as
bulding on the success of our fashion
labels, Somerset by Alice Temperley and
John Lewis & Co

— Blectrnicals and Home Technology (EHT)
(+15 5%) We were Samsung's retailer
of choice to debut their new OLED
televisions, and were exclusive stockists
of Nest when the product launched in
the UK

+19.2%

Image removed

SHOPS AS SOCIAL SPACES

Although the growth of online has been
driven by customers seeking ever-more
convenient and quick ways to shop, our
customers still want the social expenence
of visiting our shops We ve opened
collaborations with new food brands in two
of our shops, Scandinavian brand Joe & the
Juice in Selihull, and Hotel Chocolat's Cocoa
Bar Café in Edinburgh They jomn our beauty
spas and Kuoni travel concessions in our
strategy to create experences which draw
people nto our shops and give them an
experience which can't be recreated online

Image re-
moved

STRONG GROWTH
OF JOHNLEWIS COM

Sales on johnlewis com grew to £1 ibn and
this 1s part of our omni-channel approach
shoppers should expenence a seamless and
nch experience, no matter which channel
they use to expenence john Lews

Image removed

HOW WE SHOP, LIVE AND LOCK

First pubhcation of a detalled insight into the
UK's changing tastes and habits with
a spewal focus on our shoppers
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JOHN LEWIS PERFORMANCE CONTINUED

£164m

A MOBILE CHRISTMAS

For the first time this year, traffic from tablets
and mebile phones to johnlewis com overtook
wisits from desktops, making up 76% of total
traffic on Chnistmas Day Mobile is creating

a more rounded shopping experience with
checking prices in shops, looking at ratings &
reviews and posting about ther purchases
on social media all making up part of the
new customer journey

The five-week peak penod also saw a
number of records for John Lewis, notably

in the final pre-Christmas week (ending

21 December), John Lewis broke the £160m
barrier for the first ime with sales of £164m,
and the first day of Clearance being the
largest-ever for both our shops and website

Image removed

Omni-channel leadership
Ommi-channel capability and innovation

has been key to our success We have seen
growth in both shops and onhine, with shops
significantly outperforming the high street
and johnlewis com up 192% to £1 Ibn,
achieved while launching a new web platform
tn the first half Click & coltect has grown
strongly, up 57%, with the convenience

of being able to pick up from Waitrose
being particularly appreciated Collect+

was successfully launched in September
Mobile also grew rapidly this year, and visits
from phones and tablets now account for
50% of traffic to johnlewis com

JOHN LEWIS AT HOME

John Lews at home opened in Ashford on
7 November 2013

NUMBER OF STORES

40

This now includes 10 at home branches

Image removed

“We are mvesting in a new
distribution centre to support
our omni-channel proposition
and to deliver a seamless
customer experience ™

Bulding customer trust

We continued to build the value and trust
our customers expect of us through our
commitment to be 'Never Knowingly
Undersold', and our guarantees were
improved further this year through
Guaranteed Guarantees, to give a minimum
of two years' cover on any electrical item
The my John Lewis membership card was
alse taunched with 500,000 members joining
in just four months Our The Bear and the
Hare Christrnas advertising campaign was
also a huge success, with over 12 mithon
views on YouTube
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Infrastructure investment
Behind the scenes, we have invested
significantly in our support infrastructure
Our new £97m distnibution centre will begin
operations in 2015 alongside our existing
Magna Park site in Milton Keynes, further
enhanang our fulfilment capability

Shop developments

and services

Shop developments continue to be a strong
focus of cur growth strategy 2013/14 saw
the full refurbishment of our High Wycombe
shop, and we have an active pipeline of new
sites In 2013/14 we opened an at home
shop in Ashford and this year we will open

a full kine flexible format shop in York, and
our smallest shop to date at Heathrow's
Terminal 2

We have announced future sites in
Birmingham, Leeds, Westfield White

City, Oxford, Chelmsford, Horsham, and
Basingstoke New catering partnerships with
Joe & the Juice and Hotel Chocolat's Cocoa
Bar Café were faunched, alongside the first
Iittle Waitrose within a John Lewis shop

at Watford

We continue to exploit new technology
including equipping our Partners with
transactional tablets and we are the first
major department store to use Google to
map the inside of our Oxford Street shop

Andy Street,
Managing Director John Lewis

tmage removed

Image removed

THE BEAR AND THE HARE

In recent years our TV adverts have
rescnated with customers who take tme to
consider the perfect gift for their loved ones,
and this year's Bear and Hare advertisement
was no exception Following the story of a
Hare who wanted to give his friend the Bear
a Christmas he would never farget, the two
minute ammated film attracted 12 5 milhon
views on YouTube and was our most
interactive campaign ever, with Bear and
Hare soft toys avalable to buy a children's
book and story-telling Bear caves

in our shops

OMNI-CHANNEL LEADERSHIP

2013/14 has seen us continue our
strategy to ntegrate our enlme and
shop operations to meet the changing
demands our customers and anticipate
how those habits will continue to change
Our newly launched 1Pad app 1s more
creative and inspiring than ever as well
as making Never Knowwgly Undersold
enquiries more streamlined than ever
Our partnership with Collect + extended
our Click & collect coverage to new
parts of the UK allowing customers to
pick up deliveries in carner shops and
petrol stations as well as John Lewis and
Waitrose shops

Partners are traling transactional tablets
in our shops, allowing purchases to be
made on the shopfloor rather than at
central tll points The tablets also allow
Partners to access our operational
procedures and systems, meaning they can
spend more time helping customers on
the shop floor
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i’ARTNERSHIP SERVICES AND CORPORATE PERFORMANCE

Partnership Services and Corporate reduced net
operating costs during the year and expanded the
range of business services supporting the Partnership.

Financial and operational highlights

— Net operating costs before pensions reduced by £12 0m (16 2%)

— Overall costs increased by £97m due to an increase in pension costs
— Delivered key pan-Partnership projects

— 2014/15 will focus on stabilising new systems and service

Image removed

Operating costs

Partnership Services and Corporate includes
the operating costs for our Corporate
offices, Partnership Sernces, transformation
programmes and certain pension operating
costs Corporate and Partnership Services
net operating costs before pensions, including
the costs of transformation programmes,
were down year-on-year by £12 Om or

16 2% However, overall costs increased

by £97m to £65 3m due to the increase

N pension operating costs resulting from
changes in financial assumptions

Focussing on productivity
Partnership Services has grown significantly
since 2009 with the dwision now providing
business services for IT, Financal Processing,
Procurement, Personnel, Partnership Health
and Pensions administration The division
has made significant progress in improving
the productvity of its most established
operations, with financial processing of
invoices almost 30% more efficent than the
previous year

Improving Partner services

In the year, the division has also delivered and
supported a number of key projects including
the Personnel Transformation Programme
(PTP) PTP included the launch of a
Partnership-wide health service, the transfer
in of Personnel policy and administrative
tasks, as well as the launch of self service

On completion in 2014/15 PTP will provide
our Partners with a consistent way of
working and our ne managers with more
efficient processes and will give us much
deeper insight inte Partner performance

Outlook

In 2014/15 Partnership Services will focus on
stabilising the new systems and services it has
taken on — particularly in [T and Personnel
New processes need to be bedded in to
allow us to gain the full benefits of the
Investments we have made

Patrick Lews,
Managing Director, Partnership Services

Patrick Lewts,
Managing Director Partnership Services

PARTNERSHIP HEALTH SERVICES

QOur new Health Hub is the first port of call
for Partners requesting health services and
provides medical advice six days a week
whether online or by phone After trage,
when appropnate, a consultation 1s booked
with one of the 30 Clinical Case Managers
{Occupational Health Adwisers) or three
Regional Managers based throughout

the country

Since | July 2013, the Health Hub has taken
an average of 1,600 phone calls per month
and there have been 6,300 new service
requests {(including physiotherapy) We have
also prowvided 6,600 podiatry sessions to
3.000 Partners

AUTOMATIC NETTING

With the introduction of automatic netting
for payments and receipts the Accounts
Recervable team has ensured the Partnership
15 using efficent payment methods

CORPORATE

Our Group Head Office function, Carporate, directs the aims and policies which we use

to gauge how well we are achieving our core purpose — Prinaiple | of our Constitution
Corporate teams play an important assurance role through our Group functions democracy
and journalism as well as supporting our governing authorities and offering specialist expertise

NUMBER OF PARTNERS

1,900
+11.8%




FACTORS AFFECTING FUTURE PERFORMANCE

We need to continue to adapt, evolve and invest
in our operations to remain resilient and sustainable

in the long term.
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Our strategy in context

QOur strategy 15 developed in the context
of the economic environment in which

we operate [t takes into account different
economic and consumer-led scenarios and
their associated risks and opportunities

There are also risks associated with the
world economy, which we take into
account, such as commodity prices driven
by increasing scarcity of key resources and
pnrices of end products This 15 impertant
as we source from different countries
However, our key market remains the

UK and therefore, the performance of
the UK economy and the demands of

UK consumers are the ones that affect us
the most

Our retal environment

key market trends

We are Just coming out of a prolonged
period of recession in the UK, sparked by
the global economic ¢risis of 2008 Itis a
testament to our model that we were able
to grow and invest in these difficult times

During the last five years, UK retailers have
experienced testing market conditions, wath
consumer spend contracting due to low
real wage growth, job security worries and
reduced credit At the same time, there has
been a paradigm shift in the way customers
research, shop and take delivery of ther
goods, whether grocery or non-food

There 15 also increasing customer demand
for more information about where and
how products are made and, particularly for
food products, the provenance and integrity
of ingredients In this section we share
some of the key factors affecting consumer
demand which in turn affect our business
They can be broadly categorised as

— Value for money

— Service and convenience

— Trust

These are considered in detail overleaf

Image removed

VALUE FOR MONEY

Customers are demanding better value
for money with no compromise on quality
and innovation

Image removed

SERVICE AND CONVENIENCE
Technologicat innovation is driving
demand for flexible shopping according
to customers' lifestyles

Image removed

TRUST

Customers are increasingly demanding
that companies operate ethically

and keep their promises
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FACTORS AFFECTING FUTURE PERFORMANCE CONTINUED

Value for money

Customers are demanding better value for money
with little or no compromise on quality and innovation,

Image removed

Overview

Whilst we are seeing more encouraging signs
for the economy as a whole, this has not

yet come through as a significant increase in
consumer spending Ve keep a close eye on
key macroeconomic indicators which reflect
the overall prospenity of the economy and
which also have an impact on consumers’
propensity to spend

Inflation and Real Household
Disposable Income (RHDI)

Why this matters

RHDI 1s the amount of money that
households have avarlable for spending
and saving after income taxes have been
deducted |t prowdes an indication of how
much consumers have to spend In recent
years inflation has outstripped consumers’
wage growth, putting continued pressure
on RHD

Current trends

Inflation 1s showing signs of stability but utiity
price rises may prevent it from reaching the
Bank of England’s target of 2% and pose a
risk of putting further pressure onto real
disposable incomes As a result, projected
growth in RHD! 1s not expected to reach
2010 levels until 2015 This means that
current iImprovements in the economy may
not immediately transiate into growth in
consumer spending

Graph removed

Source. ONS and Verdier

Consumer confidence

Why this matters

Consumer confidence 15 an economic indicator,
which measures the degree of optimism that
consumers feel about the overall state of the
economy and their personal financial situation
It 1s a particulardy important indicator for
retailers, in conjunction with the increase of
RHDI, as confidence increases the propensity
for people to spend rather than save

Current trends

The latest data from GfK suggests that
consumer confidence 1s continuing to pick
up with increasingly positive news about the
economic outlook.

Graph removed

Source GIK

The performance above illustrates the
recent recovery In consumer confidence
after a number of challenging years

Lower consumer confidence combined with
the advent of online has led to consumers
becoming far more savvy in terms of
shopping around, companng prices and
carefully selecting products

Grocery buying patterns

Whilst pnice has a part to play in buying
deasions, consumers also consider product
quality before purchasing Recent research
shows, for example, that following the
horsemeat cnsis, 33% of consumers have
stopped buying cheap/value range meat and
processed meat ranges and 12% have changed
the supermarket they shop at, choosing

to shop at more premium supermarkets
(Source nVision online survey)

How the Partnership is responding
to these trends

We continue to invest in developing better
value products of excellent quality for our
customers through innovation, and alsc by
driving efficiency throughout our supply

chain We remain focussed on price-matching
branded products and also extending our
John Lewis Value and essential Waitrose
ranges, which offer a range of good qualty,
staple items at competitive prices At our
John Lewss shops, our Never Knowingly
Undersold promise, which has existed for

89 years, symbolises our commitment to
ensuring our customers are getting good
value for money when they shop with us




Service and convenience
Technological innovation is driving demand for

flexible shopping according to customers' lifestyles.
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Image removed

Overview

Changes in consumer shopping habits,
supported by rapid technelogical advances,
have had a significant impact on the UK
retall market and altered the competitive
landscape for ever Consumers are now able
to research products and reviews compare
prices and order their goods 24/7 on-line from
home or ‘on the move' from mobile devices
There 15 also demand for more flexible
delivery and collection services which fit in
with consumer preferences

Graph removed

Source internal data

Nearly two thirds of customers use both
in-store and online channels when shopping
with John Lewis

For Wartrose, other key trends, particularly
for grocery purchases include customers
carrying out more ' top-up” shopping

(1e shopping more frequently but spending
less money per tripy Typtcally “top-up
shops are made in smaller convenience
stores, which are located in high footfall
areas (e g ralway and service stations)

Despite strong onfine and converuence
trends, we also know that cur custorners like
to wisit John Lews shops to browse big-ticket
1items and Waitrose to select their own
produce, for example

Our John Lews custorners tell us thata
trip to fjohn Lewis 1s a ‘leisure experience’
and our busiest shopping day of the week
1s Saturday, with peak trading between
l1am and 3pm, although transactions per
hour are higher on Sunday

Source How we shop bve and look The John Lews Retail
Report 2013

How the Partnership 1s responding

to these trends

In response to changing demands, we
continue to Invest In our omni-channel
services, giving our customers the choice
of when and how they wish to shop with
us Areas of investment include improving
the customer expenence on our websites,
efficiency improvermnents in our IT systems
and behind-the-scenes expansion of our
onhine distribution and picking capacity to
cater for increased demand

We also continue to tnvest in new retail
stores and services In 2013/14 we invested
£296m in our branches, on new stores
and refurbishments We opened five little
Waitrose convenience stores in 2013/14
(one within a fohn Lewss shop itself)

Inside our Waitrose stores we have focussed
on developing services which appeal to our
customers (such as welcome desks. more
in-store product demonstrations and the
availabiity of hot drninks)

At John Lewss we have launched new
catening partnerships for example Joe & the
Jurce and Hotel Chocolat's Cocoa Bar Cafe
Druring the year John Lews refurbished the
High Wycombe branch and will open its
smallest shop to date at London Heathrow
Terrmunal 20 2014

We also provide exclusive membership
benefits to myWaitrose and my John Lewis
card holders ~ giving shoppers in store
something different to the experience they
can get online

Image removed

Partners ready to welcome customers at
Waitrose Wells

“Within the John Lewis
customer base, 50 per cent
of online traffic now comes
from smartphones and
tablet computers.”

Sourre How we shap kve and ook The John Lewts Retad
Report 2013

Image removed

HESTON FROM WAITROSE

Heston from Waitrose 1s expert innovation
that brings fabulous flavours and an
unexpected twist to favounte dishes
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FACTORS AFFECTING FUTURE PERFORMANCE CONTINUED

Trust

Customers are increasingly demanding peace
of mind about product provenance and ethical
and environmental behaviour.

Image removed

Overview

Ouwr trading brands have long standing and
consistent reputations for being amongst the
most trusted in the country Customers have
come to expect excellent service and

quality products, but increasingly they are
also looking at other factors when making
purchasing decisions They are asking

more questions about where products are
sourced, the quality of suppler working
conditions, whether far wages are pad and
the environmental impacts of the products
they buy

In Waitrose, we have seen growing
enthusiasm for British produce which has led
to an upsurge i buying British and locally
produced foods

At the same time, a move to what we call
“radical transparency means customers,
Non-Governmental Orgarusations (NGOs')
and the media have access to more
information about what we do and how we
perform than ever before Events happening
on one side of the world can become
headline news on the other in a matter of
clicks and the rise of seoal media means that
customers can easily post comments and be
influenced by other customers' views when
making purchasing decisions

How the Partnership is responding
to these trends

Our customers expect good corporate
behaviour and sound ethical, social and
environmental practices

In our supply chain, we wark dosely with
our supphers and provide them with the
tools to help them to make sound business
deasions based on expectations written into
our Constitution — to respect the wellbeing
of thewr employees, the local communities
and the environment Our armbition 15 to
increase the proportion of products we sell
that are sustainably certified This not only
assures us of integrity in the way products
are sourced but sends a positive message
to our customers through associated
product labelling

At Waitrose, we are Championing British
through our dedicated supply chains — all our
fresh beef, pork, chicken, hen eggs and milk
are 100% British — and at John Lewis we are
offering British start-ups mentonng to help
refine their products and services for the
market through the StartUp Britain campasgn

However, we can always be more
ambstious In order to meet our customers’
expectations in the future, we recogrise
there 1s much more to do to ensure we

are investing In the right way to respond to
the greatest challenges impacting society
2014 will see us undertaking a 'materiality
review’ to prioritise the issues of greatest
importance across our value chain — from the
way we source our products, to the way we
operate our estate, to the way we engage
with our Partners and customers — and to
plan and invest accordingly

For details about our executive remuneration
please see page 74

53%

of the British public see the horsemeat
contamination as a betrayal of trust

Sourte Horsemeat 1 the food supply onc year on
1PSOS MORI January 2014

SUSTAINABILITY REVIEW

For more details about these initiatives please
see our separate Sustanability Review

Image removed

PRODUCT LABELLING

We are committed to makmng our product
tabelling even more transparent and we waork
with our suppliers to promote sustainability
throughout the supply chain




Our outlook: how these factors affect
the John Lewis Partnership.
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Even though the economic environment has started showing

signs of recovery, we do not expect this to alter the current

trends in consumer behaviours and would anticipate that our

customers will continue to demand

— better value for money, as consumer attitudes towards
spending have changed over recent years

— flexible shopping options, links with recent technology, and
high levels of service across all channels

— strong ethical and sustainability credentials

As a result we need to continue to adapt, evolve and invest

In our operations to remain resihent and sustainable in the

long term

Image removed

VALUE

We remain focussed on price-matching
branded products and also extending our
John Lews Value and essential Waitrose
ranges, which offer a range of good quality,
staple tems at compebitive pnces

Image removed

LITTLE WAITROSE

Five new converience stores opened in
2013/14 and we have 23 planned to open
in 2014/15

FONVINYCAE3d WN0O dIHSYINLYYd ST T NHONIHL

FINYNYIAOD

SINTWILYLS TWIDNYNY




John Lewnas Partnership plc
46 | Annual Report and Accounts 2014

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Understanding and responding to risks in our operations
means we can make informed decisions and ensure a bright
future for the Partnership.

Risk management

Risk arises from the operations and strategic
decisions taken by every business It's not
something that can be avoided, but should
be understood and harnessed In the pursurt
of our shared objectives Effective sk
management ensures that the risks facing the
Partnership are understood and managed
approprately enhancing our capacity to
build value

The Partnership Board has ultimate
responsibility for nsk management
throughout the business, determining

the nature and extent of the risks we are
willing to take to achieve the Partnership’s
objectives Certain responsibilities, such as
overseeing the systems of nisk management

angd internat control, have been delegated
to the Audit and Risk Comrittee, which
completes an annual review of the
effectiveness of these processes

Risk 15 managed proactively throughout the
Partnership by Divisional Risk Committees,
operating close to the heart of our business
This allows us to make an agle and rapid
response to risks as they arise

In 2013/14, there was sigruficant investment
i the sk management process, resulting in
improved understanding and reporting

As this 1s a co-owned business, we am to
embed in Partners an individual awareness
of the nsk management responsibilitres that
rmpact on their specific areas of operation

Partnership Board
Ultmate responsibility for the management of risk throughout the business

Charrman's Committee
Executive Directors with responsibility for
the identification and management of key

Partnership risks

Audit and Risk Committee
Responsible for aversight of the
Partnership’s systems of risk rmanagement
and internal control

Dwvisional Board Members and Corporate Board Directors
Responsible for the risks in their areas of control

Divisional Risk Committees
Oversee the embedding of the risk management framework

Partners

Responsible for ensuring the Partnership is not exposed to unwanted nisks and for
escalatron where they believe rnisks are not being appropriately managed

Risk management framework

Comprises the policy, supporting systems and processes, and the management reporting
which enable the Partnership to identify, manage and monitor nsks

“Ye made great strides in
the way we manage risks
throughout the Partnership,
with the Divisional Risk
Committees close
to the heart of our
business operations”’
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Identifying and monrtoring
key Partnership risks

We have a formal nsk identification process,
which includes a ngorous analysis of internal
and external risks at both a Divisional Board
and Partnership Board level

As part of its annual business planning

process, each division identifies key nsks

that could threaten the successful delwery

of its short and fonger-term business plans

The risk review 1s holistic and considers

— Rusks collated from the Partnership's
Enterprise Risk Management System,

— A detailed analysis of internal operational
and business rsks,

— External market factors (such as economic

updates, competitor monitoring and
regulatory trends),

— Actions required to manage these risks
within the agreed risk tolerance, and

— Self-certificatton of risk assessment and
mitigation at Divisional Board level

The Chairman’s Committee, supported
by the Head of Internal Audit and Risk
Management, reviews the dwvisional nsk
analysts, using additional information as
required, to

- Identify and agree the key risks to the
Partnership strategy;

— Agree the ownership of each of
these nisks {typically a member of the
Charrman's Commuttee),

— Determine whether the controls and
management plan for each risk are
adequate and within the Partnership's
agreed risk tolerance, and

— Rewview the process for monitoring each
of these risks

Risk identification and review process

Following the Charrman's Committee
review, and a review of the nsk identificabon
processes by the Audit and Risk Committee,
an updated Partnership risk profite 1s
presented to the Partnership Board for
discussion and debate in order to agree the
key risks faced by the Partnershup The nisks
are reviewed by the Partnership’s Insurance
department to assess whether there is

any further scope and appetite {or insuring
those risks See page 48 for an overview

of the Partnerships principal risks and

key mitigations

Key risks and mitigations are reviewed
quarterly by each Dmvisional Risk Committee
and the Audit and Risk Committee

and annually by the Partnership Board

An Internal Audnt review is also undertaken
to test internal controls and business risks
using a risk-based audit plan

Internal and external risk factors

- T

Partnership’s Divisional Risk Dwistonal Chairman’s Audrt and Risk
enterprise risk Committee Board review Committee Committee and
management review Quarterly Risk Review review Board Review
system

Drvisional key risk identfication

Process review and controls

Partnership key risk identification

| Audit and Risk Committee reviews the risk identification processes

r Self-cerufication of nisk assessment and mitigations

l Internal Audit review of internal controls and business risks

L—J
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KEY PARTNERSHIP RISKS AND MITIGATIONS

We have invested significantly in our risk management
process, resulting in improved understanding and reporting

across the Partnership

Image removed

| Managing the delivery of change

Risk descripuon

Falture to deliver the benefits of major change
programmes, such as the Personnel Transformation
Programme and the upgrade of the distribution
infrastructure in John Lews, and the associated
Partner benefits resulting in increased costs, disruption
in trading activitres and loss of Partners’ trust

2 Operating model strain

Risk description

Several pressures, such as a shift in sates mix towards
lower margin products, growth in oniine and a lack of
fiexibility in operations create stran in our operating
model, threatering our abilty to grow profitably

3 IT operaung model

Risk description

The IT operating model 1s unable to deliver change
programmes and business plan ambitions, placing the
Partnership at a competitive disadvantage

4 Pension cbligations

Risk description
Defined benefit pension obligations place a significant
or unsustainable financial burden on the Partnership

S Business interruption

Risk descripuon

Reputational damage and financial loss as a resutt
of business interruption andfor the loss of key

IT systems

Key mitigatons

— Duning the year, we have strengthened the pan-Partnership programme governance
with Group and Divisional Change Boards, allowing for the early identification and
remediation of delivery issues and consideration of the impact on Partners

- A framework for project and programme assurance has also been developed and 1s
being rolled out, led by Internal Audit

— At dwstoral level, Project Management Offices are being strengthened to develop
change capability and process improvement

Key mitigauons
Significant investment is planned in our T infrastructure and supply chain to support
therr efficency and continue to develop a market-leading omni-channel proposition

Key mitigations

There 1s ongoing work to strengthen the capability of the [T functions including a
custorner driven priorities project to deliver the IT infrastructure and processes that
will provide resiience and protect the Partnership

Key mitigations

The valuation assurnptions and pensions funding status are subject to regular
external and internal review and ongoing monitoring A pensions benefit review
Is also underway to assess how best to offer future pension provision to Partners
in an affordable but fair manner

Key mitigations
- Key systems are tested regularly and disaster recovery plans are in place for
platinum (business-critical) systems However, these sit alongside a number of
other planned improvements designed to strengthen system resiience
— A peak capaaty and nisk remediation review 1s underway, which will outhne
required resilience and capacity requirements to be implemented for 2014/15
— Arevised data centre strategy to run more of our key live systems on our backup
data centre, which will ensure greater resiience, wilt be rolled out later this year
— A review and refresh of our management incident response process ts
also underway
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6 Data breach

Risk descripuon
Reputational damage and fines as a result of a
data breach

7 Regulatory compliance

Risk descripuon

Fallure to comply with legislative requirements
in the UK or other legal junsdictions where the
Partnership operates

8 UK economy

Risk description

External economic and competitive pressures, such as
government spend restrictions, a static economy, low
market growth or aggressive price competition impair
our ability to grow in line with our ambitions

9 Talent

Risk description
Lack of ability to attract and retain talented Pariners
with the nght capability to deliver our business goals

Key mitrgations
- We have a series of IT secunity controls in place including
— Network secunty
— User privilege management
- Malware prevention
— Network and system monitoring
— In addition, regular penetration testing and system scans are completed to provide
early identification of network or system vulnerabiliies and weaknesses An [T
controls iImprovement programme is also underway to address known weaknesses
— Although controls are in place, an increasing threat of data breach has resulted in
a review of data security with an ongoing programme of work identifying where
sensitive data 1s held and developing the means to protect it

Key mitigations

— An early warming horizon scanning system to dentify new or emerging regulatory
requirements 15 in operation

— Work 1s underway to strengthen our regulatory compliance framework

— A centralsed schedule of who holds responsibility for regulatory compliance 1s
maintaned and regulariy updated

— Support is also provided by the Legal Services department to venfy compliance
and establish policies and controls as required

Key mitigations

We continue to pursue a strategy to deliver the highest levels of customer service,
product quality and product mnovation We aim to secure value for all our
customers through our range selections and price matching commitments while
maintaining our store appeal by investing in store refurbishment and continuing to
grow our footprint through new store openings

Key mitgations

Talent and succession planning takes place annually to ensure that our top talent 1s
identified and succession plans exist for key roles Talent gaps are addressed by plans
to grow capability through trainng and development
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the Governance section,
you will find:

CONTENTS

— An overview of our governance principles and our
structure according to the Partnership Constitution

— How we have applied the prinaiples of the UK
Corporate Governance Code (the Code)

— How our governing authorrties am to safeguard
the Partnership’s future, enhance 1ts prosperity and
ensure its integrity

— An overview of the roles and responsibilities of the
committees of the Board

Our governance approach

51

Our Partnership Board members

62

The Partnership Council Report

64

Chairman’s Nominattons Committee Report 68
Audit and Risk Commuttee Report 70
Rermuneration Report 74
Directors’ Report 78
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“The Constitution of the John Lewis Partnership was
created to establish a business that is co-owned by its
employees, the Partners.”

Image removed

Sir Charlie Mayfield,
Chairman,
John Lewns Partnership

The Constitution is available to all
Partners on the Partner intranet
and to other interested parties on
www [ohnlewispartnerstip co uk

Why Is our governance

approach different?

The Partnership exists today because of the
extraordinary vision and ideals of our Founder
John Spedan Lewis

From the very beginning, the Partnership

has sought to safeguard its governance

and accountability practices to protect the
democratic principle of co-ownership including
democracy and Partner representation

The Partnership Board believes that the
structures provided by the Partnership’s
written Constitution offer the necessary level
of assurance for Partners as co-owners of
the business

How 1s the John Lewis

Partnership governed?

We are governed by our written Constitution,
which prowides a framework establishing the
Partnerships pnnaples and the way in which
it should operate Although the Constitution
has been revised and refreshed over the
years, it retains a direct connection with the
fundamental principles established in 1929

At the heart of the Constitution, Principle |
sets out the Partnership s ultimate purpose

Full detalls of Principle | can be found on page
12 1n Our Partnershup model This compelling
statement on the responsibility of co-ownershyp
15 what differentiates the Partnership from
other corporate bodies Eighty-five years after
these words were first written, we adhere to
the same philosophy

Which other regulations

are applicable?

In additien to the Constitution, the
Partnership 1s governed by its Articles

of Association It also complies with the
Companies Act, Listing Rules and Disclosure
and Transparency Rules applicable to a
Standard Listed company on the London
Stock Exchange (LSE)

if the Partnership 1s a co-owned
business, why Is 1t listed on the
London Stock Exchange (LSE)?

Both the Partnership and its immediate
subsidiary, John Lewss plc, have Standard
Listings on the LSE Many years ago, both
companies 1ssued Cumulative Preference
Stocks This s a form of share with a right
to recewve fixed rate of dvidend payment
per annum, which cumulates iIf not paid
annually it has to be pad before any
dividend to ordinary shareholders However,
they carry no nghts of ownership of the
Partnership and nor do they carry any
voting nghts, unless the annual payment

1s n arrears The Cumulative Preference
Stocks are treated in the balance sheet as
a long-term habiity of the business and not
as equity share capital Further details are
provided on page 101

Image removed

Comply or explain

Throughout the year ended 25 January 2014 the
Partnership has voluntanly sought to apply the
principles of the Code, published by the Financial
Reporting Councl (FRC) and available to view

at www fre org and complied with its provisions
except in the areas hightighted in the report with
the icon above

The Partnerships Constitution and co-ownership
model establishes a governance structure that

1s different from that of other hsted companies
Therefore the Partnership does not comply
strictly with certain detaded prowisions

of the Code

The Partnerships actual practices and governance
mechanisms are explained in this report The
Partnership Board believes that the Partnerships
practices are consistent with each of the Code s
prnciples are appropnate and offer the
necessary level of protection to Partners and
other stakeholders
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OUR GOVERNANCE APPROACH CONTINUED

Why do we voluntarily
apply the principles of the
UK Corporate Governance
Code (the Code)?

As the Partnership has no tradable equity
share capital hsted on the LSE, it 1s elgible
for exemption from the Financial Conduct
Authority s requirements relating to
corporate governance disclosures The Code
is a guide to effective board practice and 1s
based on the principles of good governance,
accountability, transparency, probity and
focus for the sustainable success of an entity
over the longer term These principles

are consistent with our Constitution, and

as the Partnership seeks to mantam its
reputation and standing 1n its dealing with
external stakeholders as well as Partners, the
Partnership Board voluntanly seeks to apply
the Code principles

Who owns the Partnershup?

John Spedan Lewss, the founder of the
Partnership, transferred his shareholding and
the ownership of the Partnership into a trust
to be held for the benefit of its members

The business became known as the John Lews
Partnerstep and the members its employees,
became known as Partners John Lewts
Partnership Trust Limited (the Trust Company)
15 the appointed trustee of the trust and is the
ultimate holding company of the Partnership

How does the Partnership share
the responsibilities of ownership
as well as its rewards — profit,

knowledge and power?

The Partnership aims to make sufficient profit
from its trading operations to sustain the
business through investment and to distribute
a share of those profits as Partnership

Bonus to all Partners This report, together
with the Partnership Council report on
pages 64 to 67, explains how knowledge

and power 15 shared within the Partnership
through its democratic structures and how it
1s governed

Our structure and governing authorities

Our governance structure 1s designed to safeguard the Partnership’s
future, enhance its prosperity and ensure 1ts integrity

The Partnership operates through a series of delegated authorities
and assurance mechanisms whilst ensuring that the views of Partners
are heard

2

s,

ohn Lewss Partnership Trust Limited
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How are the Partners'

opinions voiced?

The governing authorities’ power to direct

the Partnership’s affairs depends on the

consent of Partners

Partners express thewr opinions through

— Formal arrangements for sharing
knowledge, such as the open system of
Journalism for the Gazette and the annual
Partners’ Survey,

— Representative bodies, as shown on page
54, and

How do the management
mechanisms of the
Partnership work?

The Constitution defines mechanisms
to provide for the management of the
Partnership, with checks and balances
to ensure accountability, transparency
and honesty

The Constitution defines three

governing authonties

— The Partnership Counail

- The Charrman

— The Partnership Board

The Constitution established the
representation of the co-owners on the
Partnership Board through the election of
Partners as Drectors (Elected Directors) and
it also determines the role of the Partners’
Counsellor See page 58 for more detal on
their roles

— Through personal contact between
Partners and their hne managers

Qur

Partnership
Counal

Partnership
Board

Key
«—» Representation and communication

@ Our Governing authonities

O Ouwr Partners

O QOur Constitution

About the Trust

John Lewss Partnership Trust Limited
('the Trust Company'} holds the Deferred
Ordinary Shares in the capital of the
Company, in trust, for the benefit of

the Partners

The main purpose of the Trust Company
('the Trustee’), under the Constitution, is to
protect the Constitution and democracy of
the Partnership

How is the Board of the

Trust Company made up?

The Trust Company has five Directors the
Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the
Partnership and three Elected Directors,
who are known as the Trustees of

the Constitution

How are the Trustees elected?
The Articles of Association of the Trust
Company states that the Chairman
appoints both his own successor and the
Deputy Chairman This follows the wishes
of the Partnership Founder, who believed
that each appontment should represent
the interests of the Partnership and work
to preserve its future The Chairman's
Nominations Committee oversees the
appointment process of the Chairman
and the Deputy Chairman

The Trustees of the Constitution are elected
by the Partnership Council, as described on
page 64

How often do the Trustees meet?
The Trust Board meets as required It has
met three times during the year and has
considered and approved

— The payment of the 2013 Partnership Bonus,

— The retirement of Dawid Barclay as
Deputy Chairman and the appointment
of Mark Price as his successor,

— The financial statements for the Trust and
the Trust Company and the Auditors’
Engagement Letter; and

— Changes to the Articles of Assocation of
John Lewis Partnership plc
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OUR GOVERNANCE APPROACH CONTINUED

About the governing authorities

The Partnership Council

What is its purpose?

The Partnership Council 1s the democratically
elected body that represents Partners

as a whole and reflects thetr opinion

It 1s the voice for ensunng that the business

1s run for and on behalf of Partners

It shares responsibility for the health of the
Partnership and entrusts management of the
Partnership to the Partnership Board which
delegates its management authority to the
Charman The Partnership Counal holds the
Chairman to account for leadership of the
business in ine with Partnership pnnciples
and in particular;, Principle |

How does the Partnership
Councll fulfil its duties?

The Partnership Counal discharges its
responsibilities by receving information
from the Chairman at its formal meetings
and holding him to account for the
performance and leadership of the business

and the maintenance of the principles of
the Constritution

The Partnership Council delegates rts
work for holding divissonal Managing
Directors responsible for the delivery of
dvisional business plans to the John Lews
and Waitrose Divisional Councils and
Partnership Services and Corporate Forums
Any concerns ansing from those bodies
are escalated via the Partnerstup Counail
to the Chairman, who in turn holds the
Divisionat Managing Directors to account
The Partnership Council's democrauc
function at local level 1s conducted within
Forums and PartnerVoice which are also
democratically elected

For more information about the Partnership
Counail, its responsibiities, accountabthties ond
actions please see the Partnership Council
Report on page 64

Partnerstup Council

2 2 n 0
Waitrose jehn Lewns Partnership
Council Counci Services Council
o~ ~
I i

Dmvisional Forums

i i

Corporate
Forum

-

PartnerVoice

A ~ ~ ~
] ! [ |
Pa
Waitrose john Lewss Srtnersh1p Corporate
ervices
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The Partnershuip Council has powers,

allowing it to

— Hold the Chairman to account

— Make recommendations on policy

— Make recommendations to the Chairman
on any subject

— Ask the Partnership Board or the
Chairman anything it wishes — and
they must answer unless doing so
would, in their opinian, damage the
Partnership’s interests

— Regularly share the views of Partners on
key i1ssues

Image removed

For the first trme in our Annugl Report and
Accounts we've included a Partnershup Counci
Report from Jane Burgess, our Partners’
Counsellor Find 1t on poge 64

THE CONSTITUTION

The Constitution may be amended or
cancelled by agreement between two thirds
of the voting membership of the whole
Partnershup Councl and the Charman
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The Chairman

What are the Chairman’s

roles and responsibilities?

The Chairman must ensure that the
Partnership develops its distinctive character
and democratic vitality The Partnership
Board detegates management of the
Partnership s business to the Charrman

and he is ultmately responsible for the
Partnership’s commercial performance He
15 the Chairman of the Partnership Board, by
virtue of his appointment as Chairman of the
Trust Company He is also responsible for
the leadership of the Partnership Beard and
ensuning 1its effectiveness on all aspects of its
role The Chairman s role and responsibilities
are defined in the Constitution

How 1s the Chairman accountable
within the Partnership?

The Chairman is not only accountable

to the Partnership Board, in accordance
with the Companies Act, but also to the
Partnership Counall, n accordance with the
Partnership's Constitution

The Chairman attended four Partnership
Councll meetings during the year If the
Counal judges that the Chairman has faled
to fulfif (or 15 no longer a suitable person to
fulfil) the responsibilities of his office, it may
propose a Resolution upon the Constitution
to disriss the Chairman

Image removed

Image removed

How does the Chairman delegate
his management authorrty?

The Chairman delegates his management
authonty for the day-to-day management and
development of the core businesses to the
divisional Managing Directors and the Group
Finance and Personnel operations to the
Finance Director and Director of Personnel

What ather bodies support

the Chawrman?

The Chairman is supported in his Executive
role by the Chairman's Committee, which
comprises the Chairman and the Executive
Directors of the Partnership The Chairman'’s
Committee meets frequently to develop
strategy, business plans and budgets and to
review major operational and management
issues, financial results and forecasts, as
well as plans for the development of the
Partnership’s businesses

In addition to formal Partnership Board
meetings, the Chairman mantains regular
contact with all Directors through meetings
of the Chairman’'s Comnuttee and through
mformal meetings with the Elected, Non-
Executive and Executive Directors and the
senior leadership group of Partners

Comply or explain
THE ROLE OF THE CHAIRMAN

Code provision A 2 | states that the roles

of charman and chief executive should not
be exercised by the same indimvidual, and a
dwsion of responsibilities between these
roles should be clearly estabhshed and agreed
upon by the board This provision supports
the Code pnncipte that no one individual
should have unfettered powers of deasion

The Constitutron applies this principle by
means of a number of effective checks and
balances on the powers of the Executive
Chairman He 1s accountable separately to
the Partnership Council and the Partnership
Board and delegates part of his management
authority as detaled below Additionally,
the Partnership Counsellor and Elected
Directors, whose role 1s detaled on page
58, are able to monitor at first hand how
the business 1s being run, with particular
perspective of the Partners and the
Constitution All Directors have the same
statutory duties
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OUR GOVERNANCE APPROACH CONTINUED

The Partnership Board

How 1s the Partnership Board

made up?
The Partnership Board compnses the
following 15 members

— Chairman
— Deputy Chairman

— Four Executive Directors (in addition to
the Charman and Deputy Chairman)

— Partners’ Counsellor
— Five Elected Directors
— Three Non-Executive Directors

More detal about indwiduals on the Partnershp
Board and their roles can be found below on
page 62

What 1s the Partnership

Board's responsibility?

The Partnership Board has ultimate
responsibility for approving major policy
and strategy decisions and allocating the
financial and other resources of the business
The Partnership Board s also responsible
for reviewing the effectiveness of the
Partnership’s internal controls, ncluding
financial, operational, compliance and nisk
management systems and for determining
the nature and extent of the risk it 1s walling
to take in achieving its strategic objectives

ft 15 responsible for the overall management
and perforrance of the Partnership and
operates within a framework of prudent

and effective controls, which enable risk to
be assessed and managed {15 collectively
responsible for the success of the Partnership
and operates within a framework of reserved
matters, delegations and assurance

Quorum Three members

How often does the Partnership
Board meet and what does

it discuss?

The Partnership Board met 1l times during
the reporting year and the members'
attendance 1s detailed in the table opposite
The Partnership Board governs the
Partnership's affairs through a schedule of
matters reserved for its decsion It agrees
the Partnership's strategy, business plan

and annual budgets, induding those of
Waitrose, f[ohn Lews, Partnership Services
and Corporate dwvisions it approves and
monitors the Partnership’s revenue and
capital spending and determines each year
the amount of the Partnership s profits that
should be reserved for the mantenance and
development of the Partnership's business
and hence the rate at which the Partnership
Bonus may be pad It also monitors
performance, including that of the divisions,
against business plans, budgets and forecasts

Senior executives attend Partnership Board
and Committee meetings as appropriate

to support proposals on policy setting,
Investments and the results and strategies of
their divisions

Partnership Board members are given
relevant and timely documentation in
advance of each Partnership Board and
Committee meeting

What other committees assist

the Partnership Board?

The Partnership Board 1s aided in

carrying out its supervisory and assurance
responsibiities by its committees the
Chairman’s Norminations Commuttee,

the Audrt and Risk Committee and

the Remuneration Commuttee

The responsibilitres of these committees are
set out in each committee’s report, and their
respective terms of reference are available at
www [ohnlewispartnership co uk

The Audit and Risk Committee Report can
be found on page 70 and the Chairman’s
Nominatitons Committee on page 68

Full detais of the composition and work
performed by the Remuneration Committee
are set out In the Remuneration Report on
pages 74 10 77

From time to time, the Partnership

Board also delegates authority to ad hoc
committees to help finalise matters withun
agreed parameters set by the Partnership
Board This year sub-commitiees have
reviewed the triennial pension scherne
valuation and approved other specific
material transactions

Partnership Board

Charrman's Nominations
Committee

Audrt and Risk
Committee

Remuneration
Committee

See page 68 for the
Committee’s Report

See page 70 for the
Cornmittee’s Report

See page 74 for the
Commuttee’s Report
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The members of the Partnership Board and therr attendance
at meetings dunng 2013/14 were as follows

Appointed Retired

Number of
Partnership
Board meetings
attended

Executive Directors

Sir Charlie Mayfield (Chairmany

Mark Price (Deputy Chairman)®

Tracey Killen

Patrick Lewss

Andy Street

Helen Weir

Partners' Counsellor

Jane Burgess

Elected Directors

Kate Brewer”

17 October 2013

Steve Gardiner

Kim Lowe

Kevin Payne

Noel Saunders”

17 October 2013

Dan Smith

Non-Executve Directors

Dawid Anderson

14 February 2014

10

David Barclay

28 February 2014

10

Denis Hennequin

| March 2014

Baroness Hogg

10

Keith Williams

| March 2014

* Mark Pnce succeeded Dand Bardlay as Deputy Charmman on 18 August 013
* Nod Saunders retred from and Kate Brewer was apponted to the Partnershup Board on 17 October 2003 and so they were chgible to

attend esght and four mectings respectively

In addition to the |1 scheduled Partnershup Board meetings above, the Partnership Board also
met on a guorate basis on three occasions These quorate meetings were constituted by the

Partnership Board from those members avalable at that time, baving considered the views of
the whole of the Partnership Board beforehand

Biographies of members of the Partnership Board, including the new members can be found on

page 62

Image removed

“I'm honoured that Partners have

put their trust in me The whole
Board were very welcoming and
have all offered me their support
as | find my feet Coming from
John Lewis, my next step Is to
understand the Waitrose and
Partnership Services divisions a

bit better”

Kate Brewer,
Business Analyst IT Relationships
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OUR GOVERNANCE APPROACH CONTINUED

The Partnership Board continued

The Partnership Board and its members in more detail

CHAIRMAN

PARTNERS' COUNSELLOR

ELECTED DIRECTORS

Sir Charhe Mayfield holds the position of
Chairman This 1s an executive role He s
Chairman of the Partnership by virtue of his
appointment as the Chairman of the Trust
Company More nformation about the
Chairrman’s role as a governing authority
can be found above on page 55

DEPUTY CHAIRMAN

Mark Price holds the position of Deputy
Chairman of the Partnership Board by
virtue of his position as Deputy Chairman
of the Trust Company He 1s alsc an
Executive Director and Managing Director
of Waitrose

The Deputy Chairman acts as a sounding
board for the Charman and the other
Directors and where necessary i1s available
to Partners if they have concerns

Dawid Barclay was Deputy Chairman until
18 August 2013

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Executive Directors at the date of this
report are Tracey Killen, Patrick Lewns, Sir
Charlie Mayfield, Mark Price, Andy Street
and Helen Weir

The appointment of Executive Directors
15 subject to recommendation by the
Charman’s Nominations Committee,
which takes into account among other
things, the make-up of the Partnership
Board and its balance of skills, expenence
and diversity

The Partners' Counsellor jane Burgess,
15 appainted by the Charman and s a
Director of the Partnership Board in
accordance with the Constitution

The Partners' Counsellor monitors and
upholds the integrity of the business,

its values and ethics as enshrined in the
Constitution The Partners' Counsellor
has responsibility for the independence,
health and effectiveness of the Partnership's
elected representative bodies She is
responsible for Registry, whose purpose Is
to ensure Partners’ views and opinions are
heard She helps shape the future success
aof the Partnership and obtains assurance
for Partners about the strength of the
business and of the demaocracy and that
due regard 1s paid to Partners’ interests

The relationship between the Partners’
Counsellor, Elected Directors and
Partners enables Partners’ views to be
communicated to the Partnership Board as
a whole, allowing the Partnership Board to
maintain a balanced understanding of the
1ssues and concerns of Partners

The Constitution provides that five
Partners are elected to the Partnership
Board The Elected Directors at the date
of thus report are Kate Brewer, Steve
Gardiner, Kim Lowe, Kevin Payne and
Dan Srnith

Elected Directors are appointed in
accordance with the democratic process,
by a vote of the Partnership Council
dunng each three year term of the
Counal Elections last took place in 2012
Following Noel Saunders' retirement, a
by-election was also held in 2013, leading
to Kate Brewer's appointment to the
Partnership Board

While Elected Directors must act in
accordance with their statutory duties,
through their constitutional role, they must
reman mindful of Partners’ best interests
The Elected Directors are Partners, but
they are independent of the management
of the Partrership and they have no
executive responsibilities on the Board
Their role 15 to test deaisions and proposals
by the executive from the perspective of
the demacracy The Partnership Board
determines that the Elected Directors are
independent for the purpose of considering
matters reserved to the Board for decision,
regardless of the fact that they are Partners

In addition to attending Partnershup Board
meetings, the Elected Directors also meet
together without the Executive Directors,
led by the Partners’ Counsellor
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Non-Executive Dwectors at the date of
this report are Denis Hennequin, Baroness
Hogg and Keith Williams

Baroness Hogg's term of office was
extended until September 2014

After the year-end, David Anderson and
Dawid Barclay resigned from the Board

Denis Hennequin and Keith Willams were
appointed as Non-Executive Directors

on | March 2014 for an itial term of
three years Together, they bring external,
independent and objective judgement to
the Partnership Board

The letters of appomntment of the Non-
Executive Directors are avallable on
request from the Director of Legal Services
and Company Secretary

The Non-Executive Directors and the
Elected Directors met together without
the Executive Directors as required by the
Code, led by the Partners' Counsellor

The Partnership Board reviews the
interests of all Non-Executive Directors
annually and has determined that Baroness
Hogg continues to be independent of
the management of the Partnership and
that Derss Hennequin and Keith Willams
were iIndependent on appotntment

The Board s also confident that none of
the Non-Executive Directors have any
cross-directorships or significant links
that would adversely interfere with thewr
independent judgement

During the year, the Articles of Association
of the Partnership were amended to

allow Non-Executive Directors to vote at
Partnershup Board meetings

Non-Executive Directors are not eligible
to recewve Partnership Bonus or other
benefits, and are not members of the
Partnership’s pension schemes

SENIOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

The Partnership Board does not appoint a
Senior independent Director

Comply or explain
BOARD INDEPENDENCE

Code Provisian B | 2 states that at least

half the Board, excluding the Chairman,
should compnse Non-Executie Directors,
determined by the Board to be independent
This supports the Code Prnciple that

the Board should have the approprate
balance of skills expenence, iIndependence
and knowledge

The Code does not contemplate employee
directors on the boards of hsted companies

The composition of the Partnership Board
does not comply with this Code Prowvision
and at 25 January 2014 had three Non-
Executive Directors considered by the Code
to be independent !nstead, the Partnership
Board reflects the stakeholders of the
Partnership the Partners' Counsellor and the
five Elected Directors are neither Executive
Drrectors nor Non-Executive Directors
They are not part of the executive, as they
do not hold executive responsibilities, nor
do they hold a Director’s service contract
As Partners, they are co-owners of

the Partnership

While they are not independent in
accordance with the independence definition
provided by Code Provision B | |, they test
Partnership Board decisions and proposals
by the executive from their perspective as
Partners and co-owners, and while they must
act in accordance with their statutory duties
they are also through their Constitutional
position, mindfu! of the Partners' best
interests as a whole

Comply or explain

THE ROLE OF THE SENIOR
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Code Provision Al 2, A4, A42andB63
require that one of the Non-Executive
Drrectors 15 appointed as the senior
independent Director and be identified n
the Annual Report and Accounts and lead
the performance evaluatron process for
the Chairman

The Partnership Board does not appoint a
senior independent Director and so does
not comply with the above Code Provisions
The functions contemplated by this Code
Provision are split across the responsibilities
of Mark Price as Deputy Chairman and Jane
Burgess as Partners’ Counsellor The rofe
of the Deputy Chairman and Partners’
Counsellor are set out on page 58

The Charr of the Remuneration Committee,
who 1s a Non-Executive Director, leads
the performance appraisal process for

the Charrman As Dawid Bardlay was due
to retire as Chair of the Remuneration
Commuttee, this year the performance
apprassal process for the Chairman was
led by the Deputy Charman The Deputy
Chairman met with the other Directors,
without the Chairman present, to appraise
the Chairman's performance
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OUR GOVERNANCE APPROACH CONTINUED

The Partnership Board continued

Board independence

The Partnership Board has deterrmined
that the composition of the Board provides
a balanced leadership, appropnate for a
business that i1s co-owned by Partners
Together, Elected Directors and Non-
Executive Directors form a majonty of the
Partnership Board

Retrement by rotation

The Partnership does not operate a
system of retirernent by rotation or annual
election by shareholders The Partnership
Board considers that a rigorous process of
accountability exists to ensure compliance
with the Partnership's Constitution, especially
Princple | The Constitutions governance
mechanisms provide opportunities
throughout the year to review and
scrutinise the efficacy of each Director

Conflicts of interest

The Partnership Board mantains procedures
that allow for the regular review of potential
conflicts of interest All Directors are required
to declare pertinent interests and absent
themselves from any discussion that might
give rise to a conflict of interest A register of
interests 1s mantaned by the Director of Legal
Services and Company Secretary

At no time during the year did any Director
haold a matenal interest s any contract of
significance with the Partnership or any of its
subsidiary undertakings, other than a third-
party indemnity between each Director and
the Company, as granted by the Company’s
Articles of Association and service contracts
between each Executive Director and

the Company

The Company also provides an indemnity
for the benefit of each trustee of the
Partnerships Pension Fund, in respect of
labilities that may attach to them in their
capacity as a trustee As a trustee of the
Partnerships Pension Fund, Patrick Lews also
has the benefit of this indemnity

The Partnership Board has looked

closely at the other appointments held by
Directors, details of which are contained
in their biographies on pages 62 to 63
The Partnership Board considers that the
Chairman and each Director are able to
devote sufficent time to fulfil the duties
required of them under the terms of their
contracts or letters of appointment

Dhirectors’ and Officers’

hability insurance

The Partnership has purchased and
mantained throughout the year Directors'

and Officers’ hability insurance m respect of
itself and its Directors

Effectiveness of

the Partnership Board

During the year the Partnership Board,
faciitated by an independent firm, Board
Intelhgence, undertook the second part

of an externally facilitated evaluation

of its performance and effectiveness

The evaluation has been designed to take
place over a three-year pericd The first
stage, undertaken last year, focussed on

the performance and effectiveness of the
Board The second stage has mcluded a
review of the performance and effectiveness
of the Partnership Board's committees
Board members and committee members
were asked via survey to comment on

the committees’ roles, priorities and
effectiveness Meetings were then held with
Board Intelkigence and the Chairman and with
each of the Committee Chairmen to discuss
the themes and improvement ideas that
arose from the surveys

The commuttees have adopted the key
recommendations of the evaluation

which were 1o review and develop their
roles and responsibilities, as well as their
relationship and interactions with the Board
and management The resulting revised
committees’ terms of reference are available
at www johnlewispartnership co uk

Board Intelligence has no other connection
with the Partnership

Independent professional advice
All Directors of the Partnership Board have
unrestncted access to the Director of Legal
Services and Company Secretary and to
other executives within the Partnership, on
any matter of concern to them n relation to
thewr duties The Partnership has undertaken
to reimburse legal fees to the Directors

if arcumstances should arise in which it

15 necessary for them to seek separate,
independent legal adwvice in furtherance of
their duties Should the Elected Directors
ever consider it necessary to seek
Independent legal advice, they can rely on the
Partners' Counsellor to provide the budget

Company Secretary

The Director of Legal Services and Company
Secretary s responsible for advising

the Partnership Board on all corporate
governance matters, ensuring that Board
procedures are followed and that there

15 a good flow of information, facilitating
induction programmmes for new Directors
and assisting with Directors’ continuing
professional development
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Sharing knowledge and

relations with Partners

The Code requires that boards should
‘mantain a dialogue with shareholders based
on mutual understanding and objectives’

The Partnerstup Board 1s committed to
regular dialogue with Partners, as co-owners
of the Partnership and in accordance with
Principte 1 Partners are updated weekly

on the performance of the Partnership
through the Gazette and online There sa
regular flow of information at all levels of the
business through meetings held by elected

councils and local forums and an open system

of journahsm operated through the Gazette
magazine, which also enables Partners to
submit questions to management on any
subject Questions are answered within

21 working days The Gazette is published
weekly and crculated to all Partners

Bunng Counal and forum meetings and

through the Gazette, the Executive Directors

are able to put forward the Partnership’s
objectives and discuss performance against
those objectives Elected Directors also

attend Partnership Councll meetings Each of

these information-sharing opportunities,
as described above enable all Directors to
develop an understanding of Partners’ views

Image removed

Annual General Meeting

The AGM of the Partnership 1s held

and conducted in accordance with the
Comparves Act and the Company's Articles
of Association Representatives of the

Trust Company and the Directors of the
Partnership are entitled to attend the AGM
Voting 1s conducted by way of a show of
hands, unless a poll 1s demanded

Image removed

Comply or explamn?
RETIREMENT BY ROTATION

Code Provision B 71 states that all Directors
of FTSE 350 companies should be subject

to annual election by shareholders, and all
other Directors to election by shareholders
at their first annual general meeting, foltowed
by re-election at intervals of no more than
three years This supports the Code Principle
that the Directors should be subrmitted for
re-election at regular intervals subject to
continued satisfactery performance

The Partnership does not operate a system
of annual election, and its executive and
Partners’ Counsellor are not re-elected at
three-year intervals The Partnership instead
uses the governance mechanisms set out in
the Constitution to consider the efficacy of
each Director

The Chairman 5 accountable to the
Partnership Counal two times a year, rather
than annually at an AGM Being subject to
the Partnership Counal’s scrutiny in this
way ensures that the Chairman holds the
Directors to account

Directors are continually accountable
through the Gazette, the Partnership’s
weekly internal publication where answers
to Partners’ questions are published
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OUR PARTNERSHIP BOARD MEMBERS

Our Partnership Board is different to most other Boards,
bringing relevant skills and experience to the table through
a mix of appointed and democratically elected Partners.

CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Sir Charlie Mayfield™
Chairman

Started current role. March 2007
oined the Partnership Board 2001
Length of time with Partnership

14 years

QOcher appointments

Chairrnan of the John Lews
Partnership Trust Lirmted

Chairrnan of the UK Comnmussion for
Employment and Skills

Drrector of Central Surrcy Health
Trust Limrted

Trustee of Place2Be — Chikdren s Charty

Image removed

Tracey Killen

Director of Personne!

Scarted current role Aprl 2007
Joined the Partnership Board 2007
Length of time with the Partnership.
31 years

Patrick Lewis

Managing Director
Partnership Services

Started current role October 2042
Joined the Partnership Board 2009
Length of ume with the Partnership
19 years

Other appointments

Trustee of the Partnerships

Pension Fund

Non Executve Charman of 38M
Director of Margrange Investments

Image removed Image removed

Dwrector of Wyrombe Abbey School

Mark Price CVO

Managing Director Wartrose
and Deputy Chairman of the
John Lewis Partnership

Started current role Apnl 2007
Joined the Partnership Board 2005
Lengch of ume with the Partnership
30 years

Other appointments MNon Executve
Member and y Chairmman of
hannel Feur Telewsion Corporation
Chairman of Business i the Community
Charman of the Trustees of The Ponces
Countrysde Fund Countryside Fund
Trading Limited

ELECTED DIRECTORS

image removed

Andy Street

Managing Director John Lews
Started current role February 2007
Joined the Partnership Board 2002
Length of time with the Partnership
28 years

Other appointments

Wice Chairman of Performances
Birmingham Limned

Charr 6f the Greater Birmingham
and Sabhull Local Enterprise
Partnership (LEP)

Helen Weir CBE FCMA
Finance Director

Starced current role junc 2012
{oined the Partnership Board 2012
Langth of ume with the Partnership
2 years

Other appointments

Non Executeve Director of SAB
Miller plc

Director of Caldicott Trust Limted

Image removed Image removed

Steve Gardiner™”

Branch Manager of

Waitrose Cirencester

oined the Partnership Board 2012
Length of time with the Partnership
17 years

Image removed

Kim Lowe™*

Managing Director

of John Lewis Glasgow

Joined the Fartership Board 2007
(re clected in 2009 and 2012)
Length of ume with the Partnership
31 years

Kevin Payne”

Distribution Contract
Manager Waitrose

joined the Partnership Board 2012
Length of utne with the Parthership

29 years

Image removed Image removed

Kate Brewer

Business Analyst T
Relatonships John Lewis
Victora

Joined the Partership Board 2013
Length of time with the Partnership
10 years

Image removed

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dan Smith*

Selling Assistant at John Lewis
Kingsten

Joined the Partnership Board 2012
Length of time with the Parenership:
9 years

PARTNERS’ COUNSELLOR

Jane Burgess®

Joined the Partnership Board 2012
Length of ume with the Farwnership
34 ycars

Image removed image removed

Drenis Hennequin **
MNon-Executive Director

Jeined the Partnership Board 2014
Other appointrments

Non Executve Director of Eurastar
Nan Exceutrve Director of Select
Service Partners Limsted

Darector of Cojean

Restaurant Invesumnents

image removed

Baroness Hogg **

Non Executive Director
Joined the Partnership Board 201}
Other appointments

Chairman of the: Financal
Reporting Counal

Non-Exeauuve Director

of BG Group pic

Lead independent Director
of HM Treasury

Member of the Takeover Panel

Kerth Williams FCA™®

MNon Executive Director

Joined the Partnership Board 2014
Other appointments

Chairman and Chief Executrve Officer
Briush Asrways

Independent Non Executee Director
of Transport for Londen

Non Esceutrve Director of Ibena
Lingas Aercas de Espaiia 5A

image removed ‘mage removed
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33% of our Board Members are democratically elected

from the business — our business 1s richer for It.

ADVISOR

BOARD COMPOSITION

Margaret Ewing FCA"
External member of Audit and
Risk Commuttee

Started current role January 2013

Position within the Board

Image removed

COMPANY SECRETARY

Margaret Casely-Hayford

Srarted current role Aprl 2004
Length of ume with the
Partnership 8 yoars

Profassional qualficanions Barnister

and Salicitor |mage removed

Qther appointments.

The Partnership s representative
on the Board of the British

Retail Consortium

MNon Executve Director

to NHS England

Key

" Member of the Nominations Committee
* Member of the Audit and Risk Committee
* Member of the Remuneration Committee

Chairman
1

Non-Execuuve
Directors
3

Partners
Counsellor |

Elected
N Durectors
5

Gender diversity

Male
L]

For more information about the rofe of our ather goverming authortties please see

pages 54 and 55 of the Governonce section
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THE PARTNERSHIP COUNCIL REPORT

“During the year, the Partnership Councail has been
involved in the review of performance, holiday pay
and the Pension Benefit Review.”

Image removed

Jane Burgess,
Partners’ Counsellor

Council members

The Partnership Council currently consists
of 66 elected members {38 Waitrose,

25 John Lewts, two Corporate, one
Partnership Services), a President, three
members appointed by the Chairman and
the 15 members of the Board, who are
automatically members Over the past year,
there have been |6 by-elections and Councit
attendance averaged 97% of members

Meeungs and attendance

The Partnershup Counal meets at feast four
times a year and has three roles

— To hold the Charrman to account

~ To make some key decisions

— To influence policy

The Counal holds the Chairman accountable

for achieving Principle | by acting as the focus

of opinion in the Partnership Those opinions

are channelled through the various levels of

elected bodies to the Councl The Council

may delegate to Dvisional Councils and local

forums so that management is held

to account at the most appropriate level

The Councit has three wital deasion-

making powers

I To elect the Trustees of the Constitution
and five Directors to the Board

2 To change the Constitution, with the
Chairman's agreement

3 To dismiss the Charman

Role of the Council

Partnership Councl is central to the
business's co-ownership structure, and

its role 1s set out n the Constitution

As the most senior representative body
of the members of the Partnership, it
entrusts management of the business to
the Partnerstup Board, which delegates its
management authority to the Chairman
(Rule 3} It s one of the Partnership’s
three governing authontties, along with
the Chairman and the Partnership Board
All three are ultmately responsible for the
success and wellbeing of the Partnership

Image remaoved

How does the Counal hold the
Chairman to account?

All managers in the Partnership need to be
particularly open to challenge and suggestions
from their fellow co-owners, whose business
they have the responsibility of managing

This 15 especially true of the Charman in his
relationship with the Councl, which * holds
hin to account” by asking questions, giving
feedback and making suggestions for how
things could be improved

The Constitution requires that the

Chairman appears formally before the
Counal to account for the Partnership’s
performance as set out in the half- and full-
year results There are three stages to this
process firstly, the Councl needs to have
sufficient understanding and visibility of the
performance during the reportuing penod and
be able to understand the results in context,
secondly, there needs to be a comprehensive
debate on the proposal (see below), finally,
all Counaliors who represent constituents
cast their vote Members of the Partnership
Board and the three members appointed by
the Charman have no vote m Council

The wording of the proposal which 1s

always proposed by the President, 15 * This
Council welcomes the Chairman’s report and
supports his leadership of the Partnership
and 1ts continuing progress towards achieving
Prinaple 1"

For matters discussed at the Partnership
Board, Counailiors rely on the five Partners
whom they have elected as Directors

to understand and challenge on behalf

of Partners Counaillors are also entitled

to seek the reassurances they require to
form their own view as an independent
governing authority
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Significant feedback

on the year's developmenis

In October 2013, the debate on the half-
year results was dommated by the recently
announced back payment of several years

of hohday pay, which was distnbuted to
Partners in August 2013 following a review of
the Partnership’s holiday pay policy

Counaillors had been invited to confidental
brefings n London at the end of July to
understand the background and the Board's
rat:onale for its decision They were invited to
help shape the approach to communicating
the announcement to Partners in August

At the meeting itself, the Chairman was
robustly held to account on holiday pay,

both on how the issue was being managed
as well as how it had ansen, with a number
of Counaillors frustrated that ther advice on
communication appeared not to have been
heeded At the President's request, a report
was prepared for the Council {discussed in
detail with the Co-ownership Group and
subsequently tabled at the annual conference
in November) listing more than 40 separate
ponts where the Council's advice had indeed
led to a change in management's plans

In March 2014, Councillors shared their
wviews and challenges on our 2013/14 results
with the Chairman and reflecting their
thoughts on his leadership of the Partnership
The key debates were the experience

of Partners during a period of significant
change — both good and challenging: a focus
on IT including the experience of users,

our investment — whether 1t was sufficent
and whether we would be market-leading
There was also comment that although our
results were good, were they good enough,
how did our cash flow link to our ability to
Iive within our means and how can we be
agle enough to adapt to changing market
conditions Finally there was a conversation
on co-ownership and the dvidend this brings
for Partners

Counaillars also provided feedback on the
first draft proposal for the review of the
pension scheme Counallors really felt the
werght of ther responsibidities Their concerns
were about communications, to ensure
Partners were well informed, understood
the assumptions behind the proposal and
the other options that might be avallable
Partners also wanted to know what the
impact would be for them personally and
they expressed the view that halving of the
accrual rate in the defined benefit scheme
was too harsh

The results of the voting on the proposal to
support the leadership of the Chairman were

October 2013
Carned wrth one abstention

March 2014
Carned with one abstention

The most important decision that the
Council could make 15 to instruct the Trustees
to remove the Chairman Though such a
“resolution on the Constitution”” has never
been passed, it remains the ulumate signal of
the Council's authority

What were the key decisions that
the Councll was involved in during

the year?

The two more usual areas for Council
decision-making are changes to the
Constitution's Principles and Rules, and the
election of Directors and trustees

This year, the Counc agreed changes to
Rules 25-37 governing other democratic
bodies (Dvisional Councils, Forums and
PartnerVoice) and Rules 82-92, on the role
of the Partners’ Counsellor and Registry
These rule changes require a two-thirds
majority of all voting members of the
Council, namely 44 Counallors Both changes
were passed {two and none voting

aganst respectively)

As aresult of the changes proposed to our
democratic bodies, the Councll also agreed
to a three-month extension to the terms of
Branch Forums and PartnerVoice, thereby
enabling arrangements to be fully in place
for 2014 to be a significant year of elections
Dwvisiona!l counals and Forums move from

a two year to a three year term of office,
recognising the advantages of greater
continuity, whilst PartnerVoice remams a
twao year term, reflecting the greater Partner
turnover at a local level

Image removed

Making way for new trustees

The retirement of Noel Saunders,

Managing Director, John Lewis Stratford

City, tnggered a by-election in July for an
Elected Director of the Partnership Board,
for which seven candidates put themselves
forward Each nomination requires the
support of three Councillors proposing

and seconding, as well as a comprehensive
manifesto Candidates are then invited to join
Councillors at therr meeting and to take part
in hustings, giving short presentations about
their suitability After a 100% turnout in the
paper ballot the following day, Kate Brewer,
Business Analyst IT Relationships, John Lewns,
was elected for the remainder of the three
years to 2015

Image removed

Later in the year. there was a by-election
for a Trustee of the John Spedan Lewis
Foundation, which supports enmironmental
research and conservation projects
throughout the UK Where the gap between
meetings Is long, elections can be held
online — and that 1s what happened here
as Ged Keogh-Peters, Head of Returns &
Operational Development, John Lew:s,
was chosen for the remainder of the
Counat term

Lastly, during the year under review, the
resignation of a Partner created a vacancy
on the Pension Trustee Board The elections
were held n March 2014 Two retired
Partners, Peter White and Maunce Dunster
were re-elected and two working Partners
were elected — Victona Wheal, Senior
Manager, Public Affairs and Andrew Ingram,
Senior Group Insurance Manager
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THE PARTNERSHIP COUNCIL REPORT CONTINUED

How does the Councll

influence policy?

There are a number of ways in which the
Council influences the direction of the
Partnership over tme but in any given year,
there are three prinaipal opportunities

The first 1s through the Council's nght to
ask the Chairman or the Board any question
it wishes, knowing that they must answer
unless doing so would in their opinien
damage the Partnership’s interests (Rule 7)
In the same veun, the Council may make
recommendations to the Chairman on

any subject

Image removed

The second approach, usually at a more
detailed level, 1s through the work of

the Council's Specialist Groups — the
Co-ownershup Group, Partner Group and
Financial Assistance Commitiee — each of
which has 10 members The detall of the
Specialist Groups ¢an be found on page 67

The third opportunity to influence policy
comes through the Council’s consideration
of the Partner Survey results in July and
October, pulling together all the analysis and
discussions that have taken place at local,
regional and divisional level

Addtionally, this year has seen the start

of the pension benefit review, with the
whole Council fully involved from the very
beginning rather than the detaled proposals
being assessed by a specialist sub-committee
as In previous reviews

Addressing leadership,

diversity and democracy

The key themes that emerged during the
year under review on which the Council
sought to nfluence the Chairman were
leadership, diversity and democracy

On leadership Counallors have consistently
emphasised how much a Partner's
experience of the Partnership 1s dependent
on their relationship with their ine manager
and have highlighted factors that put that
relattonship under pressure — the apparent
inconsistency of manager Partner ratios, the
increasing amount of "signposting” managers
need to do, and the lack of time for coaching
and developing or even for listening to and
welcoming Partners’ ideas and suggestions

Counallors recognised that inspirational
leadership could not be learmed overnight
and welcomed investment in the
development of ine managers and the drive
for greater Partnership-wide consistency
Greater investment in systerns has been a
recurring theme over recent years in Council,
so promised developments that would
ulbmately release managers to spend more
time with their teams were also welcomed

Image removed

Comments on diversity were principally
borne out of frustration that progress
was not quicker Action plans have been
deveioped to address the varation in
Partner Survey scores seen across ethnic
groups However, the results of these

are not yet reflected in survey outcomes
Counaillors wanted Partners to be able to
see how the detail of the business plans
addressed these important concerns

Concerns for democracy, the third key
theme, centred around the extent to

which Partners in general, and the Council
in particular, did genuinely influence the
management Council played a key part in
influencing the Democracy Workstream, part
of the Driving the Difference programme, 1n
its refreshing of our democratic structures
and purpose Partnership-wide elections
this year provided an excellent opportunity
to cement the resulting four-level structure,

refreshed traning and renewed emphasis
on the active partnership between
representatives and the responsible manager

Proposals were comprehensively discussed
at a histonc ' Counal of Councrls” meeting
in May — the first time ever that the
Divisional Counals and representatives of
the Corporate and Partnership Services
Forums had joined the Partnership Council
for a conference

In response to the debate on these themes
in July, the Chairman reiterated the Council’s
entical role in the Partnership's structure of
accountabihty, with the Partners effectively
employing managers to run the business on
their behalf

Image removed

Davig Jones 1s the Counal’s President

and has served on the Partnership Board

as well as the Waitrose and John Lewis
Management Boards He also emphasised the
Counal's considerable power to influence
the business through its sheer honesty in
raising important 1ssues before a captive
management audience

Throughout the year, the Council has been
keen to see that change 15 properly managed
The powerful metaphor; introduced in
March, of the Charrman as chief air traffic
controller and major change projects as
planes coming in to land, was revisited at
subsequent meetings How were prionties
determined’ How bumpy were the landings?
Were there enough fire engines at the ready’
Coundillors constantly sought reassurance
that Partners could continue to trust the
Partnership, that there would be a more
consistent Partner expenience and that post-
implementation assessments would properly
determine whether we had achieved value
for money and the right balance between
what was right for the Partnership and night
for Partners
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What 1s the role of the

Specialist Groups?

The Co-ownership Group is a commuttee

of the Partnership Councll and manages

the business of the Council on its behalf

For example it determines the agendas of
the Counal meeting The membership 1s

ten Partnership Councillors elected fora
three year term by thewr peers The Partners’
Counsellor 15 also a member of the group
During the year its charrmanship passed from
Christopher Whright (John Lewis Glasgow,
Edinburgh and Aberdeen) to Karen Crisford
{fohn Lews Victoria) This past year, for the
first tme, the Group attended the Employee
Qwnership Association Conference, where
they were impressed by the enthusiasm

and widespread engagement of younger

and smaller employee-owned businesses
They also visited UK Parliament This visit
served as a helpful reminder that the Group's
ultimate purpose — as I1s the Council's — 15 to
do what 1s best for those they represent and
the Partnership as a whole

The Partner Group 15 also a committee of
the Partnership Councl and it's membership
i1s ten Partnerstip Councillors elected for a
three year term by their peers This group s
more closely involved in the develepment of
personnel policy and this year activities have
included a review of the drugs and alcohol
policy and the surte of redundancy policies
While the whole Counal has been involved
in the introduction of the new performance
management system and the inked
implementation n 2014 of a new framework
for pay for performance, the detal of both
of these developments had previously been
discussed with the Partner Group

They also spent a day with the senior
personnel team learning about the Partner
Plan, and how they and the Council can best
influence and hold management to account
for 1ts delivery over the coming years

The Financial Assistance Committee, which
15 a group of ten Partners elected by the
Partnership Council for a three year term, on
behalf of the Partners’ Counsellor, oversees
gifts and loans to Partners, usually to assist
with cases of extremne hardship but also with
some long leave projects It also makes small
finanaal gifts to Partners an marnage or owil
partnership, and on leaving, and crganises
gifts to those on long-term sick leave In large
ways and small, it made a difference to the
Iives of 3,536 Partners spending a total of
£828,266 on gifts and £669.074 on loans

Of these, hardship gifts totalled £440,703
and loans £5%7,632

Within the hardship category there are
stories of illness, relationship breakdawn,
homelessness, payday loans, funerals and any
number of other reasons why Partners suffer
problems, and where we have been able to
make a difference In some cases we are not
able to help financially, but can still signpost
to organisations which can offer support
and adwvice to those with debt problems
More positively, loans and gifts for long leave
have enabled Partners to enjoy experiences
which otherwise would have been out of
their reach

The Committee also considers discretionary
cases of Partners qualifymg for benefits in
retrement and implements, on the Counail’s
behalf, the policy on withholding Bonus
case of senous misconduct

How do we raise awareness of the

work of the Partnership Councl?
Councillors fulfil their responsibilities both
individually within their constituencies and
“corporately” as part of the Counail or one
of its specialist groups In both areas, they
aim to raise awareness of the Council's work
and this year has seen great progress in the
lve streaming of Councaill meetings For the
first time, all the meetings during the year
were live streamed to Waitrose stores, as
well as John Lewss and head offices while
around 750 Partners attended the meetings
N person

Image removed

As well as the ndependent Gazette coverage
of the agenda and proceedings of each
meeting, the Deputy Editor now also hosts a
“Live at Lunch” discusston panel After each
meeting, a full summary 1s produced and
published on the intranet alongside a short
highlights film This year, the Counail decided
that a full video recording of each session
should be avaiable to all Partners and these
fitms are also avalable on the intranet a few
days after the meeting

What will the Council focus
on In 2014/157

Under the Constitution, the Chairman has
ulumate responsibihity for developing the
Partnership's democratic witality (Rule 41) and
the Partners' Counsellor is responsible for
the ' independence, health and effectiveness
of the Partnership’s representative bodies”
{Rule 83) But the Partnership Council tself
has to determine how best it may fulfil its
role, as well as agreeing the terms of office
and election methods for the other levels
of democracy

Image removed

In 2014/15 the Councl will be welcoming the
introduction of online elections throughout
the Partnership and the introduction of
forums to John Lewis Additionally, while
the pension benefit review will be a focus at
each of its meetings, the planned calendar
covers all the key aspects of the Partnership,
including financral results, continuing
development from Partner Survey themes
and holding the Chairman to account for his
leadership of the Partnership in delivening
Prinaple |

Jane Burgess
Partners' Counsellor
10 Aprit 2014
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CHAIRMAN'S NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE REPORT

“The main focus of the Chairman’s Nominations Committee
was the appointment of the Deputy Charman and two

Non-Executive Directors”

Image removed

Sir Charhe Mayfield,
Chairman and Chairman of the Chairman’s
Norminations Committee

Committee members
Members at the date of this report.
Sir Charlie Mayfield (Chair) Kim Lowe,
Steve Gardiner, Derus Hennequin and
Kerith Williams

Changes in Committee membership
Following his retrement from the
Partnership Board, Noel Saunders also
stepped down as a member of the
Chairman’s Nommations Committee
on |7 October 2013 Kim Lowe

was apponted as a member of the
Commuttee on the same date

David Anderson and Dawid Barclay

retired from the Partnership Board and
the Chairman's Nominations Committee
on 14 February and 28 February 2014
respectively Denis Hennequin and Keith
Willams were appointed as members with
effect from | March 2014

Quorum Three members to include

the Chairman of the Committee (or his
appointed deputy} and at least one Elected
Director and one Non-Executive Director

Meetings and attendance

There have been six meetings during the
year and Directors’ attendance at meetings 15
shown in the table below

Sir Charlie Mayfield
David Anderson
David Barclay

Steve Gardiner

Noel Saunders*

MNltwlovlunlov o

Kim Lowe*

* Noet Saunders was only ehgible 1o attend four meetings which
took place up 1o hus retrement from the Partnership 8oard and
Kim Lowe was eligible to attend two mecungs

Role of the Committee

The Charman's Nominations Committee

operates n accordance with terms

of reference that are available at

www johnlewispartnership co uk and were

reviewed and amended during the year

The Committee's responsibilities are to

support the Chairman to ensure that

— There s a formal ngorous and
transparent process for the appointment
of new Directors to the Partnership
Board, who must all be people of
ability and integrity commutted to
working together and supporting the
Partnership's Principles

— There s a formal, rgorous and
transparent process for the succession
plans for Directors to the Board

- Appropnate development and traiming 1s
provided to enable each Board member
to fulfil their accountabilities as a member
of the Board

Work performed by the
Nominations Committee
during the year

Appointment

of new Directors

The position of Deputy Chairman 1s held

on the Partnerstwp Board by virtue of being
apponted as Deputy Chairman of the Trust
Company The Chairman has the authority
to make this appomtment and to ensure
transparency the appointment 1s overseen by
the Chairman's Nominatrons Committee of
the Partnership Board

The Charman's Nominations Committee
oversaw the selection and appointment
process whereby Mark Price succeeded
Dawvid Bardlay as Deputy Chairman on

18 August 2013 As it was considered that
this role be performed by a Partner, no open
advertising or external search consultancy
was used or considered necessary n order to
search for a suitable candidate for this role

The Commuttee has also overseen the
process of nominating and appointing

Denis Hennequin and Keith Wilkams as
Non-Executive Directors with effect from

| March 2014 After conducting an evaluation
of the balance of skills, knowledge and
experience amongst the current members
of the Partnership Board, the Committee
prepared a description of the role and
capabilities required for the appontment of
two new Non-Executive Directors As well
as professional experience, they considered
the personal attributes required of an
individual n order for them to be committed
to working with the Partnership Board to
support the Partnership's principles
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The Committee chose Egon Zender as the
external search consultancy to asuist with the
search for suitable candidates The candidates
were shorthsted and considered on

merit against objective criteria set by the
Committee Egon Zender has no other
connection with the Partnership

During the year, the Commuttee has also
overseen the extension of Baroness Hogg's
letter of appointment to 30 September 2014

Succession planning

Succession planning 1s considered twice a
year by the Committee, which has overseen
the Chairman's proposals for the succession
planning process for Executive Directors and
senior management Duning the year, the
talent review processes have been extended
substantially with dvistonal talent reviews

A Partnership functional talent review
process has also been introduced, which

will provide opportunities to view talent not
only through the Partnership and divisional
structures, but also in a matrix structure,
centred on Partners' skills

The Committee I1s supported by the Director
of Personnel and assisted by independent
consultants as required

Drwersity and Inclusion Policy

The Partnership Board has adopted a
Diversity and Inclusion Policy Statement,
the aims of which are supported by the
Partnership's Diversity and Inclusion

Policy (the Policy) The Partnership Board
recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Partnership Board and the
principles of our Policy apply equally to the
Board As at the date of this report six of
the 15 members of the Partnership Board
are female

Through the Chairman's Nominations
Committee, the structure, size, composition
and balance of the Board {including skills,
knowledge, expenence and backgrounds) are
monitored, to ensure that when considering
Board candidates due regard 1s given to

the benefits of diversity, including gender,
ethniaty and other charactenstics protected
by the provisions of the Equality Act 2010

Ulumately, all Board appointments are

made on ment aganst objective critena

in the context of the skills and experience
required for them to be effective It is not the
Board s policy to set specific targets by legally
protected characteristics such as gender

Induction and training

Dunng the year, the Commuttee has
reviewed and updated the induction
programme for Executive, Non-Executive
and Elected Directors Induction training

15 provided internally and includes the
Partnership’s governance mechanisms and
meetings with all Directors and senior
Partners who support the Partnership
Board agenda The training programme for
Directors includes external traiming courses
to support development and gan external
insight on topics covered by the Partnership
Board Kate Brewer has received induction
training upon joining the Partnership Board
and an induction programme has been
arranged for the two new Non-Executive
Durectors who joined the Partnership Board
after the year end

The Committee also reviewed the continuing
development of the Partnership Board and
made recommendations for the Director
training programme for 2014

Committee Evaluation

During the year the Committee undertook
an externally faclitated evaluation of its own
effectiveness The key recommendations
of the evaluation were to review the role
and responsibilities of the Committee and
the role of management that supports and
provides assurance to the Committee so
that they are clearly defined and reflected
within the Commuttee's terms of reference
Board Intellgence who facilitated the
review, has no other connection with

the Partnerstup

On behalf of the Chairman’s
Nominations Committee

Sir Charlie Mayfield,
Chairman and Chairman of the Charrman’s
Nominations Committee

tmage removed

Comply or explain?

COMPOSITION AND ROLE
OF THE CHAIRMAN'S
NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE

Code provision B 2 | states that the
Nominations Commuttee be chaired by

an independent Non-Executive Director,
comprise a majonty of Independent Non-
Executive Directors and lead the process for
board appomtments This provision supports
the Code prinaple that the process for
nominating persons to the Board 1s subject to
independent review and not dominated by
the executive

The Committee does not comply with all

parts of the Code Under the Constrtution the
Chairman s responsible for the appantment

of the Executive Directors and co-ordinates
their responsibilities He therefore chairs the
Committee The Committee also comprises
two Non-Exacutive Dhirectors and two Elected
Directors This provides a broad mix of
members, including those mindful of Partners
interests as co-owners of the business

3

The Charman’s Nominations Committee led
by the Charman oversees the process for
Partnership Board appointments and makes
recommendaticons to the Partnership Board

The Charrman’s Nominations Committee
takes no part in the appointment of the
Elected Directors, which is led by the
Partnership Counall
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AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE REPORT

“The Audit and Risk Committee’s main focus during the year
was on the financial reporting and control environment
across the Partnership This included consideration of the
accounting for significant tems, including holiday pay.”

Image removed

Baroness Hogg,
MNon-Executive Director and
Chair of the Audit and Risk Commitiee

Committee members

Members at the date of this report Baroness
Hogg (Charr), Jane Burgess, Margaret Ewing,
Derus Hennequin, Kevin Payne, Dan Smith and
Kerth Williams

Changes in Committee membership

Dawid Anderson served as Chair of the Audit
and Risk Commuttee throughout the period
under review, but retired from the Partnership
Board and its Committees with effect from

14 February 2014 Baroness Hogg agreed to
extend her term of office until September
2014 and was appointed Charr of the Audit
and Risk Committee on 27 February 2014

Dawid Barclay retired from the Partnership
Board and its Committees on 28 February
2014 Denis Hennequin and Keith Willams
were appointed as members with effect from
| March 2014

Margaret Ewing has advised the Partnership
Board that she intends to retire from the role
of External Member of the Audit and Risk
Committee with effect from 30 Aprit 2014

Quorum Three members to include at
least one Elected Director and one Non-
Executive Director

At each meeting the Committee meets

with the external auditors and the Head of
Internal Audit and Risk Management, without
any Executive Director or other executives
being present

Meetings and attendance

There have been five Audit and Risk
Committee meetings duning the year and
Drrectors attendance at those meetings 15
shown in the following table

Dawid Anderson
Dawvid Barclay

Jane Burgess

Margaret Ewing

Baroness Hogg

Kewvin Payne
Dan Smith

bnjinnjtiibs|jn|u,n|iwb

The Committee has an agenda linked to
events in the Partnership’s financial calendar
The agenda s approved by the Commuttee
Chairman and operates in accordance

with 1ts terms of reference and a forward
planner for items to be considered by the
Committee Each Committee member has
the right to ask for reports on matters of
interest to be added to the agenda

Role of the Committee

The Committee operates in accordance with
terms of reference These were reviewed
and amended dunng the year and are
avallable at www johnlewispartnership co uk

The Committee 1s responsible to the Board

for the oversight of

— Theintegnty of the Partnership’s
Annual Report and Accounts, and other
formal announcements relating to the
Partnership's financial performance,

~ External audit activities,
— Internal audit activities, and

— The Partnership’s systems of risk
management and internal control including
an annual review of the effectiveness of
their processes

Work performed by the
Committee during the
reporting period

Financial reporting

The Partnership prepares consolidated
financial statements i accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union which form
part of the Annual Report and Accounts
Additionally, an intenm review 1s prepared at
the end of the first stx months of the year

The Partnership has an internal control and nisk
management framework In place under which
the: Partnership operates, and which supports
the preparation of consoldated finanaal
staternents This includes policies and procedures
to ensure that adequate accounting records are
mantaned and transactions accurately recorded
50 that the Partnership’s finanaal reports

and communications give a fai; balanced and
understandable assessment of the Partnership,
with consistency across the finanoal statements
as a whole

During the year, the Committee reviewed
and agreed the scope of the external
audit work to be undertaken by the
external auditors and agreed the fees to
be paid to the external auditors for their
audit of the 2013/14 consolidated annual
financial statements

The Committee also reviewed and monitored
the integnity of the 2013714 interm report and
the 2013/14 Annual Report and Accounts,
including considenng the following significant
financial reporting 1ssues and accounting
Judgements and reporting to the Partnership
Board on them

Employee benefits (note 22)

Issue

The Partnership operates a defined benefit
pension scheme, open to all Partners, subject
to length of service The pension scheme
hability 1s calculated using an actuarial model
using a number of key assumptions, notably
the discount rate and nflauon rate, which
are sensitive to small changes in market
conditions Significant judgement 1s exercised
in determining these actuarial assumptions

Response

The Committee reviewed the papers
prepared by management, including the advice
obtained by management from independent
actuanal specialists on the appropriateness

of the assumptions used The Committee
discussed with management the acceptability
of the key assumptions, including the

discount rate and inflation, and reviewed

the sensitiities
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Exceptional item for hohday pay (note 3)

Issue

Following a review of the Partnership’s
hohday pay policy in the year, it became clear
that Partners who recerve certain additions
10 pay, such as premums for working on
Sunday or bank holidays, had not been

paid correctly under the Working Time
Regulatrons legislation The Partnership
Board decided to make a one-off
additional payments to those affected,
recording an exceptional charge of £47 3m
The charge includes payments to Partners,
associated expenses and an increase in
penston entitlements

Response

The Committee reviewed the papers
prepared by management. including how
the holiday pay 1ssue arose, how the

charge was quantfied and the accounting
judgements involved The Committee
challenged management on the presentation
of the amount as exceptional and the
judgements involved

Provisions in relation to long leave,
service guarantee costs, customer
refunds, nsurance claims (note 19)

Issue

As in previous years, the Partnership has
significant prowisions in relation to the
Partnership's long leave scheme, which
provides up to six months paid leave after
25 years of service to all Partners, expected
future customer refunds, service guarantees
and insurance claims Management judgement
1s exercised in determining the estimates
and assumptions that form the basis of the
provision calculations

Response

The Committee reviewed the papers
prepared by management detaring the
methodology and key assumptions used
In determining significant prowvistons
The Committee considers past use of
each provision, as well as the sensitivity
of the assumptions when reviewing the
appropriateness of the provision

Liability for unredeemed gift vouchers
(note 17)

Issue

The Partnership 1ssues gift vouchers and
records a lability on the balance sheet
for unredeemed vouchers Judgement is
exerased n determming the value of this
hability, based on redempuicn patterns

Response

The Committee reviewed the papers
prepared by management detailing the
methodology, actual experience and key
assumptions used n calculating the hability for
unredeemed gift vouchers

Imparrment {note [0 and 11)

Issue

The Partnership has significant non-
current assets, both tangible and intangible
Judgement i1s exeraised in reviewing ther
carrying value to ensure that they are

not impaired

Response

The Committee reviewed the papers
prepared by management detailing

the approach for identifying potential
imparments and any more detaled review

Summary

In respect of the five significant financial
reporting issues described above, the
Commuttee concluded that the judgements
were reasonable and the presentation and
disclosures in the financial statements were
appropnate The commuttee also discussed
these matters with the external auditor

The Committee considers that the financial
statements present the rtems listed above on
a balanced and understandable basis

External audit activities

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP are the
Partnership's auditors and provide the
Committee with relevant reports, reviews,
information and advice throughout the year,
as set out In their engagement letter

Evaluation and re-appomntment of auditors
The Committee I1s responsible for making a
recommendation to the Partnership Board,
relating to the appointment, reappomtment
and removal of the external audrtors
During the year, the Committee conducted
an evaluation of the auditors’ performance
Members of the Committee and senior
finance executives within the Partnership
were provided with an opportunity, through
an evaluation gquestionnare, to comment

on the effectiveness of the external auditors
and the audit process The outcome of the
evaluation was reviewed by the Committee
which concluded the effectiveness of the
external auditors and the audit process
were satisfactory

Audit firm tendering

It 15 the Commuittee’s policy to ensure that
there 1s audit partner rotation every five
years to safeguard the external auditor's
objectivity and independence The year
ended 25 |anuary 2014 is the third year of
the current audit engagement partner's
appointment The Partnership has not
undertaken an audit tender in the last 20
years In 2012/13, the Committee adopted
a pokcy n hne with the Code relating to
tendering the external audit contract at
least every ten years The Committee will
continue to review the legislative changes
proposed by the European Union and
ongoing review by the UK Competition
Commussion on audit tendening and rotation

Auditors’ independence and objectivity and
non-audit services

The Committee continually reviews the
nature and extent of non-audit services
provided to the Partnership by the

external auditors and receives confirmation
from them, at least annually, that i their
professional judgement, they are independent
with respect to the audrit

The Committee recognises that the
independence of the external auditors is a
fundamental safeguard for the interests of
the Partnership's co-owners The Partnershup
has a non-audit services policy that sets

out exceptional circumstances where the
external auditors may be appointed to
undertake additional non-audit work

A summary of this policy (s as follows

- Most categories of non-audit services
are prohibited,

— There 1s a specific approval process for any
work to be undertaken by the external
auditor; and

- Prohibited services include bookkeeping
or other services related to the accounting
records or financial statements, internal
audit services, taxation services and any
other work that could compromse the
independence of the external auditor or s
prohibited by UK ethical guidance

Any proposal to engage the external
auditor to perform non-audit services must
be referred to the Finance Director for
approval Where fees exceed £100,000, the
proposal must be approved by the Chair

of the Committee and where fees exceed
£250,000, the proposal must be approved by
the Committee Details of the amounts pad
to the external auditors are given tn note

7 to the consolidated financial statements
The Commuttee will review this policy in the
hght of the legislative changes proposed by
the European Union
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AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

Having undertaken a review of the non-audit
services provided duning the year, at both
the half year and year end, the Committee 15
satisfied that these services did not prejudice
the externat auditors independence

Internal audit activities

The Partnership Board has ultimate
responsibility for the Partnership's system of
internal controt and nsk management and
reviewing its effectiveness The Partnership
Board delegates the monitonng of internal
control and risk management processes

to the Committee The Committee seeks
assurance from the work of the Internal
Audit and Risk Management department
which provides objective assurance of the
effectiveness of those arrangements through
the delivery of a nisk-based work plan and
risk management activittes The Head of
Internal Audit and Risk Management reports
functionally to the Charr of the Committee
and operationally to the Finance Director
The Internal Audit and Risk Management
team has been strengthened during the year
with additional IT and project assurance
specialists It was also restructured to provide
dedicated internal audit managers for the
Group and each Division

The Commuttee reviews and approves the
scope of the internal Audit work programme
each year At each meeting the Committee
receves a report from the Head of Internal
Audit and Risk Management on the work of
internal audrt, and on management responses
to recommendations for iImprovements
made in the audit reports issued

Dunng the year, the Committee has
reviewed 20 Internal Audit reports covering
key processes, systems and controls and

IT projects and programmes in addition,
the Commuttee receved an internal audit
review of the holiday pay 1ssue that arose
during the year The Committee oversaw the
review by an external professional services
firm of the Partnership’s personnel policies
with a particular focus on pay policies, and
systemns Whilst this review found that

the existing policies were compliant with
relevant legislation and regulations, further

work was being undertaken to strengthen
the personnel policies' governance and
assurance framework

The Committee conducted an annual
evaluation of the internal audit function
dunng the year and members of the
Committee and management ware
provided with an epportunity, through an
evaluation questionnaire, to comment on
the Internal Audit function's effectiveness
The outcome of the evaluation was positive
Some concerns were raised as to whether
the size of the team was sufficient given the
nature of high-risk, strategically important
change and investment programmes

The team has since been strengthened

On all other areas role work approach,
communication and impact the results of the
evaluation were good

The Partnership’s systems of risk
management and internal control

Managing nisk 1s furdamental to safeguarding
our Partners interests This year the
Committee has overseen the risk
management framewaork being strengthened
and embedded within the Partnership as part
of a continuous iImprovement programme
During the year, a first meeting of the pan-
Partnership Risk Forum was held it was
charred by the Head of Internal Audit and

Risk Management and attended by the
Dvasional nsk teams Waitrose, Jobn Lewss and
Partnership Services have established dvisional
Risk Committees, with consistent Partnership-
wide terms of reference, that report to

their respective Management Boards

Executive management 1s responsible for
wdentfying and evaluating the key business
risks and for implementing and maintarung
systems for managing those nsks in an
efficent and effective manner

The Committee monitors the development
of policies and systems for identifying,
evaluating and managing significant risk
throughout the Partnership It also monitors
management's actions to manage those risks
and reports regularly to the Partnership
Board, which seeks regular assurance that
the systems of internat contro! for rsk

management are operating effectively

The Committee has also conducted an
annual review of the effectiveness of the nsk
management and internal control process

To support this process, the Partnership has
developed a nsk management framework for
the identification, assessment and monitoring
of significant nsks faced by the Partnership
Further details on this can be found on

page 47 At each meeting, the Committee
receives an updated Risk Report on the key
Partnership risks identified as part of the
business planning process

Strategic, commeroaal, operational, financal
and health and safety nsk areas are all
included within the scope of these activities

The systems of internal control are designed
to manage, rather than seeking to eliminate,
the rnisk inherent in pursuit of business
objectives In pursuing these objectives,
internal controls can only provide reasonable,
and not absolute, assurance against materai
risstatement or loss

Duning the year, the Committee has
reviewed the measures for mitigating risks
through approprate internal controls and
assurance mechanisms The Committee
received reports and presentations from
management covering areas such as

— Holiday pay review, as noted above,

— Processes and procedures relating to
Information Assurance, to safeguard
customer and Partner personal data,
and the security and the resilience of the
Partnershup's transactional websites,

— Key strategic contracts for goods for
resale (1e goods and services not for
retail sale), to assess comphance with
contractual terms refating to our suppler's
employment standards and services levels
and contract management The review
has led to a rolt-out of a template services
agreement and the development of a new
contract database,

— Operational risks, including business
continuity and IT business interruption and
disaster recovery, inflatonary nsks profit
protection and customer complaints,
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— Regulatory nsk management and
compliance, including, health & safety,
product and food safety An external
professional services firm was instructed
during the year, to undertake a review of
the Partnership s regulatory compliance
framework and included a * deep dive” into
the Partnership’s polices and procedures
for three specific areas of risk, anti-bribery
and corruption distance sefling and
competrtion law,

- The continued oversight and
development of the financial control and
information technology environment
for the Partnership and its dmisions and
constdered improvements (n the areas
of finanaial control and information
technology This includes the process
for Directors and senior management
confirming compliance and disdosure,

— Waitrose's compliance report with the
Groceries (Supply Chain Practices) Market
nvestigation Order 2009 (‘the Order’)
and the Groceries Supply Code of Practice
('GSCoP'") and reviewed the report 1o be
submitted to the Office of Far Trading on
16 Aprit 2013, and

— The Partnership whistleblowing
procedures that allow Partners to raise, In
confidence, any concerns about possible
improprieties incfuding matters of financial
reporting, risk 1ssuas, fraud, internal
controls and auditing 1ssues

Qualifications of Audrt and

Risk Committee members

Details of the rmnembers finanoa! and
accounting qualifications are given on ther
biographies on pages 62 to 63

Composition of the Audit
and Risk Committee
Dunng the year, the Audit and Risk

Committee comprised the following
members

—~ Three Non-Executive Directors,

— Two Hected Directors,

— One Partners’ Counseller, and

— One external Independent member

The composrtion, including the Partners’
Counsellor and Elected Directors, reflects
the Constitution and the co-owned structure
of our business

Tramning

Buring the year, the Directors have
continued to receve induction traimng

on Audit and Risk Commuittee matters
Training has been provided by external
traning providers and also internally It has
been linked to the Partnership Board agenda
and covers the Partnership's financal nsks
and financial reporting

An nduction programme has been arranged
for the two new Non-Executive Directors
who joined the Committee after the year-end

Committee evaluation

During the year the Committee, faclitated by
Board Intelligence, undertook an externally
facilitated evaluabion of its own effectiveness
The key recommendations of the evaluation
were to review the role of the Committee
and the role of management that supports and
provides assurance to the Committee so that
they are dearly defined and reflected within
the Committee’s Terms of Reference

As a result of 1ts work during the year, the
Committee has concluded that it has acted
in accordance with its terms of reference and
operating effectively

On behalf of the Audit and Risk Committee

Baroness Hogg,
Non-Executive Director and Chair of the
Audit and Risk Committee

Image removed

Comply or explain

COMPOSITION OF THE AUDIT
AND RISK COMMITTEE

Code Provision C 3 1 — The Board should
estabhsh an Audit Committee of at least
three independent Non-Executive Directors
This provision supports the Code principle
that the Audit Committee should be
independent of executive management

During the year, the Partnership Board's
Audit and Risk Committee comprised
three Nan-Executive Directors, two
Elected Directors, the Partners' Counsellor
and an external independent member

This composition ensures that the assurance
and critical analysis of the business systems,
operations and financal probrty 1s
conducted with appropriate objective

and independent scrutiny, whilst also
mindful of Partners’ interests

IONVINHOLHId WNO 4IHSYINLHY SIMITNHCIIHL

PDNYNYIACS

SLINIWILYLS IVIDNYNIG




John Lewns Partnership plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2014

74

REMUNERATION REPORT

“During the year the Remuneration Committee focussed
on the remuneration of the Chairman, Executive Directors

and Non-Executive Directors”

Steve Gardiner

Image removed

Kim Lowe

Image removed

Committee members

Members at the date of this report
Benis Hennequin (Chair), Steve Gardner,
Baroness Hogg and Kim Lowe

Changes in Committee membership
Durng the year, the Commttee was chared
by Dawd Barclay, a Non-Executive Director
David Barclay retired from the Board at the
end of February 2014

Denis Hennequin was appointed Chair
of the Remuneration Committee from
| March 2014

Quorum Two members, to include one
Non-Executive Director and one Elected
Director When approving the remuneration
of Non-Executive Directors, the quorum 1s
two Elected Directors

Meetings and attendance

There have been nine Remuneration
Committee meetings during the year and
Directors’ attendance at those meetings 15
shown in the table below

Dawvid Barclay

Steve Gardiner

Baroness Hogg

Wi~

Kim Lowe

Under the terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee, Non-Executive
members take no part in the deliberations
with regard to Non-Executive remuneration
and therefare David Barclay and Baroness
Hogg were only ehgible to attend seven
Remuneration Committee meetings

Role of the Committee

The Remuneration Committee has
oversight of the apphcation of the pay
policy to executive remuneration

The Committee operates In accordance
with terms of reference These were
reviewed during the year and are available
at www johnlewispartnership co uk

The policy needs to attract, retain and
motivate executive management of the
quality required to run the Partnership
successfully without paying more than is
necessary, based on the market rate

As well as submutting a recommendation on
the Charrmans pay to the Parinership Board
and setting the pay of the Partnership's
Executive Directars, this year the
Remuneration Committee has

— Considered the pay benchmarking
methodology for members of the Charrman's
Committee, the Partners’ Counsellor,
Directors reporting to the Chairman and
dwisional Management Boards,

— Reviewed senior reward, agreeing to
rebalance the value of pension and basic
salary within the total reward package for
the Executive Directors,

— Considered the remuneration for the
Deputy Chairman,

- Reviewed the Remuneration Commuittee
Terms of Reference and Roles and
Responsibilities, and

— Considered the remuneration of Non-
Executive Directors (Elected Director
Committee members only)

The agenda for each meeting 1s approved

by the Commuttee Chairman and each

Committee member has the right to request

reports on matters of interest

Pay and reward in the Partnership
In 2013/14, the Partnership spent £1,754m
on employment and related costs This
represented 19% of the Partnership’s
revenue £1,27Im was spent on pay and
every Partner recerved 15% of thew gross pay
as a Partnership Bonus, at a cost of £202 5m

How 15 pay determined in
the Partnership?

Each Job in the Partnership has a pay range
that s informed by the market The rate of pay
for each Partner 1s reviewed each year, based
on their performance and following a review
with their ine manager All Partners have the
opportunity to increase their pay through the
pay range as their performance develops

Partners who display outstanding performance
may be recognised with special bonus awards
of up to 0% of salary

This approach s underpinned by Rule 6! and
Rule 62 of the Constitution

RULE 6l

“The Partnership sets pay ranges which
are informed by the market and which are
sufficient to attract and retain high calibre
people Each Partner is paid a competitive
rate for good performance and as much
above that as can be |ustified by better
performance Partnership Bonus is not
taken inte account when fixing pay rates

RULE 62

"Pay rates must be dectded with such care
that if they were made public each would
pass the closest scrutiny Managers are
responsible for ensuring that Partners are
paid fairly in comparison with others who
make a simsar contribution™

Under Rule 44 of the Constitution, the
Chairman s ultimately responsible for
ensurtng that the system for deading the pay
and benefits of indmdual Partners 1s fair
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How Is the pay for Executive

Directors determined?

The same principles apply to setting pay for
the Board as for alt Partners

How do we ensure Committee

member independence?

The Remuneration Committee consists

of four members, including two Non-
Executive Directors and two Elected
Directors No decisions can be made by
the Remuneration Committee without

at least one Non-Executive Director and
one Elected Director present, apart from
when considering Non-Executive Directors’
remuneration, when two Elected Directors
are required

There were nine meetings dunng the year,
and Dwrectors’ attendance at meetings 1s
shown in the table on page 74

No member of the Committee takes
part in any defiberations affecting their
own remuneration

Who advises the

Remuneration Committee?

The Committee has retaned Towers Watson
as independent remuneration consu'tants to
adwise generally on remuneration and related
matters Towers Watson also provides advice
to the Partnership on the Partnership’s job
evaluation system

The Commuttee was advised during the year

by Tracey Killen, Director of Personnel, and
Andrew Clark, Head of Reward

How does the Remuneration

Committee determine pay?
When considering rates of pay, the
Remuneration Committee takes

into account

— Indwidual performance, ncluding the
achrevement of specified personal
objectives and the atutude demonstrated
in achieving those objectives,

— The performance of the function
or dvision for which the Partner is
responsible, and/or Group performance,
where appropnate,

— The market context, based on the
advice of Towers Watson, who
are the Committee’s ndependent
remuneration consultants,

— The overall positioning of Partnership
pay aganst the market, including pension
provisions, and

- Rule 63 of the Constitution in the case of
the highest-paid Partner

The Remuneration Committee considers
and reviews each Executive Director’s
overall package each year, ncluding base

pay and pension arrangements The overall
package Is compared with amounts paid to
Executives in other similar organtsations
When locking at the reward packages of
other organisations, the Remuneration
Committee focusses on the upper quartile
value of cash compensation, including salary
and target annual bonus, as well as pension
value, as a benchmark for rewarding good
perfarmance The comparison excludes the
value of long-term mcentives, share and share
option schemes, which are widely available in
the market at executive board level

tmage removed

Comply or explain’

COMPOSITION Of THE
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Code Provision D 2 1 states that the board
shoutd establish a remuneration committee
of at least three ndependent Non-Executive
Directors This provision supports the Code
prnaple that the commyttee should be
independent of executive management

The Remuneration Commrtiee compnses
two, rather than three, Independent Non-
Executive Directars and two Elected Directors
This provides a broad mix of members who
are ndependent of executive management and
mindful of the Partrers’ interests

Comply or explain’

ROLE OF THE
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Code Pravision D 2 2 states that the
remuneration committee should have
delegated responsibility for setting
remuneration for all Executive Directors
and the chairman, including pension

rights and any compensation payments
This provision supports the Code principle
that remuneration should be set in a formal
and transparent manner

The Remuneration Committee does not
have delegated responsibility for setting
the Chawrman's remuneration, but instead
recommends to the Partnership Board the
remuneration package for the Chairman

Under the terms of Rule 63 of the
Consttution the highest paid Partner's pay
15 subject to a cap by reference to a formula
related to the pay of other Partners

IDNVINEONI E¥NO JIHSYIN LYV SIAMTTNHOI KL

IONYNUIAOD

SINIWILYLS TYIDNYNI




John Lewss Partnership plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2014

76

REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

What 15 the Chairman paid? (audited)
In the year under review, the value of the
Chairman'’s total reward increased by 2 8%
to £1 520000 The total reward package 1s
made up of the following

£ 2014 2013

Pay 904,000 825,000

Partnership Bonus 136,000 140,000

Pension supplement 466,000 425000

n hicu of further defined

pension accrual

Cash value of benefits 14,000 18,000
1,520,000 1478000

What about Rule 63?

RULE 63

“The pay of the highest-paid Partner will
be no more than 75 times the average
basic pay of non-management Partners
calculated on an hourly basis ™

In 2013/14, the pay of the highest-paid
Partner, the Chairman was £304,000,
which was 66 times the average basic pay of
non-management Partners calculated on an
hourly basis

Although Rule &3 itself applies only to

basic pay, the Remuneration Committee
also considers each year the relationship
between the total reward, including pension
allowance and other benefits, as well as pay,
of the highest-paid Partner and the average
total reward of non-management Partners
with three or more years' service (who are
eligible for membership of the Partnership s
non-contributory defined benefit

pension scheme)

The Committee values defined benefit
pension benefits on a "buy-out * basis that

15 the estimated cost of obtaining similar
benefits in the market On this basis, the total
reward excluding Partnership Bonus of the
Chairman who was the highest-paid Partner
in the year ended 25 January 2014 was

£1 384,000, which was 69 tmes the average
total reward, excluding Partnership Bonus,
of non-management Partners with three or
rmore years service

The review of Executive Directors’ pay
takes account of not only what has been
achieved, but also how it has been achieved
This reflects the same princaiples taken in the
My Performance’ appraisal framework used
for all Partners

What are the pension
arrangements for members

of the Board? (audited)

The Chairman, Executive Directors and
Partners’ Counsellor have all ceased to
accrue further pension benefits in the
Partnerships pension scheme One Director
Jjoined the Partnership in 2012 and has not
joined the Partnership's pension scheme

In lieu of pension accrual for current service,
the Chairman, Executive Directors and
Partners’ Counsellor each received a monthly
pension supplement These supplements are
cash payments that are broadly equivalent In
value to the defined benefit pension that the
individual would previously have accrued in
the Partnership’s pension schemes

The pension arrangements for the Chairman,
Executive Directors and Partners’ Counsellor
will be reviewed as part of the broader
ongoing review of the pension scheme

How much 1s the pension
supplement? (audited)

During the year ended 25 January 2014,
the total pension supplement paid to
the Chairman, Executive Directors and
Partners’ Counsellor was £2,022,000
(2013 £2.066.000)

What s the value of the defined
benefit pension for the Executive

Directors? (audited)

The aggregate annual defined benefit pension
entitlement from the age of 60, accrued

at the end of the year, for the Chairman,
Executive Directors and Partners’ Counsellor
who have accrued pension, and who served
on the Partnership Board during any part of
the year were as follows

2014 2013
£50,000 — £100,000 | !
£100,001 — £150,000 2 2
£150,001 - £200,000 | f
£200001 — £250.000
TOTAL

[ 8]
[t

For the Chairman, Executive Directors and
Partners’ Counsellor who served on the
Partnership Board dunng any part of the
year, the aggregate defined benefit pension
entitlement accrued at the end of the year
was £972,000 per annum for six indmduals
(2013 £930.000 for six ndividuals)

The accrued pensions for the Chairman,
Executive Directors and Partners’ Counsellor
increase in ine with either price inflation

or future pay increases, depending on their
individual arrangements Where there

are any accrued defined benefit pensions
remarmntng on an unfunded basts, the
Partnership has made provision for the
associated lability

In addition, most of the Directors are entitled
to temporary pensions, payable from age 60
until thewr state pension starts The aggregate
entitlement to temporary pensions was
£35,000 per annum for four individuals

(2013 £34,000 for four ndwiduals) For those
Directors where there was an increase, the
transfer value of the aggregate increase in
accrued pension entitlement above consumer
price inflation during the year was £151,000
ncuding termporary pensions

What pensicn will the Chairman
recejvel (audited)

The Charman’s aggregate defined benefit
pension entitlerment from the age of 60
accrued at the end of the year was £245,000
per annum {2013 £224,000 per annum)

What are the contractual notice
periods for Executive Directors?
Contracts of employment for the Chairman
and the Executive Directors prowvide for a
notice period of between six months and
one year No contract contains a provision
regarding early termination compensation

No compensation for loss of office was paid
to departing directors duning the period
under review or to the date of this report
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What are the Executive Directors,
the Non-Executive Directors and
Partners' Counsellor paid? (audited)

The table below shows the number of
Directors and their total remuneration for the
year, including both Partnership Bonus and the
pension supplements described below, for all
Directors except the Elected Directors

2014 013
£ - £50,000 | |
£50,001 - £100,000 2 3
£300,001 — £350,000 | 1
£700,001 - £750,000 2 3
£1050,001 - £1,100,000 2 -

£1,100,001 - £1,150,000 - 1
£1,200,001 - £1,250000
£1,450,001 — £4,500,000 - |
£1 500001 — £1,550,000 | -

The Chairman, Executive Directors, Elected
Directors and Partners' Counsellor are also
entitled to the same benefits as all other
Partners, including shopping discount, long
leave and other subsidies

How do we compensate the
Elected and Non-Executive
Directors for thewr contributions
to the Board?

Elected Directors are not paid for their
service on the Partnershup Board, as their pay
1s determined by their respective rofes and
responsibilities in the Partnership Their pay 1s
therefore not considered by the Committee
or the Partnership Board

Non-Executive Directors receive fixed
annual fees, which are reviewed periodically
and set at levels that reflect each Directors
tme commutment and responsibilities Non-
Executive Directors’ fees are determined

by the Elected Directors on behalf of the
Committee Non-Executive Directors are
not entitled to Partnership Bonus, or to any
other salary or benefits from the Partnership

Committee evaluation

Dunng the year, the Commuttee facilitated by
Board Inteligence, undertook an externally
facilitated evaluation of its own efiectiveness
The key recommendations of the evaluation
were to review the role of Committee and
the role of management that supports and
provides assurance to the Committee so that
they are clearly defined and reflected within
the Committee Terms of Reference

As a result of its work duning the year, the
Committee has concluded that it has acted
in accordance with its terms of reference and
operating effectively

What about external
appointments’

An Executive Director with an external
appointment may not retain any earmings
from such appointment unless it dates from
before he or she joined the Partnership

The small prnt

Thus report forms part of the Directors’
Report and has been prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements applying

to the Partnership, which are set out In
Schedule 5 of the Large and Medium-sized
Companies and Groups (Accounts and
Report) Regulatrons 2008 (‘the Regulations’)

Stnce the Partnership is not quoted, and has
no share-based incentive schemes or other
long-term incentives, the Partnership Board
has deaided not to adopt the full disclosure
provisions applicable to quoted compantes
However in the interests of transparency,
certan disclosures within this Report go
beyond the requirements of Schedule 5 of
the Regulations

The Directors’ earnings section on pages 76
and 77 1s cross-referenced from note 9 of the
financial statements and forms part of the
audited financial statements

On behalf of the Remuneration Committee

Steve Gardiner

Kim Lowe

Elected Directors and members of the
Remuneration Committee

10 April 2014

Image removed

Comply or explain?

REMUNERATION FOR NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code Provision D 2 3 states that the board
should determine the remuneration of the
Non-Executive Directors Where permitted
by the Articles of Association, the board
may, however, delegate this responsibility

to a commuittee that might inctude the chief
executive The provision supports the

Code prinaple that care should be taken to
recognise and avoid conflicts of interest

The Partnersh:p does not comply with the
Code as the Partnershup Board does not
determine the remuneration for Non-
Executive Directors Instead, thss i1s the
responsibility of the Elected Directors,

who receve a recommendation from the
Director of Personnel, while also considering
the Chairman’s views and relevant market
data prowvided by the independent external
remuneration consultant

Steve Gardiner and Kim Lowe, the two
Elected Directors who served on the
Remuneration Committee throughout the
year, are signing the Remuneration Report
n place of David Barclay who served as
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
dunng the year but who retred from the
Partnership Board after the year end
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors present their
report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended
25 January 2014

Directors are required to make a statement
on key events during the Partnership's year,
confirming the state of the business and
certifying that it 1s being run responsibly

Principal activity and future
developments

The Partnership's principal actwity 1s
retaiing with the main trading operations
being the Waitrose and John Lewis
businesses The Company controls the
entities histed in note 36, compnising John
Lewis department stores, John Lewis at
home stores, johnlewis com, a liaison office
in Gurgaon, India, Waritrose supermarkets,
Waitrose convenience stores, waitrose com,
business to business contracts i the UK and
abroad and anciltary manufacturing activities
(together the Partnership) An indication

of likely future developments in the
Partnership can be found on page 45

Corporate governance

The Partnership's statements on corporate
governance can be found in the Governance
Report on pages 50 to 79 of these financal
statements These also include the Audit
and Risk Commuttee Report, the Chairman's
Nominathons Committee Report and
Remuneration Report The Governance
Report forms part of this Directors’ Report

Going concern

After reviewing the Partnership's operating
budgets, investment plan, finanang
arrangements and possible financial risks, the
Directors consider that the Partnership has
adequate financial resources to continue in
operation for the fareseeable future

A full descnipuion of the Partnership’s
business activities, financal position, cash
flows, hquidity position, committed faciities
and borrowing position together with the
factors likely to affect its future development
and performance, are set out In the Strategic
Report The Partnership has, at the date of
this report, sufficient financing available for its
estimated requirements for the foreseeable
future and, accordingly, the Directors are
satisfied that 1t 1s appropnate to adopt

the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements

Dmdends

No dividends were paid on the Deferred
Crdinary Shares (2013 nil)

Dividends on Preference stocks
were £222,000 (2013 £222,000)
Dwvidends on SIP Shares {issued in
connection with BonusSave) were
£1.712,000 (2013 £1,857,000)

Directors' interests

Under the Constitution of the Partnership,
the Executive Directors, Elected Directors
and Partners’ Counsellor, as employees of
John Lewss plc, are necessarily nterested in
the 612,000 Deferred Ordinary Shares in
John Lewss Partnership plc, which are held
i trust for the benefit of employees of John
Lewss plc and certain other companies

Any conflicts of interest are disclosed on
bage 5% and details of the Directors’ service
agreements and notice perods are given on
page 76

Employees

The Constitution of the Partnership
provides for the democratic involvement of
employees (our “Partners”) as co-owners
of the business Partners are provided with
extensive information on all aspects of
business operations and are encouraged

to take an active interest in promoting its
commercal success Further information
regarding the Partnership's policies in relation
to diversity and applications for employment
made by disabled persons and provisions for
disabled Partners are provided below

BonusSave

The Partnership operates BonusSave, a Share
Incentive Plan (‘the Plan’), which 1s avallable

to all Partners and has been approved by
HMRC In conunction with the announcement
of the annual results, all Partners are invited

1o enter nto a savings contract to save up

to a maximum of £4,500, in any one year, n
the Plan The Plan allows for the investment
made by Partners to be held in shares in the
Partnership, In a class created speafically for
this purpose known as SIP Shares Details of SIP
Shares can be found in note 16 The SIP Shares
do not carry voting nghts cannot be sold or
transferred out of the Partnership and are,

at all tmes, held in trust for the benefit of the
respective Partners in the name of john Lews
Partnership Trust Limted

Employment

All employees can benefit from the
Partnership's traming and development
polices, and further information can be found
on page |5 The Partnership recruits people
with disabiities to surtable vacancies on ment
Where disability occurs during the penod of
employment, every effort 1s made to continue
to provide sutable employment with the
provision of appropnate traning

The Partnership seeks 1o embrace diversity
and this 15 reflected in all we do The Board

15 therefore committed to providing equal
opportunries for all in employment at all levels
of the orgarusation, regardless of Indndual
differences such as gender and ethruc ongin

Human Rights

The Partnership recognses its responsibility
to respect human rights, in particular

those expressed in the International Bill of
Human Rights and the principles concerning
fundamental rights set cut in the International
Labour Organisation’s Declaration on
Fundamental Principles and Rights at Work

Central to this recognition 1s Principle

| of the Partnership Constitution 'The
Partnership’s ultimate purpose is the
happiness of all its members, through their
worthwhile and satisfying employment

n a successful business’ and Section 2
covering Partners nights and responsibilities
In addition, rule 96 of the Partnership
Constitution states ‘the Partnership expects
its suppliers to obey the law and to respect
the wellbeing of their employees, their local
communities and the environment’

All own-brand suppliers are required to
comply with the Partnership Responsible
Sourang Code of Practice (‘ the Code™),

as set out in our Terms and Conditions of
Purchase The code is based on the Ethical
Trading Invative Base Code and on the
conventions of the Internationat Labour
Orgarusation The Partnership expects its
supphers to have policies and procedures

in place to ensure compliance with the

code and as such potential and existing
suppler sites are monitored regularly
through independent ethical audits

Where non-compliances are found, remedial
action 15 undertaken to mitigate them

The Partnership also undertakes capacity-
building and traning programmes with its
suppliers to ensure long term improvements
to working conditions in its supply chain
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Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Global GHG emssions data for the period
27 January 2013 to 25 January 2014

Tonnes of
COne

Emissions from
Combustion of fuel & operation 215179
of facihiues
Electncity purchased for own use 271,112
‘Water supply and treatment, 60,067
business travel by rail or ar,
waste to landfill
Total 546,358
Intensity measurement 537

Erisstons reported above
normahsed to per £million sales

Methodology

The Partnershp has reported on all of the
emission sources as required under the
Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and
Directors’ Reports) Regulations 2013

The reporting followed the 2013 UK
Government environmental reporting
guidance (Chapter 2} and used the GHG
Protoco! Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standard (revised edition), data
gathered to fulfit our requirements under
the CRC Energy Efficiency scheme, and,
where avallable, emission factors from UK
Government's GHG Conversion Factors
for Company Reporting Excluded from this
scope are emissions as a result of energy
from heat networks and minor biomass
fuel consumption and emissions from
sites operated by stores under licence,
franchisees (both overseas and Welcome
Break franctuses) The Partnership has
commissioned DNV Two Tomorrows
Limited to undertake ndependent assurance
of Greenhouse Gas emissions data in its
Sustainabiity Review 2014 DNV Two
Tomorrows Limrted performed its work
using international assurance standards,
including the International Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Rewvised)
- ‘Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial
Information’ and 1SO19011 For a full
description of the wark they performed,
please see their assurance statement

in our 2014 Sustainability Review on
www johnlewispartnership co uk

Political donations
The Partnership made no political donations

Grocenes (Supply Chain Practices)
Market Investigation Order 2009
(‘the Order') and the Groceres
Supply Code of Practice (‘GSCoP”)

Wartrose has remained compliant with the
Order and the GSCoP dunng the penod
and the business continues to ensure that it'’s
comprehensive Partner training programme
(including annual refresher and new

starter traning), together with the ongomng
rmonitoring of suppher contracts, promotes
the necessary awareness and behaviours in
order to ensure comphance

As required by the Order and the GSCoP,
the Code Compliance Officer i1s obliged
to present a report detailing Wartrose's
compliance to the Partnership’s Audit and
Risk Cornmittee for approval The report
15 then submitted to the Graceries Code
Adjudicator and the Competitions and
Markets Authority (previously the Office
of Farr Trading)

The Audit and Risk Committee, which
met on 8 April 2014, approved the Code
Compliance Officer's report on Waitrase's
compliance for the 12 month penod
ending 25 January 2014 The Audit and
Risk Committee was pleased to note that
Waitrose had not been the subject of any
supplier or supply chan disputes under
the Order or GSCoP dunng the said
period The Audit and Risk Committee
also noted that Waitrose's approach to
GSCoP compliance reflects the Partnership’s
comrutment to ts overarching prnaple
of fairness that has always governed its
relationships with supplhers

Capital structure and purchase
of shares

At 25 January 2014, the Partnership had in
issue 3,696,995 5% Cumulative Preference
stock 500,000 75% Cumulative Preference
stock, 612,000 Deferred Ordinary Shares
and 97,250,000 SIP Shares Under the
Constitution, the 612,000 Deferred Ordinary
Shares in John Lewis Partnership plc are
held in trust for the benefit of employees
of John Lews plc and certain other trading
companies within the Partnership

There are no voting nghts attached to the
Cumulative Preference stocks unless the
divdend 1s six months in arrears or unless a
resolution 15 proposed which directly affects
the interest of these shares as a class

At the Annual General Meeting held on

6 june 2013, the Partnership was authonsed
to make market purchases of up to
£3,696.995 in nominal amounts of the 5%
Cumulative Preference stock and up to
£500,000 i nominal amounts of the 75%
Cumulative Preference stock representing
the remaining stock in 1ssue No purchases
were made duning the year, and shareholders
will be invited to renew the authority at

the Annual General Meeting, as detaled

on page 130 The Partnership Board
considers that these stocks are an inefficient
form of fixed interest finance and that it
would be advantageous to the Partnership
to acquire them over time as suitable
opportunities arise

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting will be held at
1345 on Thursday 5 June 2014 at Partnership
House, Carlisle Place, London, SWIP |BX

Auditors and disclosure

of information to auditors

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP,
have indicated ther willingness to continue
n office, and a resolution that they be
reappointed will be proposed at the Annual
General Meeting, together with a resolution
to authorise the Directors to determine the
auditors’ remuneration

~ The Directors of the Partnership Board

have taken all the necessary steps to make
themselves aware of any information
needed by the Partnership’s auditors in
connection with preparing their report and
to establish that the auditors are aware of
that information As far as the Directors
are aware, there 1s no such information of
which the Partnership's auditors have not
been apprised

Approved by the Dhrectors and signed on
behalf of the Partnership Board

A7

Margaret Casgly-Hayford
Director of Legal Services and
Company Secretary

10 April 2014
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2013/14: An overview

Throughout our business, through the Gazette, Partner Intranet and local

forums, we make our numbers as accessible and meaningful as possible

This year, we have extended this approach to our Annual Report and
Accounts to help everyone get a better understanding of our financial

performance and condition.
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Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 25 January 2014
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2014 2013
(restated)*
Hotes £m fm
24 Gross sales 10,1715 35413
4 Revenue 90278 84655
Cost of sales (6.008 9} (5640 1)
Gross profit 3,0189 28254
Other operating ncome 742 641
5 Operating expenses before exceptional tem (2,622 2) (2436 1)
4 Operatng profit before exceptional item 4709 4534
3 Exceptional item (47 3) -
4 Operating profit 4236 453 4
b Finance costs (97 5} (1120
6 Finance income 30 |9
Profit before Partnership Bonus and tax 3291 3433
Partnership Bonus (202 5) (2108}
Profit before tax 126 6 1325
8 Taxation (25 0) (315)
Profit for the year 1016 1010
4 Profit before Partnership Bonus, tax and exceptional ixem 376 4 3433
* Refer to note |
Consolidated statement of comprehensive expense
for the year ended 25 January 2014
2014 2013
(restated)*
tozes £m fm
Profit for the year 101 6 1010
Other comprehensive income/(expense)
ltems that will not be reclasstfied to profit or loss
22 Remeasurement of defined benefit pension schemes (245 2) {2600}
Movement in deferred tax on pension schemes 59 133
Movement in current tax on penston schemes 27 4 346
Hems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Met (loss)/gain on cash flow hedges 7 37
Other comprehensive expense for the year (221 6) (2084)
Total comprehensive expense for the year {1200) (107 4)

* Refertoncte |
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Consolidated balance sheet
as at 25 January 2014

2014 2013
Notes £m £m
Non-current assets
10 intangible assets 2669 2137
It Property, plant and equipment 39872 38209
13 Trade and other receivables 613 558
8 Deferred tax asset 691 256
43845 41160
Current assets
12 Inventories 5540 51490
13 Trade and other recevables 2259 192 1
Current tax recenable - 29
21 Dervative financial instruments 07 42
14 Cash and cash equivalents 3589 5344
1,1395 1,247 6
Total assets 5,524 0 53636
Current habilities
16 Borrowings and overdrafts {75 6) (1563)
17 Trade and other payables {1,499 7) {4.3640)
Current tax payable (02) -
18 Finance lease liabilities (33) [€30))
19 Provisions (1209} (H100
21 Dervative financial instruments 59 {06)
(1,705 &) (1,6339)
Non-current labiliues
16 Borrowings (728 2) {7147}
7 Trade and other payables (135 5) (1193}
18 Finance lease llabilities (324) (359
{9 Provisions {137 2) (1362}
22 Retirement benefit obligations {1,003 4) {8221)
(2.0367) (1.8282)
Total habihties (3,742 3) (3462 1)
Net assets 1,7817 19015
Equity
24 Share caprtal 06 06
Other reserves o8 103
Retaned earnings 1,780 3 18906
Total equity 1,781 7 19015

The financial statements on pages 81 to | |6 were approved by the Board of Directors on 10 April 2014 and signed on its behalf by

dib Do

Sir Charhe Mayfield and Helen Weir
Directors, John Lewis Partnership plc




Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 25 January 2014
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Share Capital Capstal Hedging Foreign Retained Total
capital redemptron reserve reserve currency €arnings Equity
reserve transtation  (restated)* (restated)*
reserve o
Notes fm £m £m £m Lm £m fm g
Balance at 28 January 2012 06 50 ] 012 - 20017 2,0089 §
Profit for the year - - - - - 1010 1010 g
22 Remeasurement of defined benefit - - - - - (2600) (2600) 8
pensicon schemes
8 Tax on above item recognized In - - - - - 479 479
equity
Far value gans on cash flow hedges - - - 03 - - @3
— transfers to Inventories - - - 34 - - 34
Balance at 26 fanuary 2013 06 50 I 4 39 - 18306 19015
Profit for the year - - - - - 16 1016
22 Remeasurement of defined benefit - - - - - (245 2) (245 2)
penston schernes
8 Tax on above tem recognised in - - - - - 333 133 8
equity é
Fair value losses on cash flow hedges - - - (66) - - {66} %
— transfers to inventories - - - @n - - 31
Gan on currency translations - - - - 02 - 02
Balance at 25 January 2014 06 50 14 (58) 02 1,7803 1,7817

* Refer tonote |

Retaned earrangs comprise £1,375Bm (2013 £1,483 2m) of distnbutable and £404 5m (2013 £407 4m) of non-distributable reserves, ansing on
the revaluation of freehold and long leasehold properties prior to 31 January 2004
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended 25 January 2014

2014 2013
Notes £m £m
25 Cash generated from operations 7733 9790
Net taxatton paid (32 1) (535)
Partnerstip Bonus paid (210 6) (1643)
22 Additional contribution to the Pension Scheme (850) (1250)
Finance costs pard {28) {49)
Net cash generated from operating actvities 4428 6313
Cash flows from invesung acuvities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (387 1) (261 5)
Purchase of mtangible assets (107 9) (965)
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment and intangible assets 29 |9
Finance income received 15 19
Net cash used in investing activities {490 &) (354 2)
Cash flows from financing actvities
Finance costs paid in respect of bonds (545) (568)
Payment of caprtal element of finance leases (31) (35
Payments to preference shareholders c2) (V3]
Payments to Share Incentive Plan shareholders (17 (7
Cash inflow from borrowings 125 145
Cash outflow on borrowings {100 0} (2420)
Net cash used in financing activities (147 0) (2897}
Decrease in net cash and cash equivalents (194 B) (126}
Net cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 478 | 4907
Net cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 2833 478 |
14 Net cash and cash equivalents comprise
Cash at bank and 1n hand 1177 1200
Short-term investments 2412 4144
Bank overdrafts (75 6) {563)
2833 4781
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| Accounting policies

We prepare our accounts under International Financial Reportng
Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union Below we set
out significant accounuing policies apphied in the current reportng
pernod The accounting polictes are set in ine with the requirements
of IFRS and there have been no changes in accounting polcies in the
year other than to pensions accounung as detalled in *| 4
Amendments to accounung standards’

| | Basis of preparation

The accounts are prepared under the historical cost convention, with
the exception of certain land and buildings which are included at their
deemed cost amounts and financial assets and financial habilies
(including dervative instruments) valued at fair value through profit or
loss, and in accordance with Internatronal Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as adopted by the European Union and with those parts of the
Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with IFRS requires the use of esurnates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and habilities at the date of the
consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the year Although these estimates are
based on management's best knowledge of the amount, event or
actions, actual resulis ulimately may differ from those estimates The
critical accounting estimates and judgements made by management are
disclosed and discussed in section | 6

Going concern

The Directors, after reviewing the Partnership's operating budgets,
investments plans and financing arrangements consider that the
Company and Partnership have, at the date of this report, sufficient
financing avallable for the estimated requirements for the foreseeable
future Accordingly, the Directors are satisfied that it s approprate
to adopt the going concern basis in prepanng the Annual Report

and Accounts

| 2 Basis of consoldation

The consolidated Partnership financwl staternents incorporate the
results for the Company and all ts subsidiary undertakings made up
to the year end date

| 3 Subsidiaries

Subsidiary undertakings are all entittes over which the Parinerstup
has the power to govern the financial and operating polcies,
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half

of the voting rights

All intercompany balances transactions and unrealised gans are
eliminated upon consolidation

| 4 Amendments to accounting standards

The following palicies have been consistently applied to alt the years
presented unless otherwise stated

The Partnership has adopted IAS 19 ‘Employee benefits’ {(Rewised
201 1), whrch amends the accounting for employee benefits The
adoption of the revised standard has been applied on a retrospective
basis, and consequently the relevant charges or income in the
consohdated income statement and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive expense for the year ended 26 January 2013 have
been restated

As a result of the change, the expected return on penston scheme
assets and the interest cost on pension scheme habilities 15 replaced
with 3 net interest expense or income calkulated by applying the
discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset Thus has
increased finance costs but has had no impact on equity
Administration costs by pension funds are now recognised as an
expense when the administration services are performed

For the year to 26 January 2013, the effect of the restaternent 1s that
the net finance Income recognised on the defined benefit retirement
schemes of £38 2m has become a net finance cost of £29 Im for the
fult year Addtionally, operating profit has increased by £1 Om

IAS 19 ‘Employee benefits {Rewvised 201 1} also requires more
extensive disclosures, which have been provided in note 22

The Partnership has adopted IFRS 13 Far value measurement’ in the
year, which aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by
providing a precise definition of far value and a single source of far
value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across IFRS
IFRS 13 does not change when an entity 1s required to use far value,
but rather provides guidance on how to measure farr value under IFRS
IFRS |3 also requires additional disclosures

The application of IFRS 13 has nct materialiy smpacted the fair value
measurements of the Partnership Additional disclosures and the far
value hierarchy are provided in nate 21

The Partnership has adopted the amendments to IAS | ‘Presentation
of financial statements’, which requires the Partnership to separate
nems of other comprehensive Income Into two distinct categories
rtems that will not be reclassified subsequently to the income
statement, and tems that will be reclassified subsequently to the
incorme statement when specified condrtions are met

The following standards, amendments and interpretations were
adopted by the Partnership for the year ended 25 January 2014 and
have not had a significant impact on the Partnership’s profit for the
year, equity or disclosures
~ Amendment to IFRS 7 ‘Financial instruments disclosures’

on offsetting financial assets and habiliies,

— Amendment to I1AS 32 ‘Financial instruments presentation’,
— Amendment to I1AS 39 ‘Financial instruments recegnrtion
and measurement’

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are not
mandatory for the Partnership until 26 January 2014 However the
Partnership has decided to early adopt these standards for the year
ended 25 January 2014 These standards have not had a sigmificant
impact on the Partnership s profit for the year equity or disclosures
- IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated financial statements’,

— IFRS I | ‘Jont arrangements’,

- IFRS 12 ‘Disclosure of interests in other entities”
The following are new accounting standards and amendments 10
exisung standards that have been published and are applicable for

the Partnership's accounting periods beginning an or after 26 January
2014, which the Partnership has not adopted early

— IFRIC 21 Lewies',
— Amendment to tAS 36 ‘Impairment of assets’

These are not expected to have a material impact on the profit or
equrty for future years, but may affect disclosures

| 85
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

| Accounting policies {continued)
I 5 Significant accounting policies

Revenue

Sales of goods and services are recognised as revenue when the goods
have been delivered or the services rendered Revenue in respect of
‘sale or return sales’ which represents concession income 1s stated at
the value of the margn that the Partrership receives on the
transaction Revenue is also net of Partner discounts and VAT
Revenue is recogrised in respect of sales under bill and hold
arrangements when the goods are segregated for the customers
benefit at their request, and made avalable for delivery

Sales of gift vouchers are treated as future labilities, and revenue 1s
recognised when the gift vouchers are redeemed aganst a later
transaction Certain companies within the Partnership sell products
with a right of return, and experience 1s used to estimate and provide
for the value of such returns at the time of sale

The business 1s predominantly carried out in the United Kingdom and
gross sales and revenue derive almost entirely from that source

Inventory valuation

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost, which 1s computed on the basis
of average unit cost, and net realisable value Inventory excludes
merchandise purchased by the Partnership on a sale or return basis,
where the Partnership does not have the risks and rewards of
ownership Slow moving and obsolete inventory 1s assessed for
impairment at each reporting pertod based on past experience and
appropriate provision made

Employee benefits

The Partnership's principal retirement benefit scheme is a defined
benefit pension fund with assets held separately from the Partnership
The cost of providing benefits under the scheme s determined using
the projected unit credit actuarial valuation method, which measures
the hability based on service completed and allowing for projected
future salary increases The current service cost, which (s the increase
In the present value of the retirement benefit obligation resutting from
employee service in the current year and gains and losses on
setilements and curtalments, which arise on transactions that ehminate
part or all of the benefits provided or when there are amendments to
terms such that a significant element of future service will no longer
qualdy for benefits or will quahfy only for reduced benefits, are
induded within aperating profit in the consolidated income statement
Past service costs are recognised immediately in the consclidated
Income statement

Remeasurements of defined pension schemes due to expenience
adjustments and changes in actuanial assumptions are charged or
credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period
in which they arise

There are a number of unfunded pension labilities, where the
actuarially assessed costs of providing the berefit are charged to
the consolidated iIncome statement There are no assets supporting
these arrangements

The Partnership also operates a defined contribution scheme
Contributions are charged in the income statement as they fall due
The Partnership has no further obligations ance the contributions have
been made

The Fartnership has a scheme to provide up to six months paid leave
after 25 years’ service (long leave) The cost of providing the benefits
under the scheme 1s determined actuarially The current semvice cost 1s
included within operating profit in the consolidated income statement
The financing elemenits of long leave are included in finance costs i
the consclidated income statement

Property, plant and equipment

The cost of property, plant and equipment meludes the purchase price
and directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to s working
condrtion for its intended use

The Partnership’s freehold and jong leasehold properties were last
valued by the Directors, after consultation with CB Rechard Ellis,
Chartered Surveyors, at 31 January 2004, at far value These values
have been incorporated as deemed cost, subject to the requirement to
test for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 The Partnership
deaded not to adopt a pohicy of revaluation since 31 January 2004

Other assets are held at cost

Depreciation

No depreciation 1s charged on freehold land and assets in the course
of construction Deprecation is calculated for all other assets to write
off the cost or valuation less residual value, on a straight line basis over
their expected useful Iife, at the following rates

~ Freehold and long leasehold bulldings — 2% to 4%,

- Other leaseholds — over the shorter of the useful economic Ife and
the remaining period of the lease,

— Bullding fixtures — 2 5% to 10%

- Fidures and fitungs {including vehicles and iInformation technology
equipment) — 10% to 33%

Property residual values are assessed as the price in current terms that
a property would be expected to realise, if the builldings were at the
end of their useful economic Iife The assets’ residual values and useful
Ives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate at least at each balance
sheet date

Leased assets

Assets used by the Partnership which have been funded through
finance leases on terms that transfer to the Partnership substantally all
the nisks and rewards of ownership are capitalised at the inception of
the lease at the fair value of the leased asset or, If lower, at the present
value of the mimmum lease payments Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease
liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remamning
balance of the lability The interest element of finance lease rentals is
charged to the income statement Capitalised leased assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful Ife of the asset
or the lease term

Leases where the Partnership does not retain substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset are classified as operating
leases Operating lease rental payments, other than contingent rentals
are recognised as an expense in the Income statement on a straight-
hne basis over the lease term Contingent rentals are recogrised as an
expense in the Income staterment when incurred

Lease prernia and inducements are recognised in current and non-
current assets or liabilities as appropriate, and amortised or released
on a straight-line basis over the lease term

Sub-lease iIncome 1s recognised as other operating income on a
straight-line basis over the sub-lease term, less allowances for stuations
where recovery 1s doubtful




Segmental Reporung

Operating segments are determined based on business activities for
which operating results are reviewed by the chief operating deaision
maker ('CODM?) The Partnership’s CODM s the Partnership Board
and the operating segments reflect the management structure of the
Partnership The Partnership's operating segments are John Lewas,
Waitrose and Partnership Services and Corporate

Taxation

The charge for corporation tax is based on the resutts for the year
adjusted for tems which are not taxed or are disaliowed t s
calculated using tax rates in legislation that has been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred income tax is accounted for using the balance sheet hability
method in respect of temporary differences ansing from differences
between the tax bases of assets and kabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements Deferred tax anising from the
intial recogniion of an asset or hability in a transaction, other than a
business combination, that at the tme of the transaction affects nerther
accounting nor taxable profit or loss, 1s not recognised [n principle,
deferred tax habilries are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recogmsed to the extent that ot
is probable thai taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised

Deferred tax 15 calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to
the period when the asset 15 realised or the liability 1s settled Deferred
tax is charged or credited n the income statement, except when it
relates to tems credited or charged to other comprehensive expense,
in which case the deferred tax s also dealt with in other
comprehensive expense

Intangible assets

Intangible assets, comprising both purchased and internally developed
computer software, are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairments The cost of internally developed software, including
all directly attributable costs necessary tc create, produce and prepare
the software for use, is caprtalised where the development meets the
crtera for capitahsation required by 1AS 38 Internally developed
software assets that are not yet in use are reviewed at each reporting
date to ensure that the development stll meets the critenia for
capitalisation, and (s not expected to become impaired or abortive
Once avadable for use, the purchased or internally developed software
15 amortised on a straight kne basis over its useful economuc hfe, which
15 deemed to be between 3 and 10 years

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at far value net of transaction costs
and subsequently measured at amortised cost Where there 1s an
effective related far value hedge the movement in the far value
attributable to the hedged risk 1s separately disclosed

Arrangement costs for bonds and loan facilities in respect of debt are
caputalised and amortsed over the life of the debt at a constant rate
Finance costs are charged to the income statement, based on the
effective interest rate of the assocated borrowings

Financial instruments

The Partnership uses derwative financial instruments to manage nis
exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates and interest rates
Derwative financial instruments used by the Partnership include
forward currency contracts Hedge accounting has been adopted for
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derwvatve financial instruments where possible Such dervative financial
instruments are measured at far value The far value of a derwative
financial instrument represents the difference between the value of
the outstanding contracts at their contracted rates and a valuation
calcutated using the forward rates of exchange and interest rates
prevailing at the balance sheet date

In order to qualfy for hedge accounting, the refationship between
the rtem being hedged and the hedging instrument is documented in
advance of entering into the hedge. and assessed to show that the
hedge will be highly effective on an ongoing basis This effectiveness
testing 1s reperformed at each peniod end to ensure that the hedge
remains highly effective

Hedge accounting s discontinued when the hedging instrument
matures, 15 sold, terminated or exeraised the designation 1s revoked or
it no longer qualifies for hedge accounting For dervatives that do not
qualfy for hedge accounting, any gains or losses arising from changes in
fair value are taken directly to the income statement

A cash flow hedge 15 a hedge of the exposure to varability of cash
flows that are erther attributable to a particular nisk associated with a
recognised asset or hability, or a highly prabable forecast transaction
The effective portion of changes in the intninsic fair value of derwatives
that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recogrised in
equty All other changes in far value are recognised immecdiiately in the
income statement within other gains or losses. Amounts accumulated
mn equity are recycled to the income statement in the periods when
the hedged tem affects profit or loss Derwative financial instruments
qualifying for cash flow hedge accounting are principally forward

currency Contracts
The 1able below sets out the Partnership’s accounting dlassification of
each class of s financial assets and liabilities

nore Classification Measurement
Financial assets
Cash and cash 14 L.oans and recevables Amortised cost
equivalents
Trade recewvables 13 [Loans and recewvables Amortised cost
Other recewvables 13 Loans and recevables Amortised cost
Financial habilhuies
Finance leases 18 Financial liabilties Amortised cost
Borrowings and 16 Financial habikbes Amortised cost
overdrafts
Trade payables 17 Financial habilities Amortised cost
Other payables 17 Financial liabilities Amortised cost

Partnership Bonus 17 Frnancial habilities Arnortised cost

Accruals {7 Financial liabilities Amortised cost

Financial assets or Fair value*
habttities at far value

through profit or loss*

Derwatve finanoal 21
instruments

* Cash flow hedges dessgnated as baing in a hedped relationship upon ital recognition arc
measured at far value with the effectve portion of any changes in the intrnse value
recopnised n equity
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

| Accounting policies (continued)

Imparment

Agsets that are subject to amortisation or depreciation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable Impairment testing 1s on cash
generatng unrts which are branches, being the lowest level of
separately identifiable cash flows Animpairment loss 1s recognised for
the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds rts
recoverable amount, the latter being the higher of the asset's fair value
less costs to dispose and value in use Value in use calculations are
performed using cash flow projections, discounted at a pre-tax rate
which reflects the asset specific risks and the time value of monay

Provisions

Prowisions are recogrised when the Partnership has an obligation in
respect of a past event it 1s more likely than not that payment (or a
non-cash settlement) will be required to settle the obligation and
where the amount can be relably esumated Prowvisions are discounted
when the time value of money 15 considered material

Partnership Bonus

The Partnership Bonws 1s announced and pad to Partners each March,
1t 1s determined in relation to the performance for the previous
financial year No liability 1s recorded for Partnership Bonus at the half
year as the majority of the Partnership’s profit and cash flows are
earned in the second half year Consequently, it 1s not possible to make
a reliable estimate of the hability until the annual profit 1s known

A labilty for this Partnershup Bonus 1s snctuded in the year end
accounts, with the amaunt confirmed by the Pactnerstup Board shartly
after the year end

it s recorded in the year it relates to rather than the year it was
declared because there 15 a constructive obligation to pay a Partnership
Bonus and it can be relably estimated, once the results for the year are
known and prior to the sign off of the Partnership’s financial statements

Offsettung

Balance sheet netting only occurs to the extent that there 1s the legal
ability and mntention to settle net. As such bank overdrafts are
presented n current habilities to the extent that there is no intention
to offset with any cash balances

Foreign currencies

Transachons denominated in foreign currencies are transiated at the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction Foreign exchange gains
and losses resufting from the setttement of such transactions and from
the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and
habiliies denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
Income statement, except when deferred in other comprehensive
incomne as qualfying cash flow hedges On translavon of assets and
labilies held at branches in foreign currencies movements go through
the foreign currency translation reserve

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank
and in hand and short-term deposits with original maturities of less
than 90 days In the consolidated cash flow statement, net cash and
cash equivatents comprise cash and cash equivalents, as defined above
net of bank overdrafts.

Trade recevables

Trade receivables are inttially recogrised at fair value and subsequently
measured al amortised cost less allowances for situations where
recovery 1s doubtful Such allowances are based on an individual
assessment of each recevable

Trade payables
Trade payables are inttially recogrised at far value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost

b 6 Criical accounting estmates and judgements

Estimates and judgemenis are continually evaluated and are based on
histonical experience and other relevant factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
ciIrcumstances

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to
make estimates and assumptions concerning the future The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definttion, be likely to differ from the
related actual results The estimates and assumptons that have a
significant nsk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and labilities within the next financial year are
discussed below

1 Retirement benefits

Pension accounting requires certain assumptions to be made n order
to value our obligations and to determine the charges to be made to
the income statement These figures are particularly sensitive to
assumptions for discount rates, mortality and inflation rates Details of
assumptions are given in note 22

n Prowvisions and habilities

Provisions and habilrttes recognised at the balance sheet date are
detaled in notes |7 and |9 and include amounts for long leave,
unredeemed gift vouchers service guarantee costs customer refunds,
insurance claims, reorganisation costs, accrued holiday pay and
property related costs

Although provisions and habilities are reviewed on a regular basis and
adjusted to reflect management’s best current estimates the
judgemental nature of these iterns means that future amounts settled
may be different from those provided

i Impairment

The Partnership 1s required to test whether assets in use in operations
have suffered any impairment The recoverable amounts of cash
generating urits have been deterrmined based on the higher of far
value less costs to sell and value in use The calculation of value in use
reqguires the estmation of future cash flows expected to arise from
the continuing operatron of the cash generating unit and the selection
of a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
Given the degree of subjectivity tnvolved actual outcomes could vary
significantly from these esttmates




2 Non-GAAP measures

Qur financial statements report measures which are required under
accounting standards We also report financial measures which we
beleve enhance the relevance and usefulness of the financial
statements These are important for understanding underlying
business performance and they are described as non-GAAP
measures In this note, we have explained what the non-GAAP
financial measures are and why we use them

2 | Gross sales

Gross sales represents the armounts receivable by the Partnership
for goods and services suppled to customers, net of discounts but
ncluding sale or return sales and VAT This measure shows the
underlying sales trend

22 Exceptional items

hems which are both material and non-recurring are presented as
exceptional rtems within their relevant consolidated income staterment
category The separate reporting of exceptional tems helps provide an
indication of the Partrership’s underlying business performance

2 3 Net debt

Met debt incorporates the Partnership's consolidated borrowings,
bank overdrafts, farr value of derivative finanaial instrumenis and
obligations under finance leases, less cash and cash equivalents and
unamortised bond transaction costs This measure indicates the overall
debt postion
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3 Exceptional items

Exceptional items are matenal, non-recurning items of income and/or
expense ansing from events or transactions that fall within the
activiies of the Partnership We believe these exceptional items are
relevant for an understanding of our underlying financial performance,
and are highlighted separately on the face of the income statement
This note provides detall of the exceptional item reported

On 22 August 2013, the Partnership made an announcement
regarding holiday pay payments Following a recent review of the
Partnership's holiday pay policy, it became clear that Partners who
receive certain additions 1o pay, such as premums for working on
Sunday or bank holidays, had not been paid correctly under the
Working Time Regulations legislation The Partnership Board
therefore decded to make one-off additional payments to

those affected

An exceptional operating expense has been recorded in the year to
25 January 2014 totalling £47 3m This reflects costs of £3% 3m for
payments to Partners and associated expenses for holiday pay dating
back to 2006 which had not been calculated correctly Future pension
Iiabilties have also increased by £8 Om as a result
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

4 Segmental reporting

This note analyses our performance between our three operating segments which are Waitrose, John Lewis and Partnership Services and
Corporate Thes analysis 1s consistent with how our Partnership Board reviews performance throughout the year

Parinership Services and Corporate includes operating costs for cur Corporate offices, Partnership Services, transformation programmes and
certain penston operating costs The operating profit of each segment i1s reported after charging relevant Partnership Services and Corporate
costs based on the business segments’ usage of these facilities and services, and before the exceptional tem

Waitrose John Lews Partnership Total
Services and
Corporate

2014 £m £m £m £m
Graoss sales 61t 9 4,059 6 - 10,1715
Adjustment for sale or return sales - (148 9) - {1489)
Value added tax (3582) (636 6} - (994 8)
Revenue 57537 3,274 1 - 9,027 8
Operating profit before exceptional item 301 2261 (65 3) 4709
Exceptional item - - (47 3) 473)
Operating profit 3101 226 1 {112 6) 4236
Finance costs - - (97 5) (97 5)
Finance income - - 30 30
Partnership Bonus - - (202 5) (202 5)
Profit before tax 3101 216 | {409 6) 1266
Taxation - - (25 0) (250)
Profit for the year 3iol 2261 {434 6} 1016
Reconcibation of Profit before Partnership Bonus, tax and exceptional tem to Profit before tax.
Profit before Partnership Bonus, tax and exceptional item 3ol 226 | (159 8) 3764
Partnership Bonus - - {202 5) {202 5)
Exceptional tem - - (47 3) {47 3)
Profit before tax 3101 226 | (409 6) 126 6
Segment assets 2,844 4 1.86B 9 8107 55240
Segment habihties (6102) (730 1) (2,402 0) (3,742 3)
Net assets 22342 1,1388 (1,591 3) 1,7817
Other segment items
— Deprecation (141 6) (957) (17 3) (254 6)
— Amortisaton 243) {(192) Mo (54 5)
— Capttal expendrture — property, plant and equipment {283 8) (126 3) (50N (425 2)
— Capital expenditure — intangible assets (328) (48 5) (26 6) (107 9}
— Movement In provisions — increase/(decrease) (65) 144 40 e




4 Segmental reporting (continued)
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Wartrose john Lews Partnership Total
Services and (restated)
Corporate
(restated)

2013 (restated) £m £m £m £m
Gross sales 57639 37774 - 95413
Adjustment for sale or return sales - (1346} - (134 6}
Value added tax (347 8) (593 4} - (941 2)
Revenue 54161 30494 - 84655
Operating profit before exceptional item 2923 2167 (556) 4534
Exceptional tem - - - -
Operating profit 2923 2167 (556) 4534
Finance costs - - (1120) (1120)
Finance income - - 19 19
Partnershup Bonus - - (2108) (2108)
Profit before tax 2923 2167 (3765) 1325
Taxation - - E13)] (315)
Profit for the year 2923 2167 {4080) icl o
Reconaliation of Profit before Partnership Bonus and tax to Profit before tax
Profit before Partnership Bonus and tax 2923 2167 (1657) 3433
Partnership Bonus - - (2108) (2108)
Profit before tax 2923 2167 (376 5) 1325
Segment assets 26247 1,7702 9687 53636
Segment habilities (5537) (648 1) (22603) (3462 1)
Nert assets 20710 1,122 1 (1,291 6} 1,901 5
Other segment items
— Depreciation (1427) (%67) (157 (255 1)
— Amortisation (19 4) 7% (14 6) 419
— Caprtal expenditure — property, plant and equipment (1669) {1029) {110y (280 8)
— Caprtal expenditure — intangible assets 313) (41 4) (234) ELY)]
— Movement in provisicns — increase 42 63 295 400

5 Operating expenses before exceptional item

We analyse operating expenses into branch operating expenses and adiristrative expenses Branch operating expenses are directly
associated with the sale of goods and services Adminsstrative expenses are those which are not directly related to the sale of goods

and services

2014 2013

(restated)

£m £m

Branch operating expenses (2013 4) {13017
Administrative expenses (608 8) (534 4)

(2,622 2) (2436 1)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

6 Net finance costs

Net finance costs are primarily our costs in respect of interest payable on bank borrowings, our defined benefit pension, long leave and other
employee benefit schemes Finance income primanly consists of interest recewved from short-term investments

2014 2013
(restated)
£m fm
Finance costs
Interest payable on
Bank loans and overdrafts (an 2n
Other loans repayable within five years {134) (136)
Other loans repayable in more than five years {41 3) 413
Finance lease interest payable (16) (7
Amortisation of 1ssue costs of bonds and loan facilities {(10) (n
Preference dnadends {03) (03)
Share Incentive Plan dvidends (17 (18)
Fimance costs in respect of borrowings {60 4) (61%)
Fair value measurements and other - 06)
Net finance costs ansing on defined benefit and other employee benefit schermes (37 1) (495)
Total finance costs (97 5) {(1120)
Finance income
Finance income in respect of cash and short-term investments 16 |9
Fair value measurements and other 14 -
Total fimance income 30 |9
Nert finance costs (94 5) (Hon
2014 2013
(restated)
£m £m
Total finance costs in respect of borrowngs (60 4) (619)
Total finance income in respect of cash and short-term investments ) 19
Net finance costs in respect of borrowings and short-term investments (588) (600
Fair value measurements and other | 4 {06)
Net finance costs arising on defined benefit retirement schemes (353) 29 1)
Net finance costs arising on other employee benefit schemes {18) (204)

Net finance costs (34 5) (ren




7 Profit before tax

Detailed below are the key items, as required by IFRS, charged/credited to arnve at our profit before tax
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2014 2013
(restated)
£m £m
Staff costs (note 9) (1,753 9) (1.6040)
Depreciation — owned assets (2519) (2517}
Deprecation — assets held under finance leases 27 (34)
Amortisation of intangble assets {54 5) (419)
Loss on sale of property (18) -
Profit/(loss) on disposal of other plant and equipment and intangible assets 02 ®s1)
Inventory — cost of inventory recognised as an expense (6,008 %) (5,640 1)
Reorganisation costs (147) (162)
Operating lease rentals
—land and buildings (139 6) (1279)
— plant and machinery {03) 02
Sub lease income
—land and buildings 77 61
Contingency rents expensed during the year were £27m (2013 £2 7m) Contingency rents are determined based on store revenues
Total auditors’ remuneration s included within administrative expenses, and 1s payable to our auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP,
as analysed below
2014 013
£m £fm
Audit and audit-related services
— Audrt of the parent company and consolidated financial statements ©3) 09
— Audit of the Company's subsidiaries 05) 04
(08) (08)
Non-audrt services
— Tax adwisory services - on
— Other assurance services (02) -
- Other non-audit services - {01
(02) ©02)
Total fees {10) {10y

In addrtion to the above, the Partnership’s auditors akso acted as auditors to the Partnership’s pension schemes The aggregate fee for audit

services to the pension schemes during the year was £49,500 (2013 £53,900)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

8 Taxation

This note explains how our tax charge anses The tax charge 1s made up of current and deferred tax Current tax is the tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustments to tax payable
in previous years Current tax is charged through the consolidated income statement Deferred tax assets represent the amounts of Income
taxes recoverable in future periods in respect of taxable temporary differences Deferred tax liabilities represent the amounts of ncome
payable in future penods in respect of taxable temporary differences

8 | Analysis of tax charge for the year

2014 2013

(restated)

Analysis of tax charge £m £m
Corporation tax — current year (61 2) (777
Corporation tax — adjustment in respect of prior years (1 4) I8
Total current tax charge (62 6} 759
Deferred tax — current year 350 442
Deferred tax — adjustment in respect of prior years 26 02
@250) 315)

2014 2013

(restated)

Tax credited to other comprehensive income £m fm
Movement in current tax on pension schemes 274 346
Movement in deferred tax on pension schemes 59 133
333 479

8 2 Factors affecting tax charge in the year

The tax charge for the year 1s lower (2013 lower) than the standard corporation tax rate of 23 17% (2013 24 33%) The differences are
explained below

2014 2013
(restated)
£m £m
Profit before tax 126 6 1325
Profit before tax multiplied by standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 23 17% (2013 24 33%) {29 3) (327
tffects of
Changes in tax rate 146 127
Adjustment to current tax in respect of prior years {14 18
Adjustment to deferred tax in respect of prior years 26 02
Depreciation on assets not qualifying for tax relief (125} (136
Orfference between accounting and tax base for land and buildings 4 20
Differences in overseas tax rates 22 c7
Sundry disallowables (26) 31
Total tax charge {25 0) 315)
Effective tax rate (%) 198 238

83 Deferred tax

Deferred tax s cakulated in full on temporary differences under the liability method using a tax rate of 21% (2013 23%} for deferred tax assets
or lablives expected to reverse before Aprl 2015 and 20% for those assets or labilities expected to reverse after April 2045 (2013 23%)
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8 Taxation (continued)
The moverment on the deferred tax account 1s shown below

2014 2013

(restated)

im £fm

Opening asset/(lability) 256 (32 1)
Credited to income statement 376 44 4
Credited to other comprehensive income: 59 133
Closing asset 621 256

The movements in deferred tax assets and labilities during the year (prior to the offsetting of balances within the same jurisdiction, as permitted
by 1AS |2} are shown below

Deferred tax assets and labiities are only offset where there 15 a legally enforceable nght of offset and there 1s an intention 1o settle the
balances net

Accelerated Revaluation Rollover Other Toral
tax of land and gains
depreciation buldings
Deferred tax habihues £m £m £m £m £m
At 2B January 2012 (1660) (Cl)) (225) (36) {1978)
Credrted to iIncome statement 188 10 26 |4 238
AL 26 January 2013 (147 2) 47 (199) (272) (1740)
Credited t¢ income statement 219 09 27 22 277
At 25 January 2014 {125 3) {38 (172) - {146 3)
Capital gains Pensions Total
tax on land and provisions {restated)
and buildings (restated)
Deferred tax assets £m fm £m
At 28 January 2012 65 1592 1657
Credited to income statement 08 198 206
Credited to other comprehensive income - 133 133
At 26 January 2013 73 1923 199 6
Credited to income statement on 100 39
Credred to other comprehensive income - 59 59
At 25 January 2014 72 2082 2154

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carred forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future
profits is probable There were na unrecognised deferred tax assets in respect of losses for the year ended 25 January 2084 (2013 £rul)

The deferred tax balance associated with the pension deficrt has been adjusted to reflect the current tax benefit obtained in the financial year
ended 30 January 2010 following the contribution of the imted partnership interest in JLP Scottish Limited Partnership to the pension scheme
(see note 22)

All of the deferred tax assets were avalable for offset against deferred tax habilities and hence the net deferred tax asset at 25 January 2014 was
£691m (2013 £256m asset) The net deferred tax asset 1s recoverable after more than one year

8 4 Factors affecting tax charges In current and future years

The Finance Act 2013 reduced the main rate of corporation tax from 23% to 21% from | Aprl 2014 Further reductions to reduce the man
rate of corporation tax to 20% from | April 2015 have also been enacted

The effect of the 3% rate change on the current year (2013 2% rate change) was to decrease the deferred tax asset by £6 5m (201 3 £05m
decrease) with a £2| 1m charge (2013 restated £13 2m charge) being taken to other comprehensive mcome and a £14 6m tax credit (2013
restated £12 7m credit) to the income statement

IDNVIHEOE3d ¥NO JIHSYIN LYY SIMITNHO IHL

IDNYNYIAOD

SINTWILVLS TVIDNYNG




John Lews Partnership plc
9 6 Annual Report and Accounts 2014

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

9 Partners

This note shows the average number of Partners employed by us in the year, which areas of the Partnership they work in, and total
employment related costs At the end of the year, the total number of Partners was 91,000

9 1 Partner numbers
Duning the year the average number of Partners in the Partnership was as follows

2014 2013
John Lews 29,800 29,300
Wartrose 55,000 51,000
Partnership Services and Corporate 1,800 1,600
86,500 81,900
9 2 Partner benefits
Employment and related costs were as follows
2014 2013
(restated)
£m £m
Staff costs
Woages and salaries (1.271 1) (1.1623)
Soctal security costs (37 1) (885)
Partnership Bonus {180 2) (187 4)
Employers' national insurance on Partnership Bonus (223) (234)
Other pension costs {note 22) (1757) (1370)
Long leave cost (75) 54
Total before Partner discounts {1,753 9) (1,604 0)
Partner discounts (excluded from revenue) (633) (574)
(1.8172) (1661 4)
Included above are the following amounts in respect of key management compensation
Salaries and short-term benefits (14 1) (135}
Post-employment benefits* (48) (46}
(189) (18N

* inchudes pension supplemments in ieu of future pension accrual

9 3 Directors’ emoluments

Dhrectors’ emolurments have been summanised below Further details of the remuneration of Directors is given in the part of the Remuneration
Report noted as audited on pages 74 to 77

2014 2013
fm £m
Aggregate emoluments (69) {66)

Key management include Directors of Partnership companies members of the Partnership s management Boards and officers of the Partnership
Key management compensation includes salaries national insurance costs pension costs and the cost of other employment benefits, such as
company cars, private medical insurance and terrmination payments where applicable

Key management participate in the Partnership’s long leave scheme, which 1s open to alt Partners and provides up 1o six months pad leave after
25 years' service There is no proportional entitlement for shorter periods of service It 1s not practical to allocate the cost of accruing entitlement
to this benefit to indmduals, and so no allowance has been made for this benefit in the amounts disclosed
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Qur balance sheet contains intangible assets in refauon to computer software This note details addiuons, disposals and transfers of intangible

assets n the year, together with amoruisation (a charge to the income statement to represent usage of these assets)

Computer software

Purchased Internalty Waork in Total
developed progress
im fm £m £m

Cost
At 28 January 2012 596 1684 724 3004
Additions - - 964 96 1
Transfers 237 300 (537) -
Disposals (53) 27 (48) (128)
AL 26 January 2013 780 1957 1100 3837
Additions - 02 1077 1079
Transfers 536 760 (129 6) -
Disposals (82) (80} - (162}
At 25 January 2014 123 4 2639 881 4754
Accumulated amorusation
At 28 January 2012 (339) (1022) - (136 1)
Charge for the year (80} (339} - (419)
Disposals 08 72 - 80
At 26 January 2013 4rn (1289) - (1700)
Charge for the year {195) {350} - (545)
Disposals 82 78 - 160
At 25 January 2014 (524) (156 1) - (208 5)
Net book value at January 2012 257 662 724 1643
Net book value at January 2013 369 668 1100 2137
Net book value at Janvary 2014 710 107 8 :H ] 2669

For the year to 25 January 2014, computer systems valued at £129 6m {2013 £53 7m} were brought into use This covered a range of selling,
support, supply chain, admimistration and information technology infrastructure applications, with asset lives ranging from three to ten years

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged within operating expenses
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

| | Property, plant and equipment

QOur balance sheet contains sigmficant property, plant and equipment, pnmanty made up of branches, distnbution centres, offices and vehicles
This note details addiuons, disposals and transfers of property, plant and equipment (n the year, together with depreciation (a charge to the
Income statement to represent usage of these assets)

Land and Fixtures and Assets in course Total
buildings fittings  of construction
£m £m £m fm

Cost
At 28 January 2012 37427 }.5959 889 54275
Addrtions 14 27 2640 2808
Transfers 1458 936 (239 4) -
Disposals (4 {64 4) (1 4) {772
At 26 January 2013 38912 16278 1121 56311
Addrtions 0l 24 4230 4252
Transfers 1548 1876 (342 4) -
Disposals {115) (79 5) - 510
At 25 January 2014 40346 1,7380 1927 5,9653
Accumulated depreciation
At 28 |anuary 2012 (651 6) (9775) - (1,629 )
Charge for the year {989 (1562) - (2551}
Disposals 0t 639 - 740
At 26 January 2013 (740 4) (1,069 8) - (1,8102)
Charge for the year (100 4) (1542} - (254 8)
Disposals 74 793 - 867
At 25 January 2014 (833 4) (1,144 7) - (1,978 1)
Net book value at January 2012 3,091 1 6184 889 3,7984
Net book value at January 2013 3,1508 5580 1121 3,8209
Net book value at January 2014 32012 5933 1927 39872

Included above are land and buildings assets held under finance leases with a net book value of £28 Im (2013 £309m)

12 Inventories

This note sets out the make-up of our inventories and the value of nventories charged through the consolidated income statement in the year
Slow moving and obsolete inventory is assessed each reporting period and appropnate prowision made against the inventory balance, and so
the finished goods and goods for resale 1s shown net of provisions Our raw materals and work in progress are prnimarily related to Herbert
Parkinson and Leckford Farm Our inventories primanly consist of finshed goods and goods for resale Once the inventory is sold, it s charged
1o cost of sales in the consolidated income statement

2014 2013

£m fm

Raw matenals 40 31
Work in progress 09 09
Finished goods and goods for resale 5491 5100
5540 5140

The cost of inventory recogrised as an expense by the Partnership in the year was £6,008 9m (2013 £5,640 Im) Provisions against inventores
of £79m were charged (2013 £12 7m charged} in branch operating expenses
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Trade and other recevables are amounts owed to us from customers and from suppliers if we are owed rebates This note also includes
interest recevable from third parties and amounts due from cur Partners in respect of the Partnership’s car finance scheme, prepayments

which are payments made in advance of the delivery of goods or rendering of services, accrued ncome earned by the Partnership for
providing a product or service which has not yet been invoiced

Other receivables, prepayments and accrued income are spiit into eurrent and non-current to show those amounts due within a year

and those which will be recovered over a longer period Trade recewvables are shown net of an allowance for debts which we do not

consider recoverable

2014 2013
£m £m
Current

Trade recevables 551 495
Other recervables 483 464
Prepayments and accrued income 1225 962
2259 1921

Non-current
Other recevables 131 126
Prepayments and accrued income 482 432
él13 558

Trade recewables are non-interest bearing and generally on credrt terms of less than 90 days Concentrations of eredit risk are considered to be
very imited The carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates to fair value and 1s denorinated in sterling

As of 25 January 2014, trade and other recewvables of £22m (2013 £2 3m) were fully mpared Movements i the allowance for impaired

recevables were as follows

2014 2013

im £m

At start of year {23) {12)
Charged to income statement (06) {14
Utilised 05 -
Released to income statement 02 03
At end of year (22) (23)

The creation and release of the allowance for impaired recevables have been included in branch operating expenses in the income statement

As of 25 January 2014, trade and other recewvables of £24 4m (2013 £21 Om) were past due but not impared The ageing analysis of the past

due amounts is as follows

2014 2013

£m £m

Up to 3 months past due 195 181
3 10 12 months past due 29 20
Over |2 months past due 20 09
244 210
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| 4 Cash and cash equivalents
Our cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and investments i term deposits wath financial institutions and money market funds

2014 2013

£m £m

Cash at bank and in hand 1177 1200
Short-term investments 2412 4144
3589 5344

For the year ended 25 January 2014, the effective interest rate on short-term investments was 0 4% (2013 05%) and these depostts had an
average maturity of | day (2013 | day)

At 25 January 2014, £3% Im (2013 £34 4m) of the Partnership’s cash balance and £03m (2013 £0 Im) of the Partnership's accrued interest
balance was pledged as collateral This 15 part of the Partnership s insurance arrangements and the release of these funds 15 subject to approval
from third parties

In the consohdated statement of cash flows net cash and cash equivalents are shown after deducting bank overdrafts as follows

2014 2013

£m £m

Cash and cash equivalents as above 3589 5344

Less bank overdrafts (75 6) (5613)
Net cash and cash equivalents 2833 478 |

|5 Analysis of financial assets
Our financial assets, pnmarilty cash and cash equivalents, are subject to currency and interest rate exposures This note sets out the amount
of cash and cash equivalents deposited in sterling or other currencies, together with the effective interest rate

Short-term trade and other recewables and dervative financial assets are excluded from this analysis, on the basis that they are all non-interest
bearing and denominated in sterling

Floating  Non-interest

Effectve rate bearing Total
Interest rate and currency analysis interest rate fm £m £m
Sterling 4% 3436 152 3588
Other 00% Gl - 01
At 25 Japuary 2014 3437 152 3589
Sterling 05% 5200 143 5343
Cther 00% Gl - 0l
At 26 January 2013 5201 143 5344

Floating rate assets are bank balances and short-term deposits at interest rates iinked to LIBOR or the base rate of the relevant currency
Ngnr-interest beaning balances include cash floats primarily beld in the stores
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| 6 Borrowtngs and overdrafts

1O

Our borrowings compnise loans from banks, bonds 1ssued on a long-term basis, bank overdrafts and Share Incentwve Plan shares, which are

held in Trust for the benefit of Partners

16 | Borrowings and overdrafts

2014 2013
£m £m
Current

Bank overdraft (75 6) {(563)
10%41% Bonds, 2014 - (1000)
(75 6) (1563)

MNon-current
Partnership Bond, 201 6* (56 6) 56 1)
8%/s% Bonds, 2019 (275 0) (2750)
6'¢% Bonds, 2025 (300 0) (3000}
Unamortised bond transaction costs 52 57
5% Cumulative Preference Stock (37 G
7% Cumulative Preference Stock (05) {05)
Cumulate Preference Stock of subsidiary undertakings (c4) {04)
Share Incentive Plan shares (SIP) (972) {847)
(7282) {7147)

* The Partnership Bond 5 a five year mvestment product offenng a fixed annual return of 4.5% i cash and a further 2% in John Lewss Partnership gift vouchers.

All borrowings are unsecured, denominated in sterling and are repayable on the dates shown, at par

Unfess the preference dvidends are in arrears the 5% and 7% Cumulative Preference Stock only have voung rights in relation to a vanation of
therr class rights The amounts recewvable i a winding up would be limited to the amounts paid up, for the 5% Cumulative Preference Stock, and

to one and a half times the amounts paid up for the 7Y2% Cumulative Preference Stock

SIP shares are 1ssued as part of the BorusSave scheme The SIP shares that are allocated to Partners are entitled to a dvdend, the amount of
which 15 determined from year to year by the Partnership Board The amounts receivable in a winding up would be imrted to the amounts that

have been paid on the SIP shares

| 62 Oblgations under finance leases

2014 2013

£m £m

Current (33) 30
Non-current (32 4) (359
(357) (389

Fhe rrurwmum lease payments under finance leases fall due as shown in note 18
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

| 7 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables include amounts we cwe to supphers that have been invoiced or accrued, HMRC in the form of taxes and social

secunity, and to our Partners, through salanes and our annual profit share, the Partnership Bonus

2014 2013
£m m
Current

Trade payables (788 1) (698 1)
Other payables (124 6) (1170)
Orher taxation and social security (167 6) (1740)
Accruals (189 &) (1515)
Deferred income (46 7) (334)
Partnership Bonus (183 1) {1800)
(1,4997) {1,3640)

Non-current
Cther payables (0 6) 07)
Deferred income {1349) {1188)
(135 5) (1193)

The carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates to fair value

|8 Finance lease liabilities

We enter into finance leases relating to bulldings and plant, property and equipment Finance leases arise when the terms of the lease

agreement substanually transfers all the nsks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset to the Partnership This note details the
schedule of payments due over the life of the finance leases, together with the present value of the finance lease recorded in the consohidated

balance sheet

2014 2013
£m £m

The minimum lease payments under finance leases fall due as follows
Not fater than one year “8 (46)
Later than one year but not more than five (129 (160)
More than five years {44 8) (46 8)
{62 5) (672)
Future finance charge on finance leases 268 283
Present value of finance lease habilites (357) (389

Of which

Not later than one year 33 (&R0
Later than one year but not more than five {86) {112)
More than five years (23 8) (247}

The Partnership's finance lease liabilities relate to buldings and plant property and equipment that have been dassified as finance leases in

accordance with IAS 17 'Leases
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|9 Provisions

We incur habilities which have some uncertainty regarding the timing or the future cost required to settle them These are termed prowvisions
and have been esumated and provided for at year end Our provisions prmarily relate to the expected cost of long leave, service guarantees
provided to customers, expected customer refunds and insurance claims

Long Service Customer Insurance Other Total

leave guarantee refunds claims
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At 26 January 2013 (1122) (527) (263} (215} (335) (246 2)
Charged to income statement (22 (336) (262} (136) (62%) (1455}
Released to income statement - 109 - - 53 b62
Utihsed B6 180 263 94 551 74
At 25 January 2014 (1128) (57 4) (2612) (257) (360) (258 1)

Of which

Current (40 1) (226) (2672) 57 (263) (1209)
Non-current 727) (348) - (200} ?7) (1372}

The Partnership has a long leave scheme, open to all Partners, which prowvides up to six months’ paid leave after 25 years' service There

no proportional enttlement for shorter periods of service The prowision for the liabilties under the scheme 1s assessed on an actuarial basis,
reflecting Partners’ expected service profiles, and using economic assumptions consistent with those used for the Partnership’s retirement benefit
oblgations (note 22), with the exception of the discount rate, where a rate appropriate to the shorter duration of the long leave lability 15 used,
s0 as to accrue the cost over Partners' service periods

Prowisions for service guarantee costs reflect the Partnership s expected hability for future reparr costs based on estmated falure rates and unnt
repair costs for the classes of goods sold

Prowision for customer refunds reflects the Partnership’s expected lability for returns of goods sold based on expenence of rates of return

Prowisions for insurance claims are in respect of the Partnership’s employer's, public and vehicle third party hability insurances and extended
warranty products

Provisions for insurance claims are based on reserves held in the Partnership’s captive insurance cormpany fLP tnsurance Limited These reserves
are established using independent actuarsal assessments wherever possible, or the reasonable assessment based on past claims experience

Cther provisions include reorganisation costs accrued holiday pay and property related costs

The exact timing of utdisation of these provisions will vary according to the individual arcumstances However the Partnership’s best estimate
of utilisation 1s provided above
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

20 Management of financial risks

The principal financial risks that we are exposed to are hquidity risk, interest rate rsk, foreign currency rsk, credit nisk, capital risk and energy

nsk This note details how each of these nsks are managed

20 | Liquidity risk

Lequidity requirements are managed in hne with short and long-term cash flow forecasts and reviewed against the Partnership’s debt portfolio
and maturity profile Surplus cash held over and above balances required for working capital management 1s invested in (nterest bearing current
accounts, term deposits and money market funds with appropriate maturties or sufficent Iiquidity determined by the above mentioned
forecasts In January 2014, the Partnership repaid a £100m bond and entered into an |8 month £150m bilateral borrowing facility At the year
end the Partnership had undrawn committed revolving borrowings faciliies of £475m (2013 £325m) In addibion to these facilibes, the
Partnership has hsted bonds totalling £575m (2013 £675m) of which £275m mature in 2019 and £300m in 2025 and the Partnership bond
issued in April 201 | and maturing in 201 6, which raised gross praceeds of £58m The bonds are not subject te repricing, and ther interest rates

and maturity profiles are set out in note 23

The Partnership’s bank borrowing facilities contain financial covenants Throughout the year the Partnership maintained comfortable headroom

agamnst its covenants and 1s expected to do se into the foreseeable future

The Partnership's total committed sources of avallable funds at the date of sigring these accounts are £1,108m

The following analysis shows the centractual undiscounted cash flows payable under financial habilities and derwative financial habilities at the

balance sheet date

Due within  Due between Due 2 years
| year | and 2 years and beyond
fm £m £m

Non-derivative financial habilities
Borrowings and overdrafts {756) - (7346)
Interest payments on borrowings*® (44 0) (440) (260 1)
Finance lease habilties 48) 44 (533)
Trade and other payables (1,285 4) 08) -

Derivative financial iabilites

Dervative contracts — receipts 185C 287 -
Derwative contracts — payments (1908) (291) -
At 25 January 2014 {1,415 6) (49 4) {1,048 0)
Due within - Due between Due 2 years
| year | and 2 years and beyond
£m £m fm

Non-dervative financial habilities
Borrowings and overdrafts (1563) - (72273)
Interest payments on borrowings* (545) (440) (304 1)
Finance lease labilities {46) (46) (580)
Trade and other payables (1,156 6} ©n -

Dervative financial hiabilities

Derwative contracts — receipts 1630 - -
Denvative contracts — payments (1667) - -
At 26 January 2013 {(1,3757) (493) (1,084 3)

* Excludes annual interest of £0 3m on cumulatve preference siock which have no fixed redemption date

Interest on borrowings is calculated based on the borrowing position at the financial year end without taking account of future issues

For the purposes of this note, the foreign currency element of forward foreign currency contracts is translated at spot rates prevaling at the

year end
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202 Interest rate risk

In order to manage the risk of interest rate fluctuations the Partnership targets a ratio of fixed and floating rate debt 1 hne with the Partnership
Board approved treasury policy An analysis of the Partnership’s financial labilves 15 detalled in note 23 Exposures to interest rate fluctuations are
managed using interest rate derivatives

As authonsed by the Partnership Board, the ratio of fixed to floating rate borrowang has remained outside treasury policy during the year, as it
was decided not to enter into new nterest rate swaps given the histoncally low bond yield levels

203 Foreign currency risk

The Partnership uses derwative financial instruments to manage exposures to movements in exchange rates arising from transactions with foreign
suppliers Foreign currency exposures are hedged primanly using forward foreign exchange contracts covenng up to 100% of forecast exposures
on a rolling basis Forward foreign exchange contracts used to hedge forecast currency requirements are designated as cash flow hedges with far
value movements recognised in equity Dervative financial instruments that were designated as cash flow hedges during the year were fully
effective At the balance sheet date the notional value of open forward foreign currency contracts of £213 7m (2013 £163 Om) had been
entered into to hedge purchases in foreign currencies which will mature over the next 18 months.

204 Credrt risk

The Partnership has no significant exposure to customer credit nisk due to transactions being principally of a high volume, low value and short
maturity Cash deposits and other financial instruments give rise 1o credit risk on the amounts due from counterpartres These risks are managed
by restricting such transactions to counterparties with a credit rating not less than a Standard & Poor's equivalent A’ rating and designating
appropriate liits to each counterparty

The Partnership considers s maximum exposure to credit risk 15 as follows

2014 2013

£m £m

Trade and other recevables 1§65 1085
Cash and cash equivalents 3589 5344
Derwative financial istruments 07 42
476 | 647 |

205 Capntal risk

The Partnership's objectives when managing capital (defined as net debt plus equity) are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern,
provide returns for its Partners and to maintan a prudent level of debt funding The Partnership is a long-term business, held in trust for the
benefit of its Partners The co-ownership model means that it 1s not able to rase equity externally

The Partnership manages caprtal 1o ensure an appropriate balance between investing in Partner, customer and profit The policy 1s to mantain

a capital structure consistent with an investment grade credit rating Although the Partnership does not have an external credrt rating, it

routinely monitors its capital and hquidity requirements using caprtal ratios commonly used by rating agencies to assess risk, whilst mamtaining an
appropnate level of debt headroom and a smooth debt maturtty profile to ensure continuity of funding The Partnership borrows centrally to
meet the requirements of its dvisions using & mix of funding ncluding capital market issues and bank facliies The Partnership further diversified
its funding sources through the 1ssue of a Partnership bond to 1its Partners and customers in April 2011 Other forms of borrowing include Share
Incentive Plan shares as part of the BonusSave scheme and a small amount of cumulative preference stock.

206 Energy risk

The Partnership operates risk management processes for the Partnership’s energy costs associated with nts activities The Partnership s energy
policy 1s reviewed by an energy committee which meets regularly to review pricing exposure to electricity and gas consumption and determines
strategy for forward purchasing and hedging of energy costs using flexible purchase contracts
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

20 Management of financial risks (continued)
207 Sensitivity analysis

The following analysss illustrates the sensitwity of the Partnership's financiat instruments to changes in market vanables namely UK interest rates
and the US dallar and euro to sterling exchange rates The level of sensitvties chosen, being 1% movement in Sterling interest rates and a 10%
movement in sterling when compared 1o the US dollar and euro, reflects the Partnership's view of reasonable possible changes to these variables
which existed at the year end

The analysis excludes the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying value of pension and other post-retirement obligations
and prowvistons

The analysis has been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating rate borrowings and the proportion
of financial instruments in foreign currencies are constant throughout the year, based on positions as at the year end
The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity anatysis

~ the sensitivity of Interest costs to movements in Interest rates 15 calculated using floating rate debt and investment balances prevaling at the
year end,

— changes in the carrying value of dervative financial instruments not in hedging relationships are assumed only to affect the income statement,
and

— all dervatrve financal instruments designated as hedges are assumed to be fully effective

2014 2013
Income Equity Income Equity

Statement Statement
+i- £€m +l- £Em +f- £m +/- £m
UK interest rates +/- 19 (2013 +/- [%) 17 - 36 -
LIS dollar exchange rate +/-10% (2013 +/- 10%) 04 93 04 93
Euro exchange rate +/- 10% (2013 -+/- 10%) ol 96 05 49

21 Dervative financial instruments and financal liabilities
We use cash flow hedges to manage the nisk of adverse currency movements We also hold bonds and preference stock These cash flow
hedges, bonds and preference stock are classified as dervative financial instrurments and financial babiltes under IFRS

This note details the fair value of these financial instruments and financial habilines, together with the valuation techriques and key assumptions
made in determining the far value, as required by IFRS The fair value, as defined by IFRS, represents the amount that would be recewved from
the sale of an asset or paid to pass on a hability in an orderly transaction between willing market participants

21 | Basis of fair value

Fair value estimation
The different levels per the IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy have been defined as follows

Level | Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or labilites

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that are observable for the asset or lability, ether directly (that 1s, as prices)
or indirectly (that ss, derived from prices)

Level 3 Inputs for the asset or hability that are not based on observabile market data (that 1s, uncbservable inputs)

During the year ended 25 January 2014, there have been no transfers between any levels of the IFRS |3 fair value hierarchy and there were
no reclassifications of financial assets as a result of a change in the purpose or use of those assets
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21 2 Fair value of derwvative finanaial instruments
The far value of dervative finanaal instruments 15 as follows

2014 2013

Assets Liabiiuies Assets Liabilrties

Fair value of derivative financial instruments £m £m £m £m
Currency dervatives — cash flow hedge 07 (59) 42 (06)

The farr value of a derwative financial Instrument represents the difference between the value of the outstanding contracts at their contracted
rates and a valuatton calcuated using the forward rates of exchange and interest rates prevailing at the batance sheet date

The fair value of the dervative financial instruments held by the Partnership are classified as fevel 2 under the IFRS 13 far value hierarchy, as all
significant inputs to the valuation model used are based on observable market data and are not traded in an active market

Speaific valuation techniques used to value the finanaal instruments include quoted market prices There have been no changes in valuation
techrugues from the prior year

21 3 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities held at amortised cost

The following table compares the Partnership’s habilities held at amortised cost, where there is a difference between carrying value (CV) and fair
value (FV)

2014 2013
£m £m
cv Fv v Fv

Finanaial habilitses
Listed bonds (569 8) (695 4) (669 3} (8268)
Preference stock (46} (3 9) (46) (33}

The fair values of the Partnership's listed bonds and preference stock have been determined by reference to market price quotations and are
classified as Level | under the IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy

For other financial assets and habilities, there are no material differences between carrying value and farr value

22 Retirement benefit obligations

\We operate a defined benefit pension scheme, open to all Partners, subject to length of service, providing benefits based on final pensionable
pay The consolidated balance sheet includes a retirement benefit obligation which is the expected obligations of the scheme, offset by assets
hetd by the scheme to meet these obligauons The expected obligauons are calculated by an actuary using a number of financial assumpuons
whilst the assets are held at fair value

This note details the finanaial assumpuons used, together with amounts recorded in the consolidated balance sheet and income statement in
refation to the pension scheme

The principal pension scheme operated by the Partnership is the John Lews Partnership Trust for Pensions The scheme 1s a funded final salary
defined benefit pension scheme, providing pensions and death benefits to members, and 1s open to new members All contnbutions to the
scheme are funded by the Partnership

The scheme i1s gaverned by a Trustee which s Independent of the Partnership The Trustee 1s responsible for the operation and governance of
the scheme, including making decisions regarding the scheme s investment strategy

The scheme 1s subject to a full actuarial valuatton every three years on assumptions agreed between the Trustee and the Partnership The most
recent valuation was carred out by an independert professionally qualified actuary as at 31 March 2013 and resulted in a funding defict of
£840 0 The market value of the assets of the scheme as at 31 March 2013 was £3 169 Om The actuarial valuation showed that these assets
were sufficient 1o cover 79% of the benefits which had accrued to members

Following this valuation, the Partnership and the Trustee agreed to increase the normal future annual contribution rate to 16 4% of gross taxable
pay of members and put in place a plan to eliminate the defictt over a |0 year peried through defict reduction contributions of £44 3m per year,
in additron to a one-off contnibution of £85 Om made in January 2014 The balance of the deficit 1s expected to be met by investment returns on
the scheme assets Total contributions to the scheme in 2045 under this agreement are expected to be £197 0m

The next trennial actuanal valuation of the schere will take place as at 31 March 2016

The cost of the scheme to the Partnerstip depends upon a number of assumptions about {uture events Future contributions may be higher (or
tower) than those currently agreed if these assumptions are not borne out in practice or If different assumptions are appropnate n the future
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

22 Retirement benefit obligations (continued)
Specific risks include

— Changes in future expectations of price inflation The majortty of the scheme's benefit obligations are inked to inflation and higher inflation wall
lead to higher liabilites Hence, an increase i inflation will ncrease the defict

— Changes in the discount rate used to value pension liabiliies A lower discount rate will lead to a higher present value being placed on future
pension payments Hence a reduction in discount rate wall Increase the deficr.

— The return on assets being lower than assumed If the rate of growth in assels falls below the discount rate used to value the babilities then the
pension defict will iIncrease

— Falls in asset values not beng matched by similar falls in the value of habilities As the majority of assets held by the scheme are not matched to
the labilibes of the scheme, a fall in plan assets will lead to an increase in the deficit

~ Unanticipated increase in hfe expectancy leading to an increase in the scheme’s habiliues. An increase in life expectancy would mean pensions
are expected to be paid for a longer period, so ncreasing the hability and the scheme’s deficit. This 1s offset by the scheme applying a Life
Expectancy Adjustment Factor, whereby future pensions coming Inta payment are adjusted i part to allow for increases in Iife expectancy

The semor pension scheme provided additional benefits to certain members of senior management. The senior pension scheme was merged into
the main scheme on 31 March 2013

Pension commitments recognised in these accounts have been calculated based on the most recent actuaral valuation as at 31 March 2013,
which has been updated by actuaries to reflect the assets and habilities of the scheme as at 25 January 2014, calculated on assumptions that are
appropriate for accounting under |AS |9

The Partnership 1s currently engaged in discussions with the Partnership Council on the level and form of {uture prowision of pension benefits
to Partners

22 | hinancial assumptions
Scheme assets are stated at market values at 25 January 20i4 The following financial assumptions have been used

2014 2013
Discount rate 440% 4 60%
Future retaill price inflation (RPI} 330% 320%
Future consumer price inflation (CPl) 230% 230%
Increase in earnings 380% 370%
Increase in pensions — In payment 300% 300%
Increase in pensions — deferred 230% 230%

Increases in earrungs are projected at 0 5% above retail price inflation, with increases in pensions in payment being 0 3% below retall price
inflation reflecting the impact of a cap on the level of pension increases and increases in deferred pensions are projected to be in ine with
consumer price inflation

The post-retirement mortality assumptions used in valuing the pensions habilities were based on the "SI Light series standard tables Based on
scheme expertence, the probability of death at each age was muttiplied by 127% for males and | [4% for fermales Future improvements in ife
expectancy have been allowed for in line with the standard CMI model projections subject to a long term trend of 1 25%

22 2 Demographic assumptions
The average life expectancies assumed were as follows

2014 2013
Men Women Men Women
Average Iife expectancy for a 60 year old (in years) 268 289 262 285

Average hife expectancy at age 60, for a 40 year old (in years) 287 309 276 299
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2014 2013

Amounts recogmised in the balance sheet im £m
Defined benefit abligation for funded arrangements (4.201 2) (3.7810)
Defined benefrt obligauon for unfunded arrangements (17 0) {150y
Totat defined benefit obligation {42182) (3.796 0)
Total value of assets 32148 29739
Defined benefit liability at year end {1,003 4) 822 1)
2014 2013

(restated}

Amounts recognised in the income statement £m fm
Current service cost {1557) (1280
Past service cost (80) -
Contribution expense* 94 (64)
Adrninistrative expenses (26) (26)
Operating expenses (175 7) (1370}
Net interest on net defined benefit lability (353) 29 1}
Total pension charge 211 0) (1661}

* Includes Partnership contributions to the defined contribution scheme together with cash supplernents n respect of certain Partners i heu of future pension acerual

The past service cost of £8 Om relates to additional pension habiliues arising from the correction of pensionable pay for certain members anising

from the review of the Partnership's holiday pay policy See note 3

224 Amounts recognised 1n equity

2014 2013
(restated)
Amounts recognised in equity fm £m
Return on plan assets (less)/greater than the discount rate (497) 179 |
Remeasurements
—from changes in demographic assumptions 394 303
— from changes in finanaal assumptions (234 9) (469 4)
Total losses recognised in equity (245 2) (2600)
Cumulative loss recognised in equity (990 8) (745 6}
22 5 Retirement benefit obligations
2014 2013
(restated)
Recencibiation of nec defined benefit hability fm £m
Net defined benefit hability at beginning of year {822 1) (638 1)
Pension expense (199 0) (157 1)
Contributions 2629 233}
Total lesses recognised in equity {245 2) (2600)
Net defined benefit hability at end of year {1,003 4) (822 13
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

22 Retirement benefit obligations {continued)

2014 2013
(restated)
Reconcihation of defined benefit obligauon £m £m
Defined benefit obligation at beginning of year {3,796 0) {3,1750)
Service cost (159 2} (1245)
Interest on pension labilities (172 5) {154 8)
Remeasurements
— from changes in demographic assumptions 394 303
— from changes in financial assumptions (234 9) {469 4)
Benefits paid 1050 974
Defined benefit obligation at end of year (4.2182) (3.796 0}

The scheme liabilities are 51% in respect of active scheme particpants, 16% in respect of deferred scheme participants and 33% in respect of retirees,

The weighted average duration of the scheme habilities at the end of the penod 15 20 years

22 6 Scheme assets

2014 2013
(restated)
Reconciliation of value of assets £m £m
Value of assets at the beginning of year 29739 25369
Interest iIncome on assets 1372 1257
Return on plan assets (less)/greater than discount rate 497 1791
Benefits paid (105 0) (97 4)
Administrative expenses paid (45) (35}
Contributions 2629 2331
Value of assets at the end of year 32148 29739
227 Analysis of assets
2014 2013
Analysis of assets {m % £m %
Listed Equities 1,2499 39% 1,5953 53%
Prvate Equrties 2353 7% 1986 7%
Properties 2064 6% 181 6 6%
Government Bonds* 2195 7% 706 2%
Credi** 3047 10% 2924 10%
Infrastructure 150 4% 8le6 3%
Investment Funds 977 12% 2927 10%
Cash and Other*** 4863 15% 261 | 9%
32148 29739

* Government bond holdings at 25 January 7014 consisted of a portfolio of tong dated index lnked government bonds

** Credit holdings cansist of short dated listed corporate bond holdings (£216.9m at 25 January 2014) and unhisted credit (£87 Bm at 25 Jarwary 2014)

*** Cash holdings at 25 january 2014 include £294 4m whch was invested in long dated index linked government bonds fellowing the year end

The Trustee's investment strategy as set out in their statement of Investment Principles dated | | March 2014 s to hold 15% of assets in a hability
matching portfolio mainly consisting of iIndex linked government bonds of an appropriate duration The remaining 85% is invested in a return
seeking portfolio that ams 1o reduce concentrations of nisk by diversifying across a range of asset classes and geographies
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2014 2013

{restated)

Actual return on assets im fm
Interest income on assets 137 2 1257
Return on plan assets {less}/greater than discourt rate 497 179 1
Actual return on assets 875 3048

22 8 Sensrtivrty analysis

The net defined benefit obligaton 1s Inherently volaule to the financial assumpuions used lllustrated below 15 the sensitivity of the balance sheet
position to changes in key assumptions
£m % change
Liability as at 25 January 2014 (1,003 4)
Sensitvity of O 1% increase to
— Discount rate 780 + 8%
~Retail price inflation {71 Q) -17%
— Consumer price inflation (100) -02%
— Salary increases (200) -05%
Sensitivity of one year increase in ife expectancy (1300) -31%
229 History of experience of gains and losses
2014 2013
(restated)
History of experience of gains and losses £m £m
(Losses)/gains on assets 497 179 1
% of assets at the end of the year (I 5%) 60%
Experience gains on defined benefit obligation 394 303
09% 08%

% of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year

22 10 Other arrangements

On 30 january 2010, the Partnership entered into an arrangement with the Pension Scheme Trustees to address an element of the scheme

deficit that existed at that tme

The Partnership established two partnerships, JLP Scotush Limited Partnership and JLP Scottish Partnershup, which are both consolidated within

these Partnership financial statements

Together with another Partnership company, |LP Scottish Limited Partnership prowvided sufficient capital to JLP Scottish Partnership to enable
It to procure property assets with a market value of £150 9m from other Partnership companies The Partnership retains control over these
properties, including the flexibiity to substitute alternative properties The Praperties held in JLP Scothish Partnership have been leased back to
John Lewas plc and Wartrose Limited In September 201 1, the Partnership withdrew properties with a market value of £70 0m and substituted

these with ather properties with a market value of £72 8m

As a partner in [LP Scottish Limited Partnership, the pension scheme 1s entitled to an annual share of the profits of the JLP Scottish Limited
Partnership each year over 21 years At the end of this period, the partnership caprtal allocated to the pension scheme will be reassessed,
depending on the funding positon of the pension scheme at that time, with a potential value in the range £0 5m to £9% 5m At that pont, the

Partnership may be required to transfer this amount 1n cash to the scheme

Under IAS 19 (revised 201 1), the investment held by the pension scheme in JLP Scottish Limited Partnership, a consehdated entity, does not
represent a plan asset for the purpose of the Partnership s consclidated financial statements. Accordingly, the pension defictt position presented
in these consolidated accounts does not reflect the £87 9m (2013 £108 Om) investment in JLP Scotush Limited Partnership held by the pension
scheme The distribution of JLP Scottish Limrted Partnership profits ta the pension scheme s reflected as penston contributions in these

consolidated financial statements on a cash basis
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

23 Analysss of financial liabiltties

This note sets out the currency and interest rate exposure of our financial lablities The interest rate and currency analysis details the amount
of financial iabilities held in sterling or other currencies, together with amounts at floating or fixed interest rates The matunity analysis provides
an indication of repayment phasing for the financial habilives, together with the effective interest rate

Short-term payables are excluded from thus anafysis on the basis that they are alf non-inierest bearmng

Fixed rate  Floating rate Total
Interest rate and currency analysis £m £m £m
All sterling
At 25 January 2014 (6657) (1728) (839 5)
At 26 January 2013 {7689 (1410} (9099)
2014 2013
Effective Effective
Interest interest
Maturity of financial habilities rate £m rate £m
Repayable within one year
Bank overdrafts 18% (756) | 8% (563)
Property finance leases 76% (33 76% 30
Bonds - 105% {1000}
(78 9) (159 3)
Repayable between one and two years
Property finance leases 76% @31 76% 33
3n (33
Repayable between two and five years
Property finance leases 76% (55) 7 6% 79
Bonds 55% (56 6) 55% 56
Unamortised bond transaction costs 03 04
(61 8) (63 6)
Repayable in more than five years
Property finance leases 76% (23 8) 7 6% (247)
Bonds 72% (5750) 77% (5750)
Unamortised bond transaction costs 49 53
Cumulative Preference Stock 53% “42) 53% (42)
Cumulative Preference Stock of subsidiary undertakings 59% 04 59% e4
Share Incentive Plan shares | 4% (972) 20% (847)
{6957) (6837)
(839 5) (909 9)
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24 Share capital

Share capital consists of ordinary shares and 15 measured as the number of shares 1ssued and fully paid mulupled by their nominal value

2014 2013
Authorised Issued and Authorised Issued and
£m fulty pad fm fully paid
£m £m
Equity
Deferred Ordinary Shares
612,000 of £1 each 06 06 06 06

The Deferred Ordinary Shares rank in all respects as equity shares except that each share has 1,000 votes in a vote taken on a pell

The Deferred Ordinary Shares are held by John Lewns Partnership Trust Limited, with whom uttimate cantrol rests

25 Reconalliation of profit before tax to cash generated from operations

This note analyses how our profit before tax reconciles to the cash generated from our main revenue producing activities, as shown i the
consolidated statement of cash flows Items added back 1o / deducted from profit before tax are non-cash items that are adjusted to arnve
at cash generated from operations

204 2013
(restated)
£m £rm
Profit before tax 126 6 1325
Amortisation of intangible assets 545 419
Deprecation 2546 2551
Net finance costs 945 1ot
Partnerstip Bonus 2025 2108
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 16 61
Increase in inventories (40 0) (48 8)
(Increase)/decrease in receivables (393) 168
Increase in payables 122 4 250
(Decrease)/increase in revrerment benefit obligations (142) 199
Increase in provisions 101 196
Cash generated from operations 7733 9790
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

26 Analysis of net debt
Net debt summanses our net financial labibty position as at the year end
2013 Cash flow Other 2014
non-cash
movements
£m £m £m £m
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5344 (1755) - 3589
Derwative financial Instruments 42 - 35 07
5386 {1755) (35) 3596
Current habihties
Borrowings and overdrafts (1563) 807 - (75 6}
Finance leases (30) 31 34 (33)
Derwvative financial instruments (06) - 53) 59
{1599) 838 (87 (84 8)
Non-current habilities
Borrowings (720 4} {125) {05) (733 4)
Unamortised bond transaction costs 57 - 05 52
Finance leases (359) - 35 (324)
7506) (125) 25 (760 6)
Total net debt {3719 (1042) (37 (485 8)
Reconcihation of net cash flow to net debt
2014 2013
fm £m
Decrease in net cash and cash equivalents in the year (194 8) (126)
Cash outflow from movement in debt and lease financing 906 2310
Movement in debt for the year (104 2) 2184
Opening net debt 3719 (5773}
Non-cash movements ¢7) {130)
Closing net debt (485 8) (371 %)
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A commitment represents a contractual obligauon to make a payment in the future We have commitments for capital expenditure and
operating leases Contingent hizbiliues are potential future cash outflows where the likelihood of payment is more than remote but 1s not
considered probable or cannot be measured reliably We have conungencies in the form of lease guarantees ansing from our former associate

company, Ccado Limited

In hne with accounting standards, commitments and contingencies are not included within the balance sheet, but are detatled in the note

below The amounts below represent the mimimum amounts we are obliged to pay

27 | Caprtal commitments

At 25 January 2014 contracts had been entered into for future caprtal expenditure of £1068m (2013 £11 Im) of which £106 2m
(2013 £105m) relates to property, plant and equipment and £0 6m (2013 £0 6m) relates to intangible assets

27 2 Lease guarantees

John Lewss plc continues to provide lease guarantees in favour of the Partnership's former associate company, Ocade bimited, of £6 8m

(2013 £68m)

27 3 Commitments under operating leases

2014 2013

Land and Land and

Future aggregate mimmum lease payments buildings bulldings
Under non-cancellable operating leases, payable £m fm
Within one year 1485 1384
|ater than one year and less than five years 5353 5034
After five years 2,3978 22993
2014 2013

Future aggregate mimmum lease payments Land and Land and
under non-cancellable operatung leases, payable buildings buildings
after five years comprise the following £m £m
Later than five years and less than |0 years 5774 5295
Later than 10 years and less than 20 years 7118 6775
Later than 20 years and less than 40 years 3296 3230
Later than 40 years and less than BO years 2979 2966
After 80 years 481 1 4727
2,3978 22993

Total future sub-lease payments recevable relating to the above operating leases amounted to £92m (2013 £11 8m)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

28 Related party transactions

Two or more parties are considered to be related if one party has direct or indirect contrel or significant influence over financial or operating
policies of the other party VWe have a number of related parties with whom we transact, including the Pension Scheme trustees, John Lewas
Partnership Trust Limited and key management personnel As required by IFRS, this note details the transacuons made in the year with
related parties

28 | Subsidiaries

All transactions between the Partnership and rts subsidiaries are eliminated upon consolidation, and therefore do not need to be disclosed
separately A list of subsiiaries within the Partnership are included within note 36

28 2 Arrangements with Pension Scheme trustees
The Partnership entered into an arrangement with the Pension Scheme Trustee on 30 January 2010 1o address an element of the scheme defict
that existed at that tme Details of this arrangement and changes made in September 2011 are set out In note 22

In December 201 | the Partnership sold a property to the main pension scheme for £10 6m and entered into an operating lease in respect of the
property These transactions were at market values Inthe year to 25 January 2014 £09m (2013 £08m) was paid in respect of the operating lease

28 3 Arrangements with the John Lewis Partnership Trust Limited

The John Lewss Partnership Trust Limuted 15 a refated party and holds the Deferred Ordinary Shares in the Partnership on behalf of the Partners
The John Lewas Partnershup Trust Limited facitates the approval and payment of the Partnership Bonus and BonusSave At the year end the
Share Incentive Plan shares issued to the John Lews Partnership Trust Limited as part of the BonusSave scheme are recorded in the Company's
balance sheet within borrowings of £97 2m (2013 £84 7m)

284 Other transactions

Key management compensation has been disclosed in note 9




Company balance sheet
as at 25 January 2014
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2014 2013

Notes im im
Non-current assets

3! Investments 1153 1023
Total assets 153 1023
Current habihues

33 Trade and other payables (19 20)
Non-current liabilities

32 Borrowings (101 4) (889)
Total habilities (103 3) (809)
Net assets 120 14
Equity

34 Share caprtal 06 06
Capnal redemption reserve 50 50
Retained earrings 64 58
Total equity 120 14

The financial statements on pages ! 17 to 120 were approved by the Board of Directors on [0 April 2014 and signed on s behalf by

Sir Charlie Mayfield and Helen Weir
Directors John Lews Partnership plc
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Company statement of changes in equrty
for the year ended 25 January 2014

Share Capnal Retatned Total
capital  redemption earnings equity

reserve
Notes £m £m £m £m
Batance at 28 January 2012 06 50 56 112
30 Profit for the year and total comprehensive income - - 02 02
Balance at 26 January 2013 06 50 58 14
30 Profit for the year and total comprehensive income - - 06 06
Balance at 25 January 2014 06 50 54 120

29 Accounting pohcies

John Lews Partnership ple (the Company) prepares its accounts under International Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European
Union Betow we set out significant accounting policies apphed by the Company in the current reporung period where they are different, or
additional, to those used by the Partnership The accounting pohctes are set in line with the requirements of IFRS and there have been no
changes in accounung policies in the year other than those set out under ‘1 4 Amendments to accounting standards’ in note | of the
Partnership’s consohdated financial statements

The separate financial statements of the Company are drawn up in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as
adopted by the European Union and with the Companies Act 2006

The Company s accounting pehcies are aligned with the Partnership’s accounting policies as described in note | Additional accounting policies are
noted below

Basis of preparation

John Lewis ple settles transactions on behalf of john Lewis Partnership plc for administrative convenience, including amounts in respect of
subscription for BonusSave, dwvidend payments and amounts owed 10 tax authorities As a result no cash flows through John Lews Partnership
plc and no cash 1s generated frem rts operations so a Company cash flow statement 1s not required

Investment in subsidiary undertakongs
The Partnership has a number of investments in subsidiary companies Investments are valued at cost, less allowances for impairment
Impairment reviews are performed annually

30 Profit and loss of the Company for the year
The Company 1s exempt from disclosing a full income Statement as allowed by the Companies Act 2006, therefore the profit for the
Company for the year is disclosed within this note

As permitted by section 408 of the Compantes Act 2006, john Lewis Partnership plc has not presented its own income statement or statement
of comprehensive expense

The result dealt with in the Accounts of the Company amounted to £0 ém profit (2013 £0 2m profit)

Details of auditors remuneration are provided in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements of the Partnership
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 Investments

This note sets out the value of the shares owned or amounts loaned to subsidiary compantes directly invested in by the Company, which,

together with their own subsidiaries, consolidate to form the Partnership

The Company has the following investments in subsidianes at 25 January 2014

Subsidiary Other

Shares in john

Shares in Loan to Lewis

John Lewns John Lewis Partnership
ple ple  Trust Limited Total
£m £m £m £m
At 26 January 2013 i30 892 Gl 1023
Movemenis - 130 - 130
At 25 January 2014 130 1022 ol M53

The intercompany loan from the Company to John Lewis ple 1s non-interest bearing with no specific repayment terms

32 Borrowings

Borrowings pnmanly consist of Cumulative Preference Stock and Share Incentive Plan shares, which are allocated to Partners who are entitled

to a dmvidend
2014 2013
£m £m
Non-current
5% Cumulative Preference Stock 37 (37)
7%% Cumulative Preference Stock (05) (05)
Share Incentive Plan shares 972) 847)
(101 4) {889)
33 Trade and other payables
2014 2013
£m fm
Other payables (19 20
All of the Company’s trade and other payables are current. The carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates to fair value
34 Share capital
Share capital consists of ordinary shares and 1s measured as the number of shares 1ssued and fully paid multiphed by their nominal value
2014 2013
Issued and Issued and
Authorised fully paid Authorised fully paid
£m £m £m £m
Equity
Deferred Ordinary Shares
612,000 of £1 each 06 06 06 06

The Deferred Ordinary Shares rank in all respects as equity shares except that each share has 1,000 votes in a vote taken on a poll

The Deferred Ordinary Shares are held by John Lewss Partnership Trust Limned, with whom ultimate control rests
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

35 Related party transactions
Two or more parties are considered to be related if one party has direct or indirect control or significant influence over financial or operating

pohces of the other party The Company has a number of related parties with whom it transacts As required by IFRS, this note details the
transactions made in the year with related parties

35 | Loan to John Lews pic

The loan to John Lewis pic has been disclosed in note 31

35 2 Other transactions

Arrangements with Pension Scheme trustees and John Lews Partnership Trust Limited are disclosed within note 28 of the consalidated
Partnership accounts

36 Subsidiary undertakings
This note sets out the principal subsidiaries of the Company along with the principal activities, country of incorporation and percentage of
shares owned of each subsidiary

The Partnership has a number of subsidiares which contribute to the overall profitability of the Partnership The principal subsidiaries are
disclosed below A schedule of interests in all subsidiary undertakings s filed with the Annual Return

Principal subsidiary undertakings as at 25 January 2014 were as follows

Name Principal actvity Country of incorporation Percentage shareholdings

John Lewns ple Department store retailing England 100%
corporate and shared services

Shareholdings in John Lews ple are analysed as follows

Class of share Percentage shareholding
Crdinary shares 100%
5% First Cumulative Preference Stock 833%
7% Cumulative Preference Stock 756%

Subsidiary undertakings of John Lews plc

Name Principal activity Country of Incorporation Percentage shareholdings
Herbert Parkinson Limrted Weaving and making up England 100%
JLP lnsurance Limited insurance Guernsey 100%
[LP Scottish Limited Partnership Investment holding undertaking Scotland 1 00%
JLP Scottish Partnership Investment hotding undertaking Scotland 100%
John Lews Car Finance Limded Car finance England 100%
John Lews Delvery Limited Internauonal delivery England 100%
|ohn Lews Properties plc Property holding company England 100%
Wartrose (Jersey) Limited Food retading Jersey 100%
Wartrose (Guernsey) Limited Food retailing Guernsey 100%
Wartrose Limited Food retating England 100%

The whole of the ordinary share capntal of the subsidiary undertakings of John Lewss plc 1s held within the Partnership The st excludes non-
trading subsidiary undertakings which have no material effect on the accounts of the Partnership Except as noted above, all of these subsidiary
undertakings operate wholly or mamly in the Unrted Kingdom

The Partnership has taken advantage of the exemption conferred by regulation 7 of the Partrerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 and has
therefore not appended the accounts of JLP Scottsh Partnership and JLP Scottish Limited Partnership to these accounts Separate accounts for
these partnerships are not required to be filed with the Registrar of Companies
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual
Report and Accounts in accordance with applicable law

AIHSYIN LYV SIMATINHOT THL

and regulations.

Company law requires the Drrectors to

prepare financal statements for each

financial year Under that law the Directors

have prepared the Partnership and parent

company financial statements in accordance

with International Financial Reporting

Standards {IFRS) as adopted by the European

Union Under company law the Directors

must not approve the financial statements

untess they are satisfied that they give a

true and fair view of the state of affairs of

the Partnership and the Company and of

the profit or loss of the Partnerstip for

that perod In preparing these financial

statements, the Directors are required to

~ Select surtable accounting policies and then
apply them consistently;

— Make judgements and accounting estmates
that are reasonable and prudent, and

— State whether applicable IFRS as
adopted by the European Union have
been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements

The Directors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that are
sufficient to show and explain the Company's
transactions and disclose with reascnable
accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Company and the Partnership and enable
them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006 and, as
regards the Partnership financial statements
Article 4 of the |AS Regulation

They are also responstble for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and the Partnership
and hence for taking reasonable steps for

the prevention and detection of fraud and
other wregulanties

The Directors are responsible for the
maintenance and integrity of the Company's
website Legislation in the Umted Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissermination
of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other junsdictions

The Directors consider that the Annual
Report and Accounts, taken as a whale, 1s far,
balanced and understandable and prowvides
the information necessary for shareholders
to assess a company's performance, business
model and strategy

Each of the Directors, whose names and

functions are listed on page 62, confirm that,

to the best of their knowledge

— The Partnership financal staterments
which have been prepared in accordance
with {FRS as adopted by the EU, gve a
true and farr view of the assets, labilities,
financial position and profit of the
Partnership, and

— The strategic report includes a far review
of the development and performance
of the business and the position of the
Partnership, together wath a description
of the pnnapal risks and uncertantres that
it faces

On behalf of the Board

Sir Charlie Mayfield
M 4

Helen Wair

Directors, john Lewss Partnership plc
10 Apni 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF JOHN LEWIS PARTNERSHIP PLC

Report on the financial statements

Cur opinion

In our opinion

— The financial statements, defined below,
give a true and far view of the state of the
Partnership’s and of the Parent Company's
affairs as at 25 January 2014 and of the
Partnership’s and Parent Company's profit
and Partnership's cash ftows for the year
then ended,

~ The Partnership financial statements have
been properly prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRS) as adopted by the
European Urion,

— The Parent Company financial statements
have been properly prepared in
accordance with International Financiat
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted
by the European Union and as applied
in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006, and

— The financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006
and, as regards the Partnership financial
statements Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

This opimon 1s te be read in the context of
what we say in the remainder of this report

What we have audited

The Partnership financial statements and
Parent Company financial statements (the
“financial statemenits'"), which are prepared
by John Lewis Partnership ple, comprise

— The consolidated balance sheet and
balance sheet of the Company as at
25 January 2014,

— The consolidated income statement and
statement of comprehensive expense for
the year then ended,

— The consolidated and Company
statements of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and

~ The netes to the financal statements,
which include a summary of significant
accounting polices and other
explanatory information

The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in their preparation 15 applicable
law and IFRS as adopted by the European
Union and, as regards the Parent Company
financial statements, as apphed i accordance
with the provisions of the Companies

Act 2006

Certan disclosures required by the financal
reporting framework have been presented
elsewhere in the Annual Report and
Accounts (the ' Annual Report”), rather

than in the notes to the financial statements
These are cross-referenced from the financial
staternents and are identified as audited

What an audit of financial
statements involves

We conducted our audit in accordance

waith International Standards on Auditing

(UK and lrefand) ("ISAs (UK & Ireland)"}

An audit involves obtaining evidence about

the amounts and disclosures in the financial

statements sufficent to give reasonable
assurance that the finanoal statements are
free from matenal misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or error This tncludes an
assessment of

— Whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the Partnership's and
the Parent Company's crcumstances
and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed,

— The reasonableness of significant
accounting estmates made by the
directors, and

— The overall presentation of the
financial statements

In addition, we read all the financial and
non-financial iInformation in the Annual
Report to identify material inconsistencies
with the audited financial statements and to
identify any information that 1s apparently
materially incorrect based on, or materially
inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired

by us in the course of performing the audit

If we become aware of any apparent matenal
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider
the implications for our report
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Overview of our audit approach

Materiality

We set certain thresholds for matenality
These helped us to determine the nature
timing and extent of our audit procedures
and to evaluate the effect of misstatements,
both ndividually and on the financial
statements as a whole

Based on our professional judgement, we
determined materiality for the Partnership
finanoial statements as a whole to be

£18 5 million This represents approximately
5% of Profit befare Partnership Bonus,

tax and exceptional item because, in our
view, this 15 the most relevant measure of
underiying performance

We agreed wath the Audit and Risk
Committee that we would report to them
misstatements (dentfied dunng our audit
above £0 5 million as well as misstatements
below that amount that. In our view,
warranted reporting for qualitative reasons

Overview of the scope of the audit

The Partnership is structured along three
business lines being Waitrose, john Lews,
and Partnership Services and Corporate
The Partnership financial statements

are a consohdation of 15 reporting

units within these business lines, each of
which 1s a statutory entity based in the
UK or Channel Islands, comprising the
Partnership's operating businesses and
centralised functions

In establishing the overall approach to the
Partnership audit, we determined the type
of work that needed to be performed at
the reporting uruts by us, as the Partnership
engagement team, or compenent auditors
within PwC UK and from other PwC
network firms operating under our
instruction ‘Where the work was performed
by component auditors, we deterrmined
the level of involvement we needed to have
in the audit work at those reporting units
to be able to conclude whether sufficent
appropriate audit evidence had been
obtained as a basis for our opinion on the
Partnership financial statements as a whole

Accordingly, of the Partnership's 15 reporting
units, we have audited the complete

finanaial mformation of 12 reporting units,
providing us with coverage of 96 1% of
Profit before exceptional item, Partnership
Bonus and tax The audits of these reporting
units were performed using matenality
levels lower than that of the Partnership

as a whole, established by reference to

the size of, and risks associated with, the
businesses concerned

Areas of particular audit focus

in prepaning the finanaal statements, the
directors made a number of subjective
judgements, for example In respect of
significant accounting estimates that involved
making assumptions and considenng

future events that are inherently uncertain
We primanly focussed our work in these
areas by assessing the directors’ judgements
against avallable evidence, forming our own
Judgements, and evaluating the disclosures in
the financal statements

In our audit, we tested and examined
information, using sampling and other auditing
techniques, to the extent we considered
necessary to provide a reasonable basis for
us to draw conclusions We obtamned audit
evidence through testing the effectiveness

of controls, substantive procedures or a
combination of both

We considered the following areas to be
those that required particular focus in the
current year This i1s not a complete list of all
risks or areas of focus identified by our audit
We discussed these areas of focus with the
Audit and Risk Committee Their report on
those matters that they considered to be
sigruficant 1ssues in relation to the financial
statements s set out on pages 7010 /73
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF JOHN LEWIS PARTNERSHIP PLC

CONTINUED

Post-retrement benefit habslicy

Area of focus

We focussed on this area because of the impact of the defined
benefit pension plan liability in the context of the overall balance
sheet and the result of the Partnerstip Valuation of the liability
balance requires significant levels of judgement and technical expertise
In choosing approprate assumptions to measure the habilities
Changes in key assumptions (:ncluding pension increase, salaries
increase, inflation, discount rates, and mortality) can have a matenal
impact on the calculation of the habities Refer to note 2210 the
financial statements

How the scope of our audit addressed the area of focus

We considered and challenged the reasonableness of actuanal
assumptions and the overall pension llability calculations by comparing
the key assumptions to benchmark ranges, performing sensitivity
analysis and confirming whether methods had been consistently
apphed We compared the membership census data used in the
actuarial models to the payroll data held by the Partnership

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and finite-lived intangible assets

Area of focus

For each cash generating unit {' CGU"), the directors assess on an
annual basis whether there are any imparment triggers that would
indicate that the asset 1s overvalued

We focussed on this area because of the matenality of these assets
and because of the judgement required in determining whether
there are any smparrment triggers In addition, where triggers have
been identified for certain CGUs, calculating the value in use of those
CGUs involves subjective judgements by the Directors about growth
rates and operatmg margns

Provisions

Area of focus

The financial statements contan several provisions, principally
long leave, unredeemed gift vouchers, service guarantee costs,
restructuring and inventory obsolescence

We focussed on this area due to the number and magnitude of
potential exposures across the Partnership, and the inherent
complexity and judgement in determining the appropnate valuation
of the prowston for each exposure

How the scope of our audit addressed the area of focus

We have assessed the Directors’ process for identifying impairment
triggers, as well as carrying out our own assessment of internal and
external factors that may indicate an impairment

Where impairment triggers were identified we assessed the
directors’ future cash flow forecasts, including comparing them

to the latest approved budgets, which we tested against histoncal
results We challenged the Directors’ key assumptions, including the
tong term strategic growth rate, and performed sensitivity analysis
around the key drivers being the discount rate and long term growth
rates of the cash flow forecasts to ascertan the extent of change n
those assumptions that either individually or collectively would be
required for the relevant asset to be impaired We then considered
the hkehhood of such movement in those key assumptions arsing
based on our knowledge of the Partnership and of the retail industry
amongst other factors

How the scope of our audit addressed the area of focus

We tested the Directors’ policies for calculating these provisions,
challenged the appropnateness of management’s judgements and
assumptions, and considered the nature and sutability of any historic
data used in support of the judgements and assumptions made In
estimating the provisions

We have also considered the completeness of prowisions, by assessing
whether management has taken all known exposures into account,
and the related disclosures
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Excepuonal item for holiday pay

Area of focus

Following a review of the Partnership’s pay policy, it became clear
to the Directors that certain Partners had not received the correct
amount of holiday pay under the Working Time Regulations
legislation As a result, a charge of £47 3m has been recorded, which
includes payments to Partners, associated expenses and an increase
in the pension cbligation

We focussed on this area because of the complexity of the legislation
and the judgements involved in determining both the amounts to be
charged and the appropnate disclosure in the Annual Report and
Accounts Refer to note 3 of the financial statements

Risk of fraud in revenue recognition

Area of focus

Auditing standards require that we consider the risk of fraud arsing in
revenue recognitron Whilst revenue recognition and measurement
15 not complex for the Partnership, revenue targets form part of

the Partnership's key performance measures which could create an
incentive to record revenue incorrectly

We focussed on this area gven the magnitude of revenue transactions
that occur and the presence of manual adjustments to revenue

for potential future returns and goods in transit over the year end
These adjustments involve subjective judgements by the directors in
determining their accuracy

Risk of management override of internal controls

Avrea of focus
Auditing standards require that we consider this

How the scope of our audit addressed the area of focus

We understood the legal advice receved by the Directors and
we assessed the appropniateness of the conclusions reached by
the Directors

We tested the basis for determining the amounts paid to Partners
and compared this to the legal advice receved by the Directors

We also challenged the completeness of the provision for further
expenses based on this adwice

We assessed the appropriateness of the calcutations for the increase
i the pension obligation and for the associated expenses

We considered the appropnateness of the disclosures made by
the Directors

How the scope of our audit addressed the area of focus

We tested the reconciliations between the revenue systems used by
the Partnership and the cash received We also tested the directors'
calculations for the manual adjustments for future returns and for
the amount of goods in transit over the year end In doing so we
challenged the appropriateness of assumptions used and considered
the sutability of historical data on which the calculations are based

How the scope of our audit addressed the area of focus

We tested key reconcifiations and manual journal entries

We considered whether there was evidence of bias by the Directors
in the significant accounting estimates and judgements relevant

to the financial statements We also assessed the overall control
environment of the Partnership, including the arrangements for stafl
to "whistle-blow" inappropriate actions, and interviewed semior
management and the Partnership’s internal audit function
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF JOHN LEWIS PARTNERSHIP PLC

CONTINUED

Going concern

The Directers have voluntarty complied

with Listing Rule 9 8 6(R)(3) of the Financial
Conduct Authority and prowided a statement
in relation to going concern, set out on page
78, required for companies with a premium
hsting on the London Stock Exchange

The Directors have requested that we
review the statement on going concern as if
the Parent Company were a premium hsted
company We have nothing to repeort having
performed our review

As noted in the Dhirectors’ statement

the Directors have concluded that it

15 appropriate to prepare the finangal
statements using the going concern basis

of accounting The going concern basis
presumes that the Partnership and Parent
Company have adeguate resources to remain
in operation, and that the Directors intend
them to do so, for at least one year from the
date the financial staternents were signed

As part of our audit we have concluded that
the Directors’ use of the going concern basis
15 appropriate

However, because not all future events

or conditions can be predicted, these
statements are not a guarantee as to the
Partnerships and Parent Company’s ability to
continue as a gong concern

Opinion on other matter
prescribed by the Companies Act
2006

In our opinion the nformaton given in the
Strategic Report and Directors' Report
for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared 1s consistent wath
the financial statements

Other matters on which we are

required to report by exception

Adequacy of accounting records and

information and explanations received

Under the Compantes Act 2006 we are

required to report to you If, in our opinion

- We have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit, or

— Adequate accounting records have not
been kept by the Parent Company, or
returns adequate for our audit have not
been recewed from branches not visited
by us, or

— The Parent Company financial statements
are not In agreement with the accounting
records and returns

We have no exceptions to report arsing
from this responsibility

Directors' remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we

are required to report to you if in our
opinion, certain disclosures of Directors’
remuneration specified by law are not made
We have no exceptions to report arsing
from this responsibility

Corporate governance statement

The directors have chosen to voluntanly
comply with the UK Corporate Governance
Code {"the Code™) as if the Parent Company
were a premium listed company On page
121 of the Annual Report, as required by
the Code Prowision C 1 | the Directors
state that they consider the Annual Report
taken as a whole to be far, balanced
and understandable and provides the
information necessary for members to assess
the Partnership's and Parent Company’s
performance, business model and strategy
On pages 70 to 73, as required by C 38 of
the Code the Audit and Risk Committee has
set out the significant issues that it considered
in relation to the financial statements, and
how they were addressed Under ISAs (UK &
Ireland) we are required to report to you ff,
IN OUr opinion
— The statement given by the directors is
matenally inconsistent with our knowledge
of the Partnership and Parent Company
acquired in the course of performing our
audit, or
— The section of the Annual Report
describing the work of the Audrt and
Risk Committee does not appropriately
address matters communicated by us
to the Audit and Risk Committee

We have no exceptions to report arising
from this responsibility
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Other information
in the Annual Report

Under ISAs (UK & Ireland) we are

required to report to you if, n our opinion,

information in the Annual Report i1s

— Matenally inconsistent with the information
in the audited financial statements, or

— Apparently matenally incorrect based
on, or matenally inconsistent with, our
knowledge of the Partnership and Parent
Company acquired in the course of
performing our audit, or

— Is otherwise misleading

We have no exceptions to report arising
from this responsibility

Matter on which we have agreed
to report by exception

Corporate governance statement

The Parent Company prepares a corporate
governance statement in accordance with
the Disclosure Rules and Transparency Rules
of the Financial Conduct Authonty and has
chosen voluntanly to comply with the UK
Corporate Governance Code The Directors
have requested that we review the parts

of the Corporate Governance Statement
relatmg to the Parent Company’'s compliance
with the nine provistans of the UK Corporate
Governance Code specfied for auditor
review by the Listing Rules of the Financial
Conduct Authority as if the Parent Company
were a premium listed company We have
nothing to report having performed

our review

Responsibilities for the financial

staterments and the audit

Our responsibilities and those of the
directors

As expfained mare fully in the Directors’
Responsibifities Statement, the directors
are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied
that they give a true and fair view

Qur responsibility 15 to audit and express

an opinion on the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and ISAs

(UK & Ireland) Those standards require us
to comply with the Audriting Practices Board's
Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report including the opinions, has been
prepared for and only for the Compary's
members as a body In accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006 and for no other purpese We do not,
in giving these opinions, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to
any other person {o whom this report i1s
shown or into whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent
In writing

% C‘j/
- -
—-—
— .
Ranjan Sriskandan
{Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and
Statutory Auditors

London
10 Apnl 2014
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RETAIL BRANCHES
Waitrose stores and John Lewis branches

Waitrose stores

London

Balham Chiswick Fulham Kings Road Raynes Park Twickenham
Barbican Clapham Fulham Palace Road  Kingston Richmond Upminster
Barnet Clapham Common Gloucester Road Knightsbridge Ruishp Vauxhall
Bayswater Clerkenwell Green Street Green  Marylebone Sanderstead Victoria Street
Beckenham Coulsdon Greenwich Ml Hill South Harrow Wandsworth
Belgravia Crouch End Hampton Monument South Woodford West Ealing
Biggn Hill Croydon Harrow Weald Muswell Hill Stanes Westfield
Bloomsbury East Putney Highbury Corner New Malden Stratford Crty Whetstone
Brent Cross East Sheen High Holborn Northwood St Katharine Docks Wimbledon
Bromley Edgware Road Holloway Road Old Brompton Road  Surbiton Wimbledon Hill
Bromley South Enfield Chase Ishngton Palmers Green Swass Cottage Worcester Park
Canary Wharf Enfield Kensington Parsons Green Temple Fortune

Cheam Finchley Kensington Gardens  Putney Tottenham Court Road

Southern England

Abingdon Caversham Farnham Leighton Buzzard Romsey Wailingford
Allington Park Chandlers Ford Fleet Lewes Saffron Walden Watton-on-Thames
Alton Cheltenham Frimiey Littlehampton Salisbury VWantage
Amersham Chesham Gerrards Cross Longfield Saltash Warminster
Ampthill Chichester Gillingham Lymington Sandhurst Waterloowville
Andover Chippenham Godalming Maidenhead Sevenoaks Watford
Ashford Chipping Sodbury Goldsworth Park Marlborough Sidcup Wellington
Aylesbury Christchurch Gosport Marlow Sidmouth Wells

Banstead Cirencester Hailsham Melksham Southampton Welwyn Garden City
Bath Clifton Harpenden Mitton Keynes Southend Westbury Park
Beaconsfield Cobham Haslemere Nailsea Southsea Weston-Super-Mare
Bedford Colchester Havant Newbury St Albans West Byfleet
Berkhamsted Crewkerne Headington Okehampton Stevenage Weybridge
Biltericay Crowborough Henley Oxted Storrington Wimborne
Bishop's Stortford Dibden Hersham Paddock Wood Stroud Winchester
Bracknell Dorchester Hertford Parkstone Sunningdale Windsor
Bridport Dorking Hitchin Petersfield Tenterden Winton
Brighton Eastbourne Holsworthy Portishead Thame Witney
Buckhurst Hill East Cowes Horley Poundbury Thatcham Wolungham
Buckingham East Grinstead Horsham Ramsgate Tonbridge Woodley
Burgess Hill Epsom Hythe Reading Torquay Worthing
Canterbury Esher Kings Hitl Rickmansworth Twyford Yateley
Caterham Exeter Leigh on Sea Ringwood Uckfield




In addition to the shops listed below, the Partnership operates the following businesses
johnfewss com Internet retal
John Lews Insurance Insurance products and services

waitrose com Internet retail, mail order and wholesale including export

Herbert Parkinson, Darwen Weaving and making up
Leckford Estate, Stockbridge Farming
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Midlands, East Anglia, Northern England, Wales and Scotland

Abergavenny Cardiff Hexham Monmouth Ponteland Sudbury
Alcester Cheadle Hulme Huntingdon Morningside Pontprennau Sutton Coldfield
Alderley Edge Chester Ipswich Newcastle Poynton Swaffham
Altnncham Comely Bank Ipswich Cranes Newark Rushden Towcester
Ashbourne Cowbnidge Jesmond Newmarket Sandbach Walton-Le-Dale
Barry Daventry Kenlworth Newport Saxmundham Willerby
Birmingham Droitwich Kingsthorpe Newton Mearns Sheffield Wilmslow

Blaby Ely Knutsford North Walsham Shrewsbury Wolverhampton
Brackley Formby Leeds MNorthwich Spinningfields Wooton

Bury St Edmunds Four Oaks Lichfield Norwich Stamford Wymondham
Buxton Great Malvern Lincoln Nottingham Stiring York

Byres Road Hall Green Lutterworth Qadby St lves

Caldicot Harborne Market Harborough ~ Otley St Neots

Cambridge Harrogate Meanwood QOundle Stourbridge

Cambndge — Fitzroy St Helensburgh Menal Bridge Peterborough Stratford Upon Avon

Channel Islands

Admiral Park Rohais Red Houses St Helier St Saviour

John Lewis branches

London

John Lews, Oxford Street

Peter Jones, Sloane Square

John Lewis, Stratford City

John Lews, Brent Cross

John Lewss Kingston

John Lews at home, Croydon

Southern England

John Lewis, Bluewater

john Lewss, Southampton

John Lewis at home, Newbury

John Lews, Cribbs Causeway

John Lewts, Watford

John Lews at home, Poole

John Lews, Exeter

John Lewis, Welwyn

John Lews at home, Swindon

John Lews, High Wycombe

Kright & Lee, Southsea

John Lewis at horne, Tunbridge Wells

John Lewss, Milton Keynes

John Lewis at home, Ashford

John Lews, Reading

John Lews at home, Chichester

Midlands, East Angha, Northern England, Wales and Scotland

john Lews, Aberdeen

John Lews, Leicester

John Lewis, Sheffield

john Lewis, Cambridge

John Lews, Liverpool

John Lews, Solihull

Iohn Lews, Cardiff

John Lewis, Newcastie

John Lews, Trafford

john Lewis, Cheadle

lohn Lews, Norwich

John Lews at home, Chester

john Lews, Edinburgh

John Lews, Nottingham

John Lewis at home, Ipswich

John Lews, Glasgow

John Lew:s, Peterborough

John Lews at home, Tamworth
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NOTICE OF AGM

Notice 1s hereby given that the eighty-fifth

Annual General Meeting of the Company will

be held at 1345 on 5 June 2014 at The Board

Room, Partnership House, Carlisle Place,

London, SWIP IBX

— To receve the Company's Annual Report
and Accounts, together with the Strategic
Report, the Directors’ Report, and the
Auditor's Report on those Accounts for
the year ended 25 January 2014

— To re-elect, as separate resolutions,
Kate Brewer, Denis Hennequin and
Kerth Willams Biographical details of the
Directors and their experience are set out
on page 62

— To re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP as Auditor of the Company to hold
office from the conclusion of the meeting
until the conclusion of the next meeting of
the Company at which accounts are laid

- To authorse the Directors to determine
the remuneration of the Auditor

— To consider the following, which will be
proposed as an Ordinary Resolution,

That pursuant to the Company's Articles
of Association,”

(a) The Company be and 1s hereby

authorised to purchase by way of market
purchase on a recogrused stock exchange,
() Up to £3,696,995 in nominal amount
of 5 per cent Cumulative Preference
stock (‘the 5 per cent stock’) In the
Company at a minimum price of 60p
and a maximum price of £1 per £I
nominal of the 5 per cent stock, and
{1y Up to £500,000 in nominal amount of
7% per cent Cumulative Preference
stock (‘the 7! per cent stock’) in the
Company at a minimum price of 8Cp
and a maximum price of [25p per £1
nominat of the 7% per cent stock, and

(b) This authority shall expire on the earlier of

the close of the Annual General Mesting
of the Company to be held in 2015 or
30 August 2015

By Order of the Board

Margaret Casely-Hayford,
Company Secretary

171 Victoria Street, London SWIE 5NN
10 Aprit 2014

The Report and Accounts are sent to all
members, but only the members holding
Deferred Ordinary Shares are entitled to
attend and vote at this meeting

A member entitled to attend and vote at this
meeting 1s entitled to appoint one or more
proxies to attend and vote instead of im

A proxy need not be a member
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GENERAL INFORMATION
Advisers Partnership website Contact information
Independent Auditors — For more information about the John You are nvited to contact us with your

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Solcitors — Hogan Lovells International LLP
Bankers — Royal Bank of Scotland PLC

Registered office
171 Victoria Street, London SWIE SNN

incorporated and registered in England No
238937

Transfer office for preference shares
Capita Registrars, The Registry,

34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham,
Kent BR34TU

Lews Partnership please visit our
Partnership website

www johnlewispartnership co uk

For more information about Waitrose or
John Lewis stores please wisit our websites

www waltrose com

www Jjohnlewis com

enquiry or comments To enable us to
respond to your enquiry as quickly as
possible, please use the *Contact us' section
on the website above
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Look and listen

The John Lewis Partnership believes in sharing information with interested
parties. Audiocasts, videos, webcasts and interactive media are avallable

online johnlewispartnership.co.uk/resourcesflook-and-listen/latest.htmi




